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PC1 GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness

No.: 09 /INQ-PC1-HDQT Hanoi, 03" dpril 2025

RESOLUTION
Re: Contents of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PC1 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17% June, 2020
effective from 01", January 2021, and guiding documents;

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/0H14 dated 26™ November, 2019
effective from 01" January, 2021, and guiding documents;

= Pursuant to the Charter of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company (PC1);
= Pursuant to the Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting No. 30/BB-PC1-HDQT
(Term 2020 -2025) dated 3% April 2025.
RESOLVES

Article 1: Approval of the time and location for the General Meeting of Sharcholders
2025 (GSM), specifically:

- Time: From 8:00 AM, Friday 25" April 2025.

- Location: Hall PC1 on the 2™ floor - CT2 Building, Nang Huong Residential and
Commercial Service Arca, Wo. 583 Mguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan District,
Hanoi.

Article 2: Approval of the documents for the AGM, specifically:
- The Meeting agenda, Regulations on the organization of the Meeting;
- The Report of the BOD on the 2024 performance result and the 2025 objectives;

- The Report of the BOD for the 2020-2025 Term and operational orientation for the
term of 2025-2030;

- The Appraisal report of the Company’s BOS for the term of 2020 — 2025,
- The Financial Statement for the year 2024 (audited);
- Proposal of the BOD on the content for approval at the 2025 annual GSM,

- Proposal of the Supervisory Board on the Selection of the Audit Firm for the 2025
Financial Statement Audit;

= Documents for the election of the BOD and the BOS for the term of 2025 — 2030:
Notice on nomination and candidacy for the election of the BOD and BOS members
for the term of 2025-2030, Regulations on electing the BOD and the BOS members
for the term of 2025-2030 and attached forms.

- Voting Paper;
- Draft Resolution of the 2025 annual GMS.




Article 3: Assign the General Director of the Company to carry out the organization
of the annual GSM and to disclose information as required by regulations.

Article 4: This Resolution takes effect from the date of signing. The BOD, the
Executive Board, relevant Board and specialized departments, and Heads of related
units are responsible for its implcm:ntatimﬁ_

Recipients:

R gt ON BEHALF OF

- Supervisory Board (for reporting). THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- HR, Finance, and Internal Audit e o

Board (for implementation) Va8

- BOD archive,
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Az CT2 Office Buillding - Mo B33 Mguyen Tral Street - Thanh Xuan Dific? - Honod - Vistnom
Abways Relinhle W:wwwoolgoupwn  Einfolocigoupon BB 2438231997 T: 484 24 38455329

$ m PC1 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY (PC1 GROUP JSC)

LIST OF DOCUMENTS
AT THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

NO. CONTENTS DOCUMENTS

1 | The Meeting agenda

Regulations on the organization of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders 20235

The Report of the BOD on the 2024 performance result
and the 2025 Objectives

The Report of the BOD for the term 2020-2025 and
operational orientation for the term of 2025-2030

The Appraisal report of the Company's BOS for the
term of 2020-2025

The Financial Statement for the year 2024 (audited)

6 - Consolidated Financial Statements
- Separate Financial Statements

Proposal No. 01 of the BOD on the content for approval

at the 2025 annual GSM No 01/TTr-PCI1-HDQT

Proposal No. 02 of the BOS on the selection of the
R audit firm for the 2025 Financial statement of the Mo 02/TTr- BES -PC]
Company

Motice on nomination and candidacy for the election of
the BOD and BOS members for the term of 2025-2030

Regulations on nomination, candidacy and election the

10 | BoD, BOS members for the term of 2025-2030

Draft Resolution of the annual General mecting of

1Y | s 01/MNQ-PC1-DHDCD




PC1 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY (PC1 GROUP JSC)
Az CT2 Office Building - No 589 Nguyen Tral Street - Thanh Xuon Distict - Honol - Vieinarm
Abways Belichle Wewww.pelgoupwn  Enfo@pcigounwn  F: 48424 38231097  T: 484 24 38456329

Hanoi, 03™ April 2025.

NOTICE
ON INVITATION TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

The Board of Directors of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company respectfully invites Esteemed
sharcholders to attend the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 as follows:

1. Time: From 8:00 AM, 25" April 2025 (Friday).

2. Location: Hall on the 2* floor - PC1 Group Joint Stock Company,

CT2 Building, Nang Huong Residential and Commercial Service Arca, No. 583 Nguyen Trai
Street, Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi.

3. Participants: Shareholders whose names appear on the owning shares register of PC1 at 20"
March 2025 (the last registration date as announced by the Vietnam Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation).

4. Contents, agenda, and documents of the Meeting: posted at the Investor relations section on
the Company’s website: hitps://pel group.vn.

5. Registration for attendance

- In order for the organization of the Meeting to be thoughtful, Esteemed shareholders, please
confirm your attendance or authorize attendance according to the form and contribute comments

on discussed matters (if any) should be sent to the Company before 24™ April 2025 via one of the
forms of post, direct mail, email or fax to the below address:

PC1 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY (Enterprise code: 0100100745)

Address: CT2 Building - 583 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi
Tel: 024 3734 3060 (Ms. Nego Thi Dieu Linh — Investor Relations depariment)
Fax: 024 3823 1997  Email: in@pc]group.vn

- In case the Esteemed sharcholders are unable to attend the Mecting, they may authonze another
person using the PC1 Authorization Letter. Esteemed Shareholders/or authorized persons when
attending the Meeting need to bring their [D card/Citizen [D/Passport as per the registered
shareholder information and the original Authorization Letter to attend the GMS (if authonized) to
complete the registration procedures for attending the Meeting.

- Esteemed shareholders are responsible for all travel and accommodation expenses during the
Mecting.

We look forward to welcoming Esteemed shareholders to the Annual GMS 20325,

Kind regards.

OF DIRECTORS

ON BEHALF OF.




CONFIRMATION LETTER
ON ATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL GENERAL OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
PC1 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Hanoi,  April 2025

Respectfully to: PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

1. Full name of Shar€hOlder: .........cccueeiiie e
2. 1D card/ Citizen identification card /Passport/Enterprise Registration Certificate
L0 PP RROPPPR

Issuance date...........cceeevvennenen. ISsUANCE PlaCE:......cceeveeee e
G0 [0 [ =S RRUR
4. The total number of shares held at the record date of the list of shareholders

attending the Meeting (20" March 2025): ..................... shares.

Pursuant to the meeting invitation to attend the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2025 of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company held on 25" April 2025,
|/we confirm to attend/authorize to attend the Meeting as follows.

[ ] Directly attend

[1 Authorization for others to attend (Authorized person will carry an
authorization letter when attending the Meeting)

SHAREHOLDER
(Full name, Sgnature and stamp in case of legal entity)



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
I ndependence — Freedom — Happiness

Hanoi, April 2025

AUTHORIZATION LETTER
ON ATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL GENERAL OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

Respectfully to: PC1 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Fullname of shareholder:. ... ... ..., (Authorizer).
ID card/ Citizen identification card / Enterprise Registration Certificate NO.: ........cccevveeevieciennnnne
issuedon..........ccevevvnennnn. | USSP
Represented by (entity):..........cooviiiiiiiii. Tt o,
Address. ............

Tel: Fax. ..o
The total number of shares held at the record date of the list of shareholders attending the
General Meeting (20" March 2025): ..................... shares.

(IR0 0 S TS ).
Equivalent to (VIEtNameESE AONQ): ......coveeiiieieceesie ettt ste e s e e e s e s e e sse e aesneesreenneennens
IR0 0 S ).

I/We hereby to authorize:

[ ] Mr.Trinh Van Tuan — The Chairman of the BOD.

[ 1 Mr.VuAnh Duong- The General Director.

L] AUtNOrZEMIIMS .o, (Authorized person).
ID card/ Citizen ID card /Passport NO: ........cooviniiiiiiiiiie e
ISSUEd ON ..., B
The number of authorized Shares:..........c.oovviiii i shares.

The authorized person is entitled to attend and vote on behalf of me/us at the Annual Genera
Meeting of Shareholders of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company on 25" April 2025 to exercise the
rights and obligations of shareholders for the authorized shares.

This Authorization Letter is only valid during the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company.

AUTHORIZED PERSON AUTHORIZER
(Full name, signature) (Full name, signature, and stamp if applicable)
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MEETING AGENDA
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025

Hanoi, 25™ April 2025

Time: From 7Thi3 AM 1o 12h15 AM

TT Meeting agenda Time Person in charge |
1 | Welcome msniy | SpRane
Shareholders'
2 | Report of the Shareholders’ Eligibility Verification | 8h15-8h30 Hgatitity
£ Verification
Commuties
3 ﬂpe:!:iug Ceremony ufl.h.e Meeting, Introduction of 8h30-8h40 'Drganiz?.tinn
Chairperson of the Meeting Committee
Approval of the Meeting agemiu, Secretary Meeting
4 | Commitiee, Vote Counting Commitiee, | 8h40-Sh(0 Chai
Regulations on the organization of the Meeting ¢
Presentation of agenda contents at the Meeting:
1. The Report of the BOD on the 2024
performance result and the 2025 objectives;
2. The Report of the BOD for the 2020-2025 Term
and operational orientation for the term of 2025-
2030
5 3 i f
3. The Financial Statement for the wear 2024 Meeting
(audited); Oh00-10h50 Chairperson
4. The Appraisal report of the Company's BOS for
the term of 2020 - 2025;
5. The Proposals of the BOD, the BOS to be
approved at the Meeting.
5 Discussion and voting for the report and proposals
submitted to the GMS.
Meeting
Election of the BOD and the BOS members for the Chairperson,
7 | 2025-2030 term 10650-11h30 | <o Counting
Committee
B | Tea break 11h30-11h45
Announcement of voting results and election .
9 | results of members of the BOD and BOS for the | 11h45-11h55 | oo Counting
term of 2025 - 2030. mmitiee
The BOD and BOS hold the first meeting and
10 | announce the results of the election of the | 11h55-1Zhl0 BOD, 5B
Chairman of the BOD and the Head of the BOS
11 | Approval of Meeting Minutcs of the annual GMS | 12h10-12h15 | o620
12 | Meeting conclusion 12h15 m&n

ORGANIZATION COMMITTEE




PC1 GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIET NAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness

Hanoi, 03" April 2025.

REGULATION ON ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION OF
THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to:
- Law on Enterprise No. 59/2020/QH14 promulgated by the National Assembly of
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on 17% June 2020;
- Law on Securitics No. 54/2019/QH14 promulgated by the National Assembly of
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on 26" November 2019;
- Charter of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

CHAPTER 1
GENERAL PROVISONS

Article 1: Applicable scope and subjects.

1.1  This Regulation applies to the organization of the Annual General Meetings of
Shareholders (hereinafter referred to as the Meeting) of PC1 Group Joint Stock
Company (hereinafter referred to as the Company);

1.2  This Regulation specifies the rights and obligations of shareholders, authorized
persons attending the meeting, and parties involved in the Meeting, as well as the
conditions and procedures for conducting the Meeting.

1.3  Shareholders, authorized persons attending the meeting, and involved parties are
responsible for complying with the provisions of this Regulation.

CHAPTER IT
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE MEETING ATTENDEES

Article 2: Rights and obligations of shareholders or authorized representatives.
2.1 Conditions for Attending the Meeting,

Be shareholders or authorized representatives with written authorization from one
or more shareholders whose names are on the shareholder register of PC1 Group
Joint Stock Company as of the record date for attending the Meeting.

2.2 Rights of shareholders attending the Meeting.
a. To directly attend the Meeting or authorize another person to attend;

b. To discuss and vote on all matters within the Meeting's authority in accordance
with the Law on Enterprise, other relevant legal documents, and the Company’s
Charter;

g To be informed by the Organizing Committee of the Meeting's agenda, program,
and accompanying documents;

d. Each shareholder or authorized person attending the meeting, upon arrival at the
Meeting, shall receive a Voting Card after registering their attendance with the
Sharcholders’ eligibility verification committee;
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2.

f.

Sharcholders or authorized persons attending the meetings arriving late, before the
Meeting concludes, have the right to register and vote on matters not yet voted on.
In such cases, the chairperson is not obligated to pause the Meeting, and the
validity of prior votes is unaffected.

Obligations of shareholders attending the Meeting:

Shareholders or authorized persons attending the Meeting must bring their 1D
card/Passport/Citizen identification card, Meeting invitation, Valid power of
attorney (for authorized representatives), and register their attendance with the
Shareholders’ eligibility verification committee;

To maintain order and security and not cause disruption or chaos during the GMS;
Any recording or filming of the Meeting must be publiclsy announced and
approved by the Meeting;

To speak and vote in accordance with the guidance of the Meeting's Organizing
Committee and respect the Meeting Chairperson's direction;

To strictly comply with this Regulation and respect the Meeting's outcomes;

To provide information about related parties or parties with relevant interests to
the shareholder as requested by the Company.

Article 3: Rights and Obligations of the Shareholders’ eligibility verification committee.

3.1

k53

The Shareholders’ eligibility verification committee consists of 01 Head and
members appointed by the Chairman of the Board of directors (BOD) to perform
the following functions and duties:

Verify the eligibility of shareholders or authorized representatives attending the
Meeting: request shareholders and guests to present their [D card/Passport/Citizen
identification card, Meeting invitation, Valid power of attomey (for authorized
representatives);

Issue to shareholders or authorized attendees: Voting Cards and other relevant
meeting documents ;

Report to the Meeting on the results of verifying the eligibility of shareholders
attending the Meeting and the results of vote counting/ballot counting.

The Shareholders® eligibility verification committee has the right to establish a
working group to fulfill its duties,

Article 4: Rights and Obligations of the Vote counting committee.

4.1

4.2

The Vote counting committee consists of 01 Head and members nominated by the
Chair and approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Vote counting committec is responsible for guiding the use of voting cards,
voting procedures, and conducting vote counting, calculating, and excluding
related shareholders without voting rights (if any) for each voting matter. In cases
where the Vote counting committee cannot accurately identify related
shareholders without voting rights (due to lack of information or incomplete ot
unclear legal provisions), the votes of those shareholders shall still be counted, but
the Vote counting committee must record this in the minutes. The subsequent
identification of voting sharcholders as related parties without voting rights shall
not affect the validity of resolutions in which those shareholders participated, if
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4.3

4.4

4.5

the resolutions still receive the necessary votes after excluding the shares of those
related shareholders.

The Head of the Vote counting committee reports the vote counting results to the
Meeting;
The Vote counting committee has the right to establish a working group to fulfill
its duties;

The Vote counting committee is responsible for the accuracy and truthfulness of
the announced vote counting results.

Article 5: Rights and Obligations of the Chairperson, Presidium, and Secretary.

5.1

5.2

53

54
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5.5

3.6

- ¥

5.8

The GMS shall be chaired by the Chairman of the BOD. The Chair shall appoint
one or more Secretaries to prepare minutes of the GMS;

In the absence or inability of the Chairman of the BOD to chair the meeting, or in
the event of force majeure, the remaining members of the BOD shall elect one of
themselves to chair the Meeting. If the BOD fails to elect a Chairperson, the
highest-ranking BOD member present shall conduct the Meeting to elect one of
the BOD members or other sharcholders attending the Meeting to chair the
Meeting. In the election of the Chairperson, the nominated Chairperson's name
and the votes for the Chair must be announced;

The Chair's decision on matters of order, procedure, or events arising outside the
Meeting's agenda shall be final;

The Chair shall take necessary actions to conduct the Meeting lawfully and
orderly, or to reflect the wishes of the majority of attending shareholders;

Without seeking the Meeting's opinion, the Chairperson may adjourn the Meeting
to another location (in accordance with the Enterprise Law on Enterprise and the
Company's Charter) and at a different time decided by the Chairperson if it is
determined that:

The meeting venue does not have sufficient convenient seating for all attendees;

Attendees are engaging in obstructive or disruptive behavior, posing a nisk to the
fair and reasonable conduct of the meeting.

The Chairperson has the right not to answer or only acknowledge shareholders'
comments if the comments or suggestions are outside the Meeting's agenda.

The Chairperson has the right to request competent authorities to maintain order,
expel individuals displaying disruptive behavior, disobeying the Chairperson and
Presidium's direction, or obstructing the normal proceedings of the Meeting.

The Presidium includes members of the BOD and Company management officials
appointed by the Chairperson. The Presidium assists the Chairperson in
conducting the GMS.

The Meeting secretary is responsible for prepare minutes of the Meeting and
providing assistance as assigned by the Chairperson and the Presidium. The
Mecting secretary may have one or more assistants.
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CHAPTER IIT
MEETING PROCEDURES

Article 6: Quorum for the Meeting

6.1  The Meeting may proceed if the attending shareholders represent more than 50%
of the total voting shares according to the sharcholder register compiled as of the
record date for attending the Meeting. If, 60 minutes after the scheduled start time
of the Meeting as notified to shareholders, the number of shareholders registered
to attend the Meeting does not represent 50% of the total voting shares according
to the shareholder register compiled as of the record date, the Meeting shall be
deemed ineligible to proceed,

62 If the Meeting is not eligible to proceed as specified above, the subsequent

convening and conducting of the Meeting shall be carried out in accordance with
the Company's Charter and the Law on Enterprise.

Article 7: Conducting the Meeting

7.1  The Meeting shall proceed in accordance with the agenda approved by the
Meeting;

7.2  The Meeting shall discuss and approve the matters on the agenda in the voting
format specified in Article 10 of this regulation;

7.3  The Meeting shall be concluded after the Meeting minutes are approved.
Article 8: Passing Resolutions of the Meeting

8.1 Matters of the Meeting are passed when approved by shareholders representing
more than 50% of the total voting shares of all shareholders attending and voting
at the meeting;

82  Specifically, matters related to amendments and supplements to the Company's
Charter, increases or decreases in charter capital, types of shares and the number
of shares offered, mergers, reorganizations and dissolutions of the Company,
decisions to invest or sell Company assets or branches of the Company with a
value of 35% or more of the total asset value of the Company and its branches
recorded in the most recent audited Financial statements will only be passed with
the approval of shareholders representing 65% or more of the total voting shares
of all shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.

Article 9: Voting Cards

9.1 Voting cards issued to shareholders/authorized representatives of shareholders
attending the meeting shall include the shareholder's code and the number of
voting shares. Voting cards must bear the Company's seal;

9.2  The voting value of the voting card corresponds to the number of voting shares
held by that shareholder or the authorized representative of the shareholder
registered to attend the Meeting out of the total number of voting sharcs of the
shareholders/authorized representatives of shareholders present at the Meeting.

Article 10: Voting Method

10.1 Voting on matters at the Meeting will be conducted by direct public voting at the
meeting. Shareholders/authorized representatives of shareholders vote on the issue
by raising their voting cards. When voting, the front of the voting card with the
recorded "Mumber of shares” owned and/or represented must face the
Chairperson.

4/5



10.2 The Vote counting committee will record the number of votes in favor, the
number of votes against, and the number of abstentions to announce the voting
results to the Meeting.

Article 11: Speaking at the Meeting

Shareholders or authorized representatives attending the meeting who wish to
speak must raise their voting cards or register to speak. The Chairperson will
arrange the speaking schedule for shareholders based on the meeting agenda. The
Chairperson may give priority to shareholders who register to speak first and have
comments related to the meeting agenda. Comments should be brief and relevant
to the topic under discussion at the Meeting. Shareholders should not repeat
comments made by other shareholders, and only comments relevant to the meeting
agenda will be recorded in the meeting minutes.

CHAPTER IV
CONCLUSION OF THE MEETING

Article 12: Meeting Minutes

12.1 The content of the Meeting shall be recorded in the Minutes. The Chair and the
Secretary are responsible for the accuracy and truthfulness of the Meeting
Minutes.

122 The Meeting minutes must be announced to the Meeting and approved by the
Meeting before the Meeting concludes.

123 The Meeting minutes, Shareholders’ eligibility verification minutes, Vote
counting minutes, and other documents recording the proceedings and results of
the Meeting must be stored at the Company's head office.

124 The GMS's minutes must be published on the Company's website within twenty-
four (24) hours from the end of the meeting.

12.5 The Meeting minutes are the basis for issuing the Meeting's Resolution.
Article 13: Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders

13.1 Based on the results of the Meeting, the Chairperosn issues the Resolution of the
GMS on the matters approved by the Meeting.

13.2 Sharcholders or groups of shareholders have the right to request the Court or
Arbitration to review and invalidate part or all of the GMS’'s decision in
accordance with the provisions of Article 151 of the Law on Enterprise.

Article 14: Effect of the Regulation

This Regulation consists of 04 Chapters, 14 Articles and takes effect immediately
after being approved by the Meeting's vote.

ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL

Trinh Van Tuan
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3 E Sustainable Development

PC1 GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence- Freedom- Happiness

Hanoi, 03* April 2025

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2024 PERFORMANCE RESULTS AND 2025 OBJECTIVES

Respectfully to: The 2025 Annual general meeting of shareholders of PC1
Group Joint Stock Company

Part 1: 2024 Performance Results;
Part 2: Report on the activities of the BOD in 2024;
Part 3: 2025 Objectives;

Part 1
PERFORMANCE RESULTS 2024

I. General Assessment
The world socio-economic situation im 2024 with some key points:

- Global economic growth grew by about 3.2%, equivalent to the previous year,;
Scoop the stability unevenly across regions and countries.

- Global inflation decreased but remained high, from 6% in 2023 to 4.5% in
2024. However, this level is still higher than the target in many countries,
affecting consumer spending and investment.

- Monetary policy easing in many major economies, many central banks have
cut interest rates and relaxed financial conditions to support global economic
growth.

- The labor market is improving but still facing challenges: the global
unemployment rate is gradually decreasing, and there is even a shortage of
workers in some regions. However, many regions face challenges in terms of
job quality and wages

- Trade and geopolitical tensions between major powers and in some regions
continue to negatively impact global economic growth, requiring governments
to respond in their own way.

Socio-economic situation of Vietnam in 2024

- In 2024, Vietnam's GDP will increase by 7.09% compared to the previous
year, exceeding the target set by the National Assembly. In which, the industrial
and construction sector increased by 8.24%, but investment in renewable energy
and real estate is still difficult and stagnant.

- The total import and export turnover of goods increased sharply and reached
15.4% compared to the previous year, maintaining a trade surplus of 24.77
billion USD.

1 Report of the BOD - GMS 2025
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3 m;! Sustainable Development

- State budget revenue exceeded the estimate and reached VND 2,037.5 trillion,
equaling 119.8% of the annual estimate and increasing by 16.2% compared to
the previous year.

- Inflation is under control, the average Consumer Price Index (CPI) in 2024
will increase by 3.63% compared to the previous year, reflecting
macroeconomic stability.

- In 2024, the tourism industry has recovered strongly again; Vietnam's e-
commerce market has the world's leading growth,

I1. Plan Implementation Results in 2024

In 2024, the BOD is consistent with the goal of sustainable development on the
business pillars planned according to the Adaptive strategy.

Focus goals in 2024 on investment:

- Reliable operation and optimization of resources for: Power plants, Tan Phat
Mineral Company; NHIZ Industrial Park.

- Focus on developing new industrial parks and new real estate projects.
Develop a plan to complete legal procedures for outstanding real estate projects.

- Continue to update policies and develop Renewable energy projects according
to the revised power master plan VIIL

Focus goals in 2024 on EPC, construction and installation, production and
business:

- Specifying target products and target markets with selective priority according,
to PC1's competitive advantages;

- Focus on key projects, projects, and domestic strong contracts that PC1 is
interested in.

- To develop a number of selective international markets, establish subsidiaries
abroad to perform the role of contractors, EPCs for power projects, export of
power poles, research and investment in renewable energy.

- Complementary activities to create synchronous solutions to meet customers,
improve competitiveness, smart operation solutions, design and manufacture of
specialized machinery and equipment, commercial business, etc.

1. Some business targets in 2024:

The BOD has worked with the Board of management to always uphold the
sense of responsibility, creativity and professionalism. Closely assess the
situation, plan and control effective business activities.

Improve processes, adjust regulations, regulations and risk management,
improve initiative, responsibility and creativity for employees.

Be dynamic, adapt to favorable opportunities, handle arising problems in a
timely and effective manner.

2 Report of the BOD - GMS 2025
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Some of the Group's consolidated business targets in 2024 are achieved as
follows:

STT Index Unit Plan Implement | Results %
(TH/KH)
1 | Total Revenue Billion 10.822 10.089 93%
VND
2 | Profit after tax Billion it T10 135%
VIND
3 | Dividends Yo 15% 15% 100%%

Honorary awards in 2024 PC1 have been received:

- Top 500 largest enterprises in Vietnam (10th time in a row).

- Top 500 most profitable enterprises in Vietnam (8th time in a row)

- Top 20 Best Annual Reports in the Non-Financial Industry Group
*Some causes negatively affecting the 2024 plan:

i- Exchange rate difference affecting the accounting of PC1's USD loan;

ii. The slow disbursement of public investment in power infrastructure projects
affects the financial costs and contractual efficiency of PCI1.

iii- The deep decline in world non-ferrous metal prices reduces PCl's
consolidated business results.

iv- Statutory problems and licensing for real estate projects continue to delay the
investment plan of PC1.

vi. The inadequacies in the Power Plan VIII, on the unit price of construction of
the power sector, affecting the investment plan, the plan and the efficiency of the
construction and installation business.

2. Results of implementation in management:

The BOD and the BOM of the Group are capable, dynamic, enthusiastic,
innovative, creative, united and always adhere to the strategic goals for the 2021-
2025 period, analyze actual developments, macro factors, industries and markets
to make effective decisions and plans for investment and production and business
activities.

The employees, Blocks, Boards of the Group, and member companies have made
efforts to face difficulties, promote their strengths and competitiveness,
overcome great difficulties to affirn brand reputation and achieve business
targets.

Some of the outstanding general management activities:
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- Maintain the organizational chart and a set of reasonable operating regulations
and procedures. Policies to motivate the team's work motivation, especially the
strong decentralization mechanism and promote the proactive and creative role
of Leaders of Blocks and units in traditional business activities as well as new
business fields and overseas business activities.

- The training and development in 2024 will make very positive progress and
results, improve management capacity and maintain a long-term elite team.

- Innovation activities, application of advanced software technology, digital
transformation have achieved many practical results, forming a culture and
emulation movement in PC1, Many high-value initiatives have been honored and
applied effectively.

- Strengthen risk management activities in all project investment activities,
production and business, operation of member companies, international business
risks.

- Lean operation topics - LEAN implemented by PC1 Sustainable development
center in phase 1 has promoted improvement, increased productivity and obvious
economic efficiency.

- Implement welfare policies, remuneration regimes, working environment,
health and life for employees. Sports festivals, conferences, and PC1 Running
tournaments bring results and are attractive to employees.

M. Research and application of technology and development of
international cooperation

- PCl's team of engineers and technology continues to research, design,
manufacture, configure and install smart technology models and specialized
equipment such as: 10C Intelligent Operation Center for NHIZ Hai Phong
Industrial Park; Upgrading the undersea high-voltage submarine cable
construction robot and the submarine cable construction synchronous equipment
system; The topic of smart operation of the power grid, integrated power supply,
energy storage; Many research and application improvements in the management
and operation of successful and efficient manufacturing plants.

- The strategy of developing strategic partnerships and cooperation with
prestigious domestic and foreign corporations, companies or organizations in
technology, business specialties, and bank credit in 2024 has achieved many
positive results.

I'V. Increase of charter capital
During the year, it has completed an increase in the charter capital of PC1 in
2024 from VND3,109,955,580,000 to VND3,576,421,210,000 through the

payment of stock dividends according to the Resolution of the General meeting
of shareholders 2024,
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IV. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and ESG Sustainable
development

Implementing social responsibility and sustainable development is identified by
PC1 as a long-term development strategic orientation, this is not only an option
but will gradually become the norm and culture of PC1, in which:

|- Building a business strategy integrated with sustainable development:

- Setting growth targets, finance needs to go hand in hand with sustainable
development factors.

- Connecting the Group's core value chain: products, operations, human
resources, customers, etc. with CSR activities.

2. Governance activities towards ESG standards:

- Environment: PC1 throughout its business activities is associated with
responsibilities: reducing CO; emissions, saving energy, using green materials,
and treating waste according to regulations.

- Regarding society: Taking care of improving the lives of employees,
occupational safety, gender equality and community development.

- Governance: Operating the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors is
responsible, compliant, efficient and transparent.

3- Interaction with stakeholders and transparent reporting;

- Open dialogue with workers, customers, authorities, communities and
regulators.

- Update and communicate regularly to shareholders, partners, and the public.

- Publish periodic and transparent reports on sustainable development.

4- Innovation towards sustainability:

- In the selection, transformation of business models and in the innovation of
technology investment - PC1 always prioritizes choosing green, smart, energy-

saving models and technologies and advanced environmental protection
solutions.

5- Building a sustainable corporate culture:

- Currently, PC1 is prioritizing the development of PC1's progressive culture,
inspiring employees to live socially and community-responsibly.

- Internal training activities, strategy implementation, business development,
new products, and new markets all calculate and integrate sustainable
development values in each activity.

6~ Some typical activities on community responsibility and social security in
2024:

- Community responsibility: PC1 has signed a strategic cooperation agreement
with central hospitals. In 2024, the Center for Sustainable Development - PCI
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has successfully implemented the following funding projects: i- Improving
strategic management capacity and lean management thinking at Bach Mai
Hospital; ii- Supplementing medical equipment and consulting on
standardization, streamlining of the process system and surgical safety at the
Department of Anesthesiology and Resuscitation Surgery, National Hospital of
Obstetrics and Gynecology.

The above projects have brought meaning and practical value, contributing to
reducing overload, improving the quality of management, operation of medical
examination and treatment and health care for people at frontline hospitals,
which are highly appreciated by the board of leaders and the medical team.

- Many social security activities in regions to share difficulties with localities and
people such as:

+ Highland warming program, supporting the equipping of disadvantaged
students and families in Cao Bang province;

+ Provide financial, material, human and expert support to overcome the impact
of the historic storm - Yagi in the provinces of Cao Bang, Hai Phong, Quang Tri
and Hanoi.

+ Donating houses to poor households in Quang Ngai province;

+ Awarding a package of Computer Suppert - improving the quality of work for
employees of the Vietnam Fatherland People's Committee.

+ To mobilize means, machinery, equipment and human resources to overcome
landslides and floods caused by natural disasters and share difficulties in some
localities.

The Group's leaders are aware that the need to do well in CSR and sustainable
development is not only a trend and a responsibility, but also a role in improving
the competitiveness of PC1, creating the trust of the community, investors,
customer loyalty and employee engagement. promote PC1 for sustainable
development.
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Part 2
REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. General activities

The Board of Directors has strictly performed its functions and tasks in
accordance with the Law on Enterprises and the Group's Internal Regulations:
Planning major objectives and plans, deciding and approving contents according
to its authority, supervising and promoting the activities of the Executive Board
in implementing the objectives, plan according to the Resolution of the
Company's General meeting of shareholders 2024.

In 2024, the BOD has held 10 meetings and 22 written consultations, issued 55
resolutions and decisions to approve many important contents:

- Approve the 2023 operating results, the Group's 2024 production and business
plan, and submit it to the GMS;

- Approve the plan to issue shares to pay dividends in 2023;
- Adjust the Company's organizational chart and appoint personnel according to
the organizational chart; Change of Capital representatives in the subsidiaries.

- To restructure and rearrange the activities of member companies in the field
of electricity construction and installation (Phase 2 and Phase 3) and to issue the
Regulation on control of companies in this field.

- Investment; Contributing additional charter capital to project companies and
associated companies; Transfer of Thuong Ha Hydropower Project to a
Subsidiary; Participate in land use right auctions and invest in civil real estate
projects, eic.

- Establishment of an overseas subsidiary (Philippines).
2. Supervisory activities of the Board of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Charter, internal governance
regulations, regulations and current laws, the BOD has had specific supervision
activities:

- Chaired and successfully organized the Annual GMS 2024,

- Supervise the implementation of the issued Resolutions of the GMS and the
Board of Directors.

- Directing and supervising the implementation of projects invested by PC1 and
business investment activities of member companies in the Group.

- Regularly direct and supervise the implementation of business plans
periodically and irregularly when necessary.

- Organize and direct the strict implementation of the 2024 Financial
Statements, the 2024 Quarterly Financial Statements, and the Semi-Annual
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Financial Statements.

- Supervise and direct the implementation of information disclosure to ensure
transparency and timeliness in accordance with regulations.

The Board of Directors recognizes and appreciates the leadership,
administration, sense of responsibility, drastic and flexibility in implementing
the goals of the Board of Management.

In 2024, the Board of Management has effectively implemented business
strategies, maintained stability and growth and business results in the context of
many difficulties and fluctuations in the market. Effectively organize activities
to improve system management capacity such as: Training and development,
Development of PC1 culture, Policies to take care of life, movement, spirit and
health for employees.

3. Transactions between the Group and related parties

Transactions between the Group and related parties are carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Law on Enterprises, the Law on
Securities, the Charter and the Group's Internal Govemnance Regulations. The
list of transactions with related parties is compiled and presented in the 2024
Governance Report and the 2024 Audited Financial Statements.

4. Remuneration of the BOD

The 2024 annual General meeting of shareholders approved the resolution on
Remuneration of the BOD: Deduct a maximum of 1% of Consolidated profit
after tax, the remuneration of each member is decided by the BOD. Based on the
production and business results in 2024, the total remuneration of the Board of
Dil'ﬂ-ﬂtﬂ[ﬁ in Eﬂld is "l."'I"JD ﬁ [IrEI[l l]l]ﬂ Eﬂ{l [n whmh

1 | Mr. Tnnh Van Tuan = 39?5 [I[I[Il’.]ﬂﬂ
Chairman of the BOD
2 | Mr. Nguyen Minh De - 540,000,000
Member of the BOD
3 |Mr. Vo Hong Quang - 540,000,000
Member of the BOD
4 |Mr. Vu Anh Duong - 540,000,000
Member of the BOD
5 |Mr. Mai Luong Viet - 45,000,000 | Letter of resignation
Member of the BOD from 01/02/2024
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6 | Mr. Phan Ngoc Hieu - 360,000,000 | Elected to the BOD
Member of the BOD from 26/04/2024
Total 6,000,000,000
Part 3

MISSION AND PLANS IN 2025

1. General comments on socio-economic 2025

The world in 2025 will enter a "new normal" phase with the expectation of more
stable growth, but there are still many risks and complex fluctuations. Vietnam
has many opportunities to break through from the trend of supply chain
transformation, green transformation and digitalization. In particular, the trend
of Sustainable Development has covered and will be the main axis in policy and
strategy planning of the business community.

1. Forecast of global socio-economic trends in 2025

i- Global growth is forecast to recover slightly, but there are still many
challenges due to high interest rates and high public debt of many major
economies. Global GDP is forecast to grow by about 3.0-3.2%, mainly due to
improvements in advanced economies such as the United States and the EU and
the recovery in Asia.

ii- Forecast that the economic recovery momentum is not solid, Monetary policy
turns to loosen: Many central banks such as Fed, ECB ... It is forecast to starl
reducing interest rates in mid-2025, after inflation cools down - This will
support investment and consumption, which will have a positive impact on
global growth.

iii- Geopolitical tensions continue to be a major risk: US-China tensions, the
Russia-Ukraine conflict, the Middle East, tax policies and trade wars will
greatly affect supply chains, energy prices and market sentiment.

iv- Promoting green transition and sustainable development is a priority:
Countries should step up investment in renewable energy, clean technology, and

the circular economy to respond to climate change. ESG has become the
standard for evaluating global businesses.

v- Digital transformation - AT develops at a fast pace: Artificial intelligence Al,
automation and digital technology continue to explode, changing business
models and social management. This is creating challenges in terms of
employment and skills.

2. Vietnam's socio-economic forecast in 2025

In 2025, Vietnam will start the Era of Stretching, Innovation, Breakthrough and
Social Progress.

i- The GDP growth target in 2025 is 8% and from 2026-2030 is over 10%:
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Vietnam's economy aims to recover and accelerate, taking advantage of
opportunities from shifting supply chains and advantages from trade
agreements; from the strategy of focusing on public investment in many large-
scale key and essential infrastructure projects; From the effect of optimizing
social resources and creating new resources through institutional reform and
business environment.

{i- Continue to stabilize the macroeconomy: Maintain the CPI at a controlled
level of 4-4.5%, manage the exchange rate and interest rates flexibly. Budget
revenue, public investment, and FDI inflows are all expected to grow.

iii. Promoting green transformation and comprehensive digitalization: Building
a digital society, comprehensively digitizing state management activities;
Developing the digital economy creates a new impetus for growth; promote the
application of digital technology in all industries and fields, create new business
models.

The trend of green growth, green production and consumption, environmental
protection.

iv. Social security, education and health policies are given priority: Improve the
quality of human resources, promote innovation. Increase spending on
vocational education, grassroots health and social welfare.

v. The strong revolution in streamlining the organizational apparatus of the
political system, and at the same time with the new spirit of building laws and
encouraging creativity, liberation and unleashing all resources - are the basic
factors to create a driving force for development.

I1. Business investment plan in 2025

Based on the forecast of the general international and domestic situation, of the
industry, the actual starting point of PC1, the 2025 plan needs to clearly identify
priority business pillars, optimize the investment portfolio, effectively prioritize
the allocation of resources, solutions to create new resources, etc improving the
capacity of general contractors and digital transformation while building a
strategy to integrate ESG and risk management will be the key for the 2025 PCI1
plan to achieve results and connect long-term development.

1. Identify opportunities and challenges
1.1 Opportunities for PC1 in 2025
- Energy transition policy and green growth policy;

- The Government promotes public investment and development of energy
infrastructure;

- The trend of shifting supply chains to Vietnam;
- Grreen credit and international capital to support clean energy enterprises;
- Digital transformation of Al applications in industry and project management.
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1.2 Major challenges PCI faces:

- Geopolitical fluctuations and input costs;

- Difficult access to capital and investment cash flow;

- Legal procedures are still slow, especially with energy and real estate;

- Fierce competition in the field of general contracting and energy investment;
- Pressure to transform ESG and transparency in operations

2. Orientations and tasks on production and business:

- The Group approves business plans with each Block, member companies,
challenging but feasible and effective targets.

- Continue to improve internal mechanisms, regulations and processes to ensure
the management of all activities and be open and streamlined - creating a driving
force for development.

- Creating common foundation resources of the system in: Leadership vision,
strategy, organizational culture, strategic relations, elite team, technology -
patents - copyright, finance - assets,

- Always innovating, applying advanced technology, competitiveness.
- Improve an attractive and civilized working environment to create motivation.

- Ability to adapt, be flexible, stay ahead of trends and fluctuations to ensure
efficiency and safety.

- Risk management and sustainable development.
3. Main business targets in 2025

In 2025, identified as the year of accelerating the completion of strategic targets
for the period of 2021 - 2025 and creating a premise for the development of
strategies for the period of 2026 - 2023, PC1 sets the following plan targets:

STT Quota Unit Plan Ratio to 2024
(%)

1 | Total Revenue Billion VIND 13,395 133%

2 | Profit after tax Billion VND 836 118%

3 | Dividends Vo 15% 100%

IIL. Orientation of the BOD's mission in 2025
The BOD is responsible for effective governance, leading the Group to develop
sustainably, transparently and intemationally competitively.

The BOD plans strategies, orients vision, controls risks, builds trust with
investors, shareholders and the community, supports and promotes the Executive
board to be proactive, creative, transparent and effective.
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1. Group development strategy:

- Assume the prime responsibility for formulating and approving the PCI
Strategy for the 2025-2030 period with a vision to 2045;

- Identify the vision, mission, core values, business strategies, investment,
restructuring, etc., sustainable development trends - ESG, digital transformation,

green development.

- Promote the 2025 business goals to closely follow and connect long-term
strategies.

2. Supervision of business operations and efficiency:

- Supervise the Executive Board on the implementation of the approved
objectives.

- Periodic assessment of growth, profit, cash flow, risk, ete.
- Review and adjust important plans, objectives, and management solutions.
3. Financial and investment control:

- Approving budgetary and financial plans, major investments, mergers and
acquisitions, etc. periodically and by project.

- Control the indicators of finance, assets and capital sources, ensuring the
effective and safe use.

4. Risk management and internal control:

- Approve and supervise risk management and internal audit activities.

- Control and handle major financial, legal, market, reputational risks...
- Check compliance with laws and business ethics standards.

5. Ensure transparent and professional corporate governance:

- Assign tasks to members of the BOD, evaluate implementation results.

- Fully fulfill administrative responsibilities, ensure information disclosure and
transparency.

6. To develop high-level human resources with quality, solidarity and
integrity:

- To develop and appoint leadership and management positions at all levels
according to regulations;

- Develop policies, salary and bonus regimes, ESOPs, KFIs, etc. creating long-
term motivation for the leadership and management team.

7. Integrating ESG and sustainable development factors:
- Orient the business according to ESG standards, publish sustainability reports.

- Approving social responsibility (CSR) programs, green transformation, ethical
and cultural governance.
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Above is the entire performance evaluation report in 2024 and the goals for 2025
that the Board of Directors respectfully submits to the Meeting.

We look forward to receiving positive comments and responsibilities from the
Meeting and shareholders to help the Board of Directors and the Group's
management continue to promote their responsibilities and capacity to
successfully implement the 2025 goals and the next strategic roadmap. PC1 is
successful, prosperous, fast-growing, and sustainable.

Sincerely,

ON BEHALF OF
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Creating Outstanding Value
PC1 GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence- Freedom- Happiness

Haroi, 03" April 2025

REFPORT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PERFORMANCE FOR THE TERM 2020-2025
AND ORIENTATION FOR THE TERM 2025-2030

Respectfully to:
The General meeting of shareholders 2025 of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

- Part 1: Assessment of the performance of BOD for the term 2020-20235;
- Part 2: Orientation for the activities of BOD for the term 2025-2030;

Part 1
PERFORMANCE OF THE BOD FOR THE TERM 2020-2025

I. General assessment of socic-economic developments:
I- International Confext:

- The world economy after COVID 19 has recovered slowly due to inflation and high
interest rates.

- In terms of geopolitics, instability increases in many regions of Russia and Ukraine;
1JS-China; Gaza Strip, etc.

- Regarding policies and opportunities: The world prioritizes green consumption
production policies, digital transformation and the trend of supply chain autonomy.

- Major global risks are inflation, conflict, and climate change.

2- Vietnamese factors.

- The economy recovers after COVID-19 with GDP in 2021: 2.6%, 2022: §%, but
difficult and slows down in 2023: 5.1% due to weak international market demand;
inflation, high exchange rates and interest rates, limited financial resources, 2024:
7.09%.

- In terms of geopolitical influence, Vietnam is relatively stable and has advantages
due to the trend of shifting global supply chains;

- Regarding Vietnam's policies and opportunities, prioritize digital transformation,
green consumption production, support for FDI and processing industries, public
investment in infrastructure development, energy, logistics, and eco-industrial parks.

- Vietnam's major risks of fiscal pressure; corporate bonds; corporate finance; not
keeping up with the world in terms of digital transformation and Al; inadequacies in
institutions, policies and regulations on investment in the field of real estate
investment; great difficulties to the construction and installation industry.
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11. Activities of the BOD for the term 2020-2025:

1. Board of Directors Personnel

PC1's the BOD for the term 2020-2025 consists of 5 members, the Chairman of the
BOD does not concurrently hold executive positions from 1% December 2021, the
structure of the BOD members ensures that 2/3 of the members of the BOD do not
operate. In 2024, change 01 member of the BOD - Mr. Mai Luong Viet due to
resignation, specifically:

Creating Otstanding Value

STT Full name Duty Notes

Chairman of the

Mr. Trinh Yan Tuan

BOD

Non-executive members

2 | Mr. Yu Anh Duong Member of the BOD
3 | Mr. Vo Hong Quang | Member of the BOD
4 | Mr. Nguyen Minh De | Member of the BOD

Non-executive members.

5 | Mr. Mai Luong Viet | Member of the BOD | Letter of resignation from
01/02/2024
Non-executive members.

6 | Mr. Phan Ngoc Hieu | Member of the BOD | Elected to the BOD from
26" April 2024

2. Activities of the Board of Directors

In the 2020-20235 term of office, the BOD has upheld the responsibility to implement
the Company's governance tasks in accordance with the PC1 Development Strategy
2020-2025 with a vision to 20335, flexibly, adapt and adjust the Strategy in accordance
with the complex and difficult socio-economic context. All activities comply with
laws and regulations and the company's charter.

Summary of key activities of the BOD for the term 2020 - 2025

- The BOD has assigned tasks to members, implemented methodical and professional
strategic planning, led the Group's development strategy, adjusted, improved and
approved management regulations to meet the actual requirements of production and
business activities.

- Approving the PC1 strategy for the period of 2021-2025 and promptly adjusting and
adapting to new developments in the Group's long-term investment objectives.

- Investment orientation, project investment approval, development of new projects
according to its competence. Directing, supporting and supervising the BOD, business
divisions and subsidiaries to effectively implement investment and business activities.
Ensure the interests of the Company and shareholders according to the Company's
targets approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Organizing the annual GMS; serious and quality regular meetings; make reports and
submit contents according to the competence of the GMS for approval in accordance
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with the law and the Company's Charter; report and satisfactorily explain the contents
that shareholders are interested in.

- The BOD supervises the disclosure of information in accordance with the provisions
of law and information on the company’s production and business activities, in order
to provide accurate and timely information to sharcholders and investors.

3. Summary of meetings, opinions, and resolutions, decisions of the BOD in the
years:

First 3
Content 2020 | 2021 2022 | 2023 | 2024 months
of 2025
_Maetings and Written
Ballots 30 26 27 18 32 06
Resolutions and
Decisions [ssued a4 38 A 3 55 8

I Performance result of Board of Directors
1. Planning and implementing PC1's Strategy

- Phased development strategy 2021-2025 with a vision to 2030 developed by PCI1
and KPMG strategic consultants.

- Strategy is focused by: Balance between long-term vision, sustainable competitive
advantage, and ability to execute effectively. In which, the Group and the Blocks
clearly define the strategic framework, objectives, targets, methods and tools to serve.

- The process of implementing the strategy for the 202 1-2024 period has encountered
many rapid fluctuations and great difficulties from the macroeconomy, the electricity
industry, the real estate sector due to inadequacies and obstacles arising from
investment policies, laws and barriers of the VIII power scheme. The key business
sectors that PC1 focuses on during this period have stalled.

- Facing a difficult situation, the BOD and the Group's Managment have creatively
and promptly adjusted major strategic activities, including:

i- Fxpand investment in renewable energy, pivot resource investment to develop
industrial parks. Energy projects that are preparing to invest will be extended, waiting
for appropriate investment opportunities.

ii- Develop the international market for the EPC Block and the Industrial Production
Block;

iii. Focus on handling legal procedures for housing real estate prajects that are being
delayed, and at the same time develop new projects.

1, Capital Development:

- Charter capital as of 31t December 2024 is VND 3,576 billion, an increase of 1.87
times compared to 31% December 2020.

- Total assets as of December 31, 2024 are VND 20,988 billion, an increase of 1.96
times compared to December 31, 2020.

Unit: Billion VND
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|
Index | 31/12/2020 | 31/12/2021 | 31/12/2022 | 31/12/2023 | 31/12/2024
Charter 1,912 2.352 2704 3,110 3,576
capital
Equity 4,770 6.281 7.173 7,148 1716
Total assets 10,722 18,687 21,754 20,175 20,988

3. Annual Business performance:

In the period of 2021 - 2024, the average annual revenue growth will reach 10.83%,
the average annual profit after tax growth: 6.66%.

Index Unit | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024

Revenue Bilion | 6679| o8| s358| 7.694| 10089
}Eﬂm“ dmg‘;ﬁ‘ fresis saa| 64|  s37| 182|710
Dividends % 0% |  15%|  15%|  15%| 15%
Tax Contribution | o) 20| es7|  418|  608| .

4. Project investment activifies:

Long-term investment is a key activity and directly affects the capital, assets, and

medium- and long-term business performance of PC1. Based on the PC1 strategy for

the 2021-2025 period, the BOD has decided to flexibly adjust the investment portfolio

in accordance with state policies and the market, the results have achieved positive

levels such as:

4.1. Energy Invesiments

a. Wind power investment: In October 2021 - PCI has successfully completed and
generated electricity for 03 wind power plants in Quang Tri.

- Capacity: 144 MW

- Total investment: 6,079,411,708,000 VIND

- Reliable operation and investment efficiency.

b. Commencement of investment in 02 hydropower plants in Cao Bang in the 4th
quarter of 2024:

- Bao Lac A Hydropower Plant: 30 MW

- Shanghai Hydropower Plant: 13 MW

- 02 NM power generation plan: Q4/2026

¢. Continue to develop wind and solar power projects waiting for the right time to
invest.

4.2. Investment in industrial park infrastructure

- In 2021, the Group develops investment in the field of industrial park infrastructure
through the investment in buying 30% of contributed capital in Western Pacific Group

Page 4 of 15 Report of the BOD - GMS 2025-2030



3 i Bckishin Creating Chiisianding Value

Joint Stock Company - a company specializing in investing in industrial parks,
logistics and smart warehouscs.

- In 2022, PC1 successfully acquired 70% of the contributed capital in Nomura
Industrial Park Development Company - Hai Phong (now Japan Industrial Park
Development Company - Hai Phong), through the transfer of 70% of the Company's
capital from Nomura Holding - Japan.

- On December 31, 2024, the Government approved the Decision on investment policy
for Nomura - 2 Project (# 200 hectares) for Hai Phong International Industrial Park
Joint Stock Company - a subsidiary of PC1. Currently, the project is implementing
land clearance and is expected to start construction in the third quarter of 2025,

4.3. Residential Real Estate Investment

- In the period of 2021-present, due to general problems in policies and legal
regulations granting project investment procedures, the Real Estate Investment Board
concentrates: i- Complete the land legal documents of the Projects; ii- Planning of
projects and land plots under the management of PCI; iii. Hiring consultants for
training and assessing the market situation; iv. To prepare necessary dossiers and
procedures to be ready to apply for licenses; v/ To seek opportunities for the
development of new projects; vi- Shifting the management staff of the Board to
develop and manage industrial park investrment projects.

- In October 2024, the Golden Tower - Gia Lam Project (1.5 hectares) will be started,
expected to be sold and handed over in its entirety in 2025,

4.4. New Minerals and Materials

[n 2023, Tan Phat Mineral Joint Stock Company - A subsidiary of PC1 has completed
the production of Factory No. 1: Nickel - Copper in Cao Bang. In 2023 and 2024, Tan
Phat Company will operate stably, safely and reliably. Mining, mineral selection and
export activities all comply well with the provisions of the law. Business results
achieve investment efficiency.

5. Business Unit Operations:

- In the business conditions during this term, there are many difficulties in terms of
market, unit price and cost, employment - EPC General Contractor Block, Electrical
and Industrial Block, Production Block, Commercial Board, member companies have
made continuous efforts to overcome difficulties;

- Always updating, evaluating and identifying, choosing the right playground, along
with innovation, investing in new technological eguipment, advanced management
software, expanding new markets, coordinating the strength of the ecosystem Lo
maintain and develop the business;

- Continue to affirm the capacity, brand and reputation of PC1 firmly - reliably.

- Developing successful and potential international markets;

- Over the years, strength, capacity, scale and professionalism continue to develop.
6. Corporate Governance & Operations Management

- During the term of office, the BOD has oriented, approved, and submitted for
approval the restructuring of the organizational chart of PC1 Parent and subssidiaries
according to the Group model; Rearranged member construction and installation
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companies to meet development goals; Relisbly manage business activities,
strengthen governance and internal audit at units.

- Organizing the design, announcement and operation of the PC1 mew brand
identity: Affirming the position and prestige of PC1 on the path of development and
integration; Message of international vision, aspiration to conquer new heights and
confidently reach out to the world; Positively improve the aesthetics, impression,
expericnce of partners, customers and the community of the modern, international,
friendly and timeless PC1 brand.

- Continue to develop and affirm the prestige and position of PC1 in the pillar
business fields;

- International cooperation: Stcadfastly develop intemational cooperation with
traditional partners, expand new partners in technology and equipment for business in
Australia, the Philippines, China, etc.

- Investing in technology development, promoting Inmovation and digital
transformation activities throughout the Group.

+ The innovation culture of the whole Group with hundreds of valuable initiatives
and improvements has been honored, rewarded and put into application. Typical
successful examples implemented by PC1 engineers are: i- Designing, manufacturing
and effective operation of underground cable digging robots at sea; ii- Design and
manufacture of synchronous equipment system for cable construction high-pressure
submarines at sea; iii- Configuration and installation of the OCC Intelligent Operation
Center at the Group's office; 10C Industrial Park Intelligent Operation Center in NHIZ
- Hai Phong.

+ PC1 Digital Transformation Board and ITS member companics have been
implementing many researches, technology applications, and advanced software
for general management; Applying intelligent integration solutions in controlling grid
operations and types of renewable energy sources.

- Developing welfare policies, remuneration regimes, working environment, and life
health for employees has a very positive meaning for employees and employees. In
the last 02 years, PC1 has received the title of "Best Workplace in Asia” by HR Asia
Magazine - Asia's leading prestigious magazine in the field of human resources
selection and publication.

- Promote activities to communicate the company's cultural values through exchange
and employvee engagement programs; emulation and reward policies and movements
to create more motivation for employees, associate income with business results and
labor productivity. Promptly reward and encourage employees to be enthusiastic and
creative for the Group's development goals.

- Focus on improving the quality of human resources, training and developing
human resources to meet the Group's long-term business strategic goals.

Creating Ouistanding Value

- Tmprove the quality of communication with professional and official
communication channels, transmitting positive information to partners, customers,
investors and the community. Be serious and responsible in investor relations.

7. Contribution to the State and Social Responsibility

Social responsibility and sustainable development have been throughout strategic
planning, are being implemented synchronously and seriously in all production and
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husiness activities in the Group, becoming the culture of each PC1 person.

7.1 State budget contribution:

The total value of state budget contributions in 2024 is 1,476 billion, 5 times higher
than in 2020,

7.2 Social Responsibility:

PC1 Group always considers social responsibility as an important part of its
sustainable development strategy, so PC1 constantly implements social responsibility
activities to make a positive contribution to the community. The Group has supported
disaster recovery, donated medical equipment, and participated in social security
programs, cte. Through a business development plan and commitment to the
community, PC1 aims for sustainable development, contributing to improving the
quality of life for people and protecting the environment.

a. Community responsibility

In recent years, PC1 and the hearts of the Group's employees have supported many
billions of VND for meaningful activities such as:

- Participate in the construction of schools and clinics in localities with many
difficultics, contributing to improving educational and health conditions for the
community in Cao Bang province (2020).

- Highland Warming Program in Cao Bang province (2020).

- Supporting the prevention and control of the Covid-19 epidemic through the
Fatherland Front Committee of Hanoi City, the Fatherland Front Committee of
districts of Cao Bang province, Quang Tri province (in 2020).

- Donate to support affected communities and contribute to natural disaster mitigation
in Huong Hoa district, Quang Tri province and mobilize machinery, equipment and
human resources to participate in natural disaster rescue in the same locality (in 2020).
- Supporting the Covid-19 Vaccine Fund of the Hanoi People's Committee and the
Covid-19 Prevention and Control Fund of Tien Giang Provinee (in 2021).

- Donation of a house of love in Long An provinee (in 2021).

- Organizing the Mid-Autumn Festival fun program and awarding scholarships to
encourage children in extremely difficult circumstances with high academic
achievements for students in mountainous areas in Quang Tri province (in 2021).

- Renovation of residential roads in Huong Hoa - Quang Tri district, Hoa An district,
Cao Bang province (in 2022)

_ Build a new school site in Ba Co commune, Bao Lac district and donate 50 gratitude
houses in Cao Bang provinee (in 2022).

- Supporting the Fund for the Poor of Hanoi City (2022).

- Supporting the "For the Poor" Fund in Cao Bang province to build 100 houses for
poor households (in 2023).

- Donating desktops and laptops to the Vietnam Fatherland Front (in 2024).

- Participate in supporting the repair of damages for households severely affected by
Typhoon Yagi in Cao Bang province and the Northern provinces (in 2024).

- Highland Warming Program in Cao Bang province (2024).

- Donating houses to poor households in Quang Ngai provinee (in 2024).

Creating Outstanding Value
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- Especially in 2024, the Group has signed a strategic cooperation with Bach Mai
Hospital, Central Hospital of Obstetrics and Gynecology, whereby PC1 Sustainable
Development Center has successfully, effectively and practically implemented 02
sponsorship projects:

+ Project to improve strategic management capacity and lean management
thinking at Bach Mai Hospital. Training for 3,700 medical staff and doctors.

+ Consultancy project on standardization, streamlining of the process system,
surgical safety at the Department of Anesthesiclogy and Resuscitation, National
Hospital of Obstetrics and Gynecology.

+ 02 projects have contributed to improving the quality and efficiency of management
and operation, reducing pressure and overload for medical staff, improving the quality
of medical examination and treatment and health care for people, which are highly
appreciated by the Hospital's Board of Directors.

b. Environmental Responsibility

Tn all investment and business activities of PCL, it is throughout the responsibility of
pioneering environmental protection solutions along with advanced technology and
smart operation.

¢. Number of awards and emulation in the period:

- Top 500 largest enterprises in Vietnam in 2024 (10 consecutive years).

- Top 500 most profitable enterprises in Vietnam in 2024 (8 consecutive years).

- Top 20 Best Reports in the Non-Financial Industry Group (2024).

- Top 50 Excellent Profit Enterprises in Vietnam in 2023 (05 consecutive years).

- TOP 50 best listed enterprises in Vietnam (2017,2019, 2020, 2022) voted by Forbes.
- FAST 500 (in 2021).

- Top 50 Best Growth Enterprises in Vietnam (2021).

- Emulation Flag of Hanoi City People's Committee, First-class Emulation Flag of
Quang Tri Provincial People's Committee, Certificate of Merit of Vietnam General
Confederation of Labor, Certificate of Merit of Hanoi City People's Committee in
contributing to supporting the prevention and control of the COVID-19 epidemic.

- Typical Renewable Energy Project of the Year Award by 1JGlobal Magazine
(Singapore) (2022).

- Award for Industrial Real Estate Developers with Green Transformation Strategy in
2024.

8. Supervision of the Executive Board

The Board of Directors supervises the Executive Board to implement and implement
the Group's strategy; Supervise and cvaluate business results on a weekly basis;
Monitoring the process of risk management and internal audit; Supervise compliance
with the provisions of the law and internal regulations of the Group. In the past term,
the Executive board under the direction and supervision of the Board of Directors has
made efforts and successfully completed the assigned tasks in the conditions of
production and business still have many difficulties, business capacity and
management have been improved.
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C’remﬁ_:g Chastanding Value
Part 2
OPERATIONAL ORIENTATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR
THE TERM 2025-2030

I. Forecast of the world and domestic economic situation in the period of 2025-
2030

1. International context

- Geopolitical tensions and conflicts in some regions are still complicated, supply
chain disruptions and negative impacts on the global economy.

- The protectionist policies of the United States, major countries, and Europe lead to
trade wars, making the world economy face more difficulties and challenges.

- The speed of development and application of digital technology and artificial
intelligence is wider and faster than ever before, which is having a profound impact
on all aspects of society.

- Climate change, green development, green consumption production are trends and
also global responsibilities.

- Global GDP growth is forecast to increase slightly over 3% per year.

- Inflation tends to decrease, promoting loose monetary policy and leading to a
reduction in the US dollar interest rate.

2. Vietnam's socio-economic context

Vietnam is steadfast in developing a socialist-oriented market economy, deep
international integration and making specific new adjustments.

- By 2025, Vietnam will implement the "revolution on streamlining the organizational
apparatus of the political system", institutional and legal reform, in which:

+ Considering the 3 biggest bottlenecks at present, namely institutions, infrastructure
and human resources, in which institutions are the "bottlenecks of bottlenecks", they
will have to focus on solving.

+ To formulate laws in the direction of both ensuring the requirements of state

management and encouraging creativity, releasing all production capacity and

unleashing all resources for development.

- National Al and Argument Shifting

+ Building a digital society, comprehensively digitizing state management activities.

+ Developing the digital economy to create a new impetus for growth; promaote the

application of digital technology in all industries and ficlds, create new business

models.

- National Guideline 2025: THE BEGINNING OF AN ERA OF SELF-ESTEEM.
" Innovation, Breakthrough, Development and Social Progress"

- GDP growth target by 2025: 8% from 2026-2030, it will grow by 2 digits.

+ Vietnam will continue to be an attractive destination for FDI attraction in 2023 and

the following years.

+ Demand for growth and investment in national electricity infrastructure will
increase at a high level with many new policies and technologies in the coming period.
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Creating Outstanding Value

# Public investment continues to increase, population income increases, room growth
opportunities are good for the housing real estate market and industrial park demand

and infrastructure.

I1. PC1 strategic objectives for the period of 2025 - 2030
1. Vision, Mission, Core Values

PC1l creates a  green,
digitalized and sustainable
economic ecosystem;
accompanying the country in
the new era.

h_
o

International,  prestigious,
professional in the feld of
energy, greem & smart
industry.

Creativity - Speed -
Reliability
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2. PC1's Business Pillars
2.1 Overview of PC1's Business Areas:

PC1 with the model of Parent - Subsidiary operating in the ficlds of Energy, Industry
and Real Estate Business investment:

- Energy Sector:
+ Imvestment in renewable energy plants;
+ EPC and construction and installation of renewable energy projects and power
grids;
+ Technological solutions on energy storage and saving;
+ Smart solutions and automatic control of power plants and power grids.
- Industry Sector:
+ Investment in infrastructure of ecological industrial parks;
+ Factories designing and manufacturing electric poles and mechanical
components;
+ High-tech mineral processing plants;

- Regarding investment and business, prestigious and professional residential real
estate with projects and products with synchronous, modem, environmentally
friendly utilities and different energy savings.

2.2 Core business pillars:

To be a pillar of building a sustainable and stable foundation; Creating high added
value and long-term strength for the Group, including:

- Energy investment;
Investment in industrial park infrastructure;
Investment in the field of mineral processing;
Unique, specialized technology solutions.
2.3 Strategic business pillars:
To be the pillar for the implementation of specific business goals in the medium
and long term; Easy to be flexible, easy to change according to the market context;
Meeting the goal of market expansion; Product innovation and lean operation,
including:
- Investment in residential real estate business;
- EPC General Contractor;
- Electrical and Industrial Construction;
- Industrial production;
- Commercial business,
3, Target orientation of PC1 for the period of 2026-2030
3.1 General objectives:
CREATING OUTSTANDING VALUE
PCI Brand, Prosperity and Social Responsibility Development

Creating Outstanding Value
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Revenue increased by an average of 15-18%/year, profit margin
Growth remained >10%. By 2028, the company's value will reach 1 billion
USD: in 2030, the company's value will reach 1.5 billion UUSD.

Owning > 800 MW, developing smart, energy-efficient services and

Energy solutions.

Ind Export + business revenue in the international market averages >200
million USD/year, meeting green & high-tech standards.

Real Estate Dew.}npmg ecological real estate, integrating energy, smart,
sustainable growth.

Administation ESG standardization, comprehensive digital transformation, lean

and effective organization.

3.2- Corporate governance framework
The Group plans and leads the overall development strategy of the Ecosystem:

- Goal-oriented management: Innovation, Creativity, Technology; Breakthrough and
Efficiency

- Strong decentralization, accompanied by Support Management Mechanisms and
Trust Control Mechanisms.

- Control mechanism on business results and risks through the mechanism of Self-
Control and Compulsory Control.

4. Evaluate the influencing factors

4.1- Context of PC1 in the period of 2023 - 2030

Implementing the 2025-2030 general plan, PC1 Group spreads a positive spirit,
aiming for more challenging goals, creating great success and a lot of meaning of this
strategic period with many special opportunities, evaluation factors:

i- Development training

- The Board of Directors has Vision, Leadership Capacity, Aspiration along with the
value system of "Wisdom - Energy - Ethics®;

- Elite team: Professional, creative, responsible, ready and reliable;

- Technology, information, and AI are constantly upgrading;

ii, Internal procedures:

- Meet the management of activities, encourage creativity and promote the
effectiveness of resources.

iii. Clients,

- Affirming the reputation and brand of PC1;

- Always create new products, new competitive characteristics, new values.

- Customer relations are increasingly improving prestige, image and trust.

iv. Finance

- Financial capacity is controlled and constantly growing,;
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- Allocation, use and control of investment capital,
- Increase the efficiency of capital use and asset efficiency.
4.2- Opportunities from the macro-sector:

- Trends in the development of remewable energy, investment in electricity
infrastructure, clean industry,

- Supply chain shifts: opportunities for industrial production & industrial real estate.
- The policy of greening - digitization - urbanization creates room for urban real estate
and infrastructure.

4.3- Main challenges:

- Significant capital pressures on energy infrastructure and real estate projects.

- Competition is increasingly fierce with domestic and international markets.

- High requirements for ESG, financial transparency, and modern govemance
standards.

- Environmental risks and climate change.

- Fluctuations in policy and legal and material costs.
5. Basic solutions for the 2025-2030 period

In order to realize the strategic goals set out in 2025 - 2030, the Group needs to
implement a system of basic, synchronous, strategic, transparent and breakthrough
solutions on 5 major groups of solutions: Investment, Technology, Organization,
Finance and Management below:

Creating Outstanding Value

5.1 Group of investment solutions and industry orientation:

i- Restructuring investment portfolios with focus - efficlency - sustainability:

- Focus on investing in areas with attractive profit margins and long-term trends: clean
energy; Eco-industrial parks; Real estate with integrated utilities and energy saving;
Deep-processed minerals - Green production; EPC integrates synchronous solutions;
- Divestment, transfer, reduction of proportion in fragmented fields and projects, low
cfficiency, not associated with the core value chain.

- Prioritize the investment cooperation model with strategic partners to share capital,
supplement capacity and reduce risks.

ii. Development of an interdisciplinary integrated ecosystem:

- Chain integration solution: Energy investment — real estate development, industrial
parks using clean energy — industrial production — EPC general contractor.

- Building a model: Industrial park - energy - Smart, optimizing asset use efficiency -
Cooperation with foreign investment in the same industry group.

5.2 Group of solutions on technology - innovation - digital transformation:

i - Promoting comprehensive digital transformation

- Promote investment and improve the platform: Data Lake; WHO; KPIs; OKR;
ERF... to manage data throughout the Group.

- Developing platforms 1o serve customers and partners: BIM, Customer Portal,
Digital EPC...

- Integrating technology into the production - investment - operation chain: BIM, Al,
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SCADA, etc.
fi- Application of technology in energy operation, industrial parks and production
- Intelligentize and digitize power plants, industrial parks and industrial production,

Creating Cutstanding Value

- Develop and apply smart solutions in storing, saving and operating forms of
renewable energy according to the model of Microgrids, Smart Grids, etc.

5.3 Group of solutions on organization - personnel - culture:

i- Continue to restructure the t'c model in the direction of a flexible and innovative
Group:

- Consider innovating the current model, or Holding... in line with reality, creating a
new impetus for development and promotion of multiple resources.

- Setting up a management system according to the OGSM, KFPI, OKR strategy, etc.
advanced and transparent.

fi- Development of high-quality human resources

- Develop the "PC1 Learning - Development Culture” with a methodical and effective
training strategy on Senior and Middle Level Management, Technological Capacity,
Financial Management, Expertise, and ESG Integration.

- Aftracting young and elite personnel with a modern - innovative - transparent
environment.

iii- Development of Progressive Culture PCI

- The culture of "One PC1" cohesives and resonates between industries in the
ecosysiem, promoting: Innovation, dare to think - dare to do - dare to be responsible.

- Human characteristics of PCOner culture carries the philosophy of Humanity - Trust
- Guest - Bright - Effective and complies with the behavioral standards of
Specialization - Integrity - Harmony - New - Sustaimable 1o the whole sysiem.

5.4. Group of solutions on finance - capital - strategic cooperation

i- Diversifying capital sources in the direction of long-term - green - efficiency

- Mobilize capital from investment funds, infrastructure funds, green credit, and

sustainable bonds. Participating in intemational projects with development partners
such as ADB, IFC, JICA...

- Investment cooperation, calling for new investors to contribute investment capital to
large-scale projects.
fi- Strengthening strategic cooperation at home and abroad

- Cooperate with partners with technology, markets, and finance for rapid and
sustainable development.

- Expand EPC/IPP cooperation with foreign companies in Vietnam and in the
international market.

5.5 Group of solutions on corporate governance - ESG - legal

The goal of modern governance of the whole PC1 system is based on the following
factors: Transparency - Responsibility - Fairness - Sustainability. Operating on a
technology platform and complying with international standards through:

- Establish a professional management system;
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- Standardize the reporting system according to ESG, strengthen nsk management
along with developing corporate culture,

ESG standard management helps PCl improve sustainable competitiveness and
increase attractiveness for investors.

Thus, the PCI Strategy for the period of 2026 - 2030 does not only stop at financial
goals, but will integrate:

- High growth, ensuring sustainability;

- Flexible adaptability, improving innovation capacity;

- Creating long-term value for sharcholders, investors and social responsibility;

- Meet ESG standards, digital transformation, Al and green consumer production,

The Board of Directors is looking forward to continuing to receive the companionship,
support and feasible responsibilities of shareholders and investors along with the
dedication, professionalism and dedication of employees and elite engineers in the
team to make PC1 Brand and Prosperity - Social Responsibility and Sustainable
Development.

nh Van Tuan
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PC1 GROUP JSC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SUPERVISORY BOARD Independence-Freedom-Happiness

a APPRAISAL REPORT
UPERVISORY BOARD TO SUBMIT TO THE GENERAL
-|  MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
'I:HNT STOCK COMPANY FOR THE TERM 2020 -2025

To: - Shareholders
- Presidium of the General Meeting of Sharcholders

Legal basis:

- The Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam, term XIV, at its 9th session on 17" June 2020,
effective from 01% January 2021;

- Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31" December 2020 of the Government on
elaboration of some Articles of the Law on Securities;

- Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated 31" December 2020 of the Ministry of
Finance on Guidelines for implementation of some articles on administration of public
companies in the Government's Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31" December 2020
elaborating some articles of the Law on Securities;

- Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of PC1 Group Joint Stock
Company;

- Pursuant to Resolution No. 01/NQ-PCC1-DHDCD dated 26™ April 2024 of the
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Based on business performance results and financial statements made for the vears
2020-2024.

- Pursuant to the 2024 Financial Statements prepared by PC1 audited by KPMG
Vietnam Co., Ltd. on 31* March 2025;

The Supervisory Board reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders of the
Company on the activities of the Supervisory Board, evaluate the implementation of the
resolutions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders, the results of inspection and
supervision of production and business activities, compliance with the State's
regulations, appraise the business performance reports, financial statements and
evaluation of the management and administration of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Directors as follows:

L. Activities of the Supervisory Board for the term of 2020-2025:
1. Personnel of the Supervisory Board:

At the General Meeting of Sharcholders on 03® June 2020, the personnel of the
Supervisory Board for the term of 2020-2025 are 03 people, specifically as follows:

- Ms. Nguyen Thi Hai Ha: Head of the Supervisory Board;
- Mr. Hoang Van Sang: Member;




- Mr. Hoang Van Cuong: Member

2. Activities of the Supervisory Board:

2.1 Supervision of the Board of Directors and the Board of Directors of the Company:
- Planning and implementing the Company's strategy;
- The management and operation of the Company, business targets;

- Comply with the Company's Internal Regulations, Resolution of the General
Meeting of Shareholders, the observance of the Company's Charter, State Law of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Directors in the administration of production and
business activities.

- Examine the reasonableness, legality, integrity and prudence in the management
and administration of business activities.

2.2 Appraisal of financial statements:

- To examine the systematic, consistent and appropriate work of accounting,
statistics and financial reporting.

- Appraisal of financial statements to assess the true and fair view of financial data,
in accordance with accounting standards, frameworks and policies and regulations of
the State.

- Review, examine and evaluate the effectiveness and effectiveness of the
Company's internal audit and risk management system.

3. Assessment of the capacity and effectiveness of the Supervisory Board

With a high sense of responsibility, the Supervisory Board consistently affirms its
professional competence, independently and objectively verifying the accuracy and
reasonableness of financial statements, as well as compliance with laws governing the
Company's production and business activities. This ensures the effective use of capital,
financial security, and the maximization of shareholder interests.

In general, in the past term, the Supervisory Board has always received attention
and favorable conditions from the Board of Directors, the Exccutive Board and
managers in the Company for the Supervisory Board to complete the assigned tasks.

I1. Results of monitoring the Board of Directors and the Company's Management
in production and business activities:

1. Implementing the Company's sirategic objectives:

- Completed the formulation and announcement of the strategy for the 2021-2025
period, with a vision toward 2035: To become the leading company in Vietnam and rank
among the Top 5 in Southeast Asia in the field of EPC general contracting for power
projects and industrial construction. By 20235, the company aims to achieve a profit-to-
revenue ratio of 8%.

- Results of strategy implementation:

+ The company implements the EPC General Contractor for many high-voltage
power grid projects, projects with high technical requirements and urgent construction
progress; The No. 1 position in Vietnam in the design and manufacture of many types
of high-voltage and ultra-high-voltage power poles.



+ Participate in capital contribution with foreign partners to successfully implement
domestic wind power projects. to expand domestic and foreign markets.

+ Expanding business investment abroad, specifically: implementing the
construction of EPC projects for wind power plants in the Philippines; Laos market,
Australian market.

+ To invest in advanced equipment and technologies in the construction of
construction and installation works to ensure shortening the construction time and
improving business efficiency.

+ Completed the acquisition of 100% of the capital of Nomura Asia Investment
(Vietnam) Pte. Ltd. at Nomura Industrial Park Development Company - Hai Phong,
invested in Western Pacific Group Joint Stock Company, which is a unit specializing in
investment in industrial parks, logistics and smart warchouses, preparing to implement
the construction of an eco-industrial park project in Hai Phong...

+ To complete the construction of a nickel processing plant, export output products
with good output and quality.

+ Focus on investing in digital transformation, risk management in operating
production and business activities...

2. Implementing the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in
2020 -2025:

In the annual general meetings, the resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders have been implemented by the Board of Directors and the Board of
Directors of the Company to achieve the following results:

a. Charter capital increase plan:

- Increased the 11th charter capital from VND 1,593,243 billion to VND 1,911,882
billion in the form of paying dividends in 2019 in shares to existing shareholders
according to the resolution of the 2020 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders.

- Increase the 12th charter capital from VIND 1,911,882 billien to VND 2,351,596
billion according to the resolution of the 2021 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
in the form of:

+ Dividend payment in 2020 in shares to existing sharcholders: VND 382,373
billion.

+ Issuing new shares to employees under the ESOP program: VND 57,339
billion, creating a very positive motivation for employees.

- The 13th increase in charter capital, from VND 2,351.596 billion to VND 2,704.33
billion, was made through the payment of dividends in 2021 in the form of shares to
existing sharcholders, amounting to WND 352.734 billion, in accordance with the
Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2022.

- The 14th increase in charter capital, from VND 2,704.33 billion to VND 3,109.96
billion, was made through the payment of dividends in 2022 in the form of shares to
existing shareholders, amounting to WVND 405.63 billion, in accordance with the
resolution of the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.




~ The 15th increase in charter capital, from YVIND 3,109.96 billion to VD 3,576.42
billion, was made through the payment of dividends in 2023 in the form of shares to
existing sharcholders, amounting to VND 466.46 billion, in accordance with the
resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders.

b. Amendments to the Charter of organization and operation of the Company:

Completed and amended several articles of the Company's Charter of Organization
and Operation, as approved by the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting.

¢. Restrueturing of the Company's organizational chart:

- Appointed Mr. Vu Anh Duong as General Director from 01/12/2021.

- Restructuring the organizational chart according to the Group's development
strategy in the new period.

- Complete the adjustment of the organizational chart according to the Group model,
restructuring member companies.

- Change the name and identity of the Company to PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
from 02/03/2022.

d. Investment in energy, real estate and minerals:
- Energy investment:

+ Completed the power generation of three wind power plants on schedule on
October 31, 2021, with a capacity of 144MW,

+ (Q4/2024: Commencement of 02 hydropower projects in Cao Bang with a capacity
of 46 MW (of which: Bao Lac A Hydropower Plant: 30 MW, Shanghai Hydropower
Plant: 13MW) is expected to generate electricity in (Q4/2026.

- Business investment in the field of industrial real estate:

+ Contributed 30% of capital to Western Pacific Group Joint Stock Company, which
holds a land fund and is implementing industrial real estate projects, with experience in
the logistics sector.

+ Acquired 100% of the capital of Momura Asia Investment (Vietnam) Pte. Ltd at
Nomura Hai Phong Industrial Park Development Company is the first unit to deploy
industrial park investment in Hai Phong city.

+ Completed the approval of the Investment Policy Decision for the Nomura Project
- 2 (#200 ha) by Hai Phong Intemational Industrial Park Joint Stock Company, a
subsidiary of PC1, on December 31, 2024. The investment procedures are continuing,
with construction expected to begin in Q3/2025.

+ Continue to seek and develop land funds with a scale of 500 hectares or more for
the deployment of eco-industrial parks.

- Investment and business in the field of civil real estate:
+ Completed the handover of PC1 Thanh Xuan project.
+ Auction and construction of the Thap Vang low-rise housing project.

+ Continue to complete investment procedures for PC1 Gia Lam, PC1 Dinh Cong,
PC1 Bac Tu Liem, PC1 Vinh Hung projects and continue to seek and develop land funds

4



with a scale of 1 hectare or more to implement mixed housing projects in accordance
with consumer tastes.

- Completed the construction of a nickel processing plant, exported output products
with good output and quality.

3. Results of inspection and supervision of the production and business contract,
compliance with the State's regulations:

a. Business performance from 2020 -2025

Unit: billion VND
1T Quota Unit Business Performance Over the Years
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
A B C 1 2 3 4 5
billion 1.912 2.352 2,704 3110 3.576
1 | Charter capital VND
Revenue  from 6.679 0828 8.358 7694 | 10.089
production  and | billion
2 | business activities | VND
billion 544 764 537 182 710
3 | Profit after CIT VND

The period from 2020 to 2025 has been one of the most challenging times in human
history, marked by epidemics, natural disasters, and the Russia-Ukraine war, all of
which have had a profound impact on people and the global economy. Global economic
activity has faced widespread recession, soaring inflation, record-low GDP growth rates,
complex political conflicts, and intensified strategic competition among major nations.
While global prices, inflation, and interest rates have decrcased, they remain at high
levels. Financial and monetary risks have increased, slowing global economic recovery,
which has affected exports, investment, consumption, international tourism, and
Vietnam’s financial market.

With the achievements from previous periods, the company's prestige and brand
have been solidified. The decisive leadership of the Board of Directors, along with the
efforts of the Group's employees, has led to timely solutions. As a result, PC1's
production and business activities during this period continue to show growth,
demonstrating that:

Charter capital: In 2020, it is: 1,912 billion VND; in 2024 is: VND 3,576 billion, an
increase of 1.87 times compared to 2024.

Revenue: In 2020, it is: 6,679 billion VND; in 2024 i15: VND 10,089 billion, an
increase of 1.51 times compared to 2020.

Profit after CIT: In 2020: VND 544 billion; in 2024, it will reach: 710 billion VND,
an increase of 1.31 times compared to 2020.

Total assets: in 2020 are: 10,722 billion VND; in 2024: VND 20,988 billion, an
increase of 1.96 times compared to 2020.



b. Compliance with the State's legal regulations:
b.1. Control of compliance shall comply with the State's regulations:

- Business scope: PC1's production and business activities are in accordance with
the Business Registration Certificate No. 0100100745;

- Compliance with the law on tax administration:

+ The company has complied with the provisions of the Law on Tax Administration
and tax-guiding circulars, implemented the regime of accounting books, accounting
accounts, financial statements in accordance with regulations promulgated by the
Ministry of Finance and accounting standards in accordance with current regulations.
Strictly comply with the implementation of tax declaration and payment as prescribed.

+ The tax authority has inspected the observance of tax law and inspection after
VAT refund at PC1 from 2018 to 2022,

- Compliance in the field of investment:

The field of construction and industrial production is a key industry throughout the
Company's production and business activities, the Company attaches great importance
to finding markets, investing in advanced machinery and equipment, and improving
management capacity to participate as an EPC general contractor of large projects of the
power industry as well as outside the power industry in the country and foreign
countries.

In the past period, the Company has achieved significant success in the field of
energy investment. PC1 has successfully operated seven hydropower plants and three
wind power plants, generating stable cash flow for the Group. Revenue and profit after
tax from these operations account for a large proportion of the Group's overall profit
structure. In addition to these existing plants, PC1 continues to develop energy projects
in areas that the state encourages for investment, ensuring the Group’s strategic goals
are met and achieving high efficiency in its production and business activities.

For investment in the real estate sector in the term of 2020-20235, the Company has
completed the handover of 01 residential real estate project, successfully auctioned and
implemented the construction of the low-rise housing project Golden Tower - Gia Lam
- Hanoi and preparing to start the real estate project of Nomura 2 Industrial Park, at the
same time, continue to participate in auctions, bidding, and M&A of large-scale projects
to achieve the set strategic goals. The field of real estate investment also brings positive
profits to the Company.

In addition, the fields of design consulting and operation services are all supporting
industries for the Company's core business areas.

b.2. Fulfillment of state budget obligations:

; Taxes And Amounts Payable Over The Years (VNI billion)
tems

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
[. VAT 176,261 407,310 236,605 146,588 | 202,540
II. Import and
EexXport taxes 0,42 | 0,762 0,705 169,092 | 316,986

&



G Taxes And Amounts Payable Over The Years (VND billion) |
EIms
020 | 2021 2022 2023 2024

1L, CIT 121,452 | 66,688 133,948 89,086 | 124,871
IV. PIT 11,896 12,542 16,979 1427 123,353
V. Land and
housing tax and
land rental 5,285 5,541 7,368 5,858 | 578,835
V1. Royalty tax 55,2 47,787 62,331 08,364 | 188,880
VIL Other taxes 22271 24908 62,748 96,69 | 97,325

Total 392,785 | 565,538 | 520,684 | 619,948 | 1.532,7%0

In addition to looking for jobs to ensure production and business activities, the
Board of Directors and the Company's Board of Directors perform their obligations to
the state to pay correctly and fully according to current regulations. The increase in
revenue and remittance means that the Company's production and business results are
very efficient, bringing high profits, ensuring the interests of shareholders.

4. Results of supervision of members of the Board of Directors and members of the
Company's Executive Board

In the past period, the economy in general and businesses, in particular, have faced
numerous difficulties and challenges. Investment in the electricity industry has
encountered significant obstacles, the real estate market has remained sluggish, and
stock market liquidity has been low, all of which has impacted on the production and
business activities of the Joint Stock Company.

However, the Board of Directors and company leaders have successfully navigated
these challenges by making timely decisions, issuing Resolutions, and implementing
effective management and organizational strategies. By seizing and capitalizing on
opportunities, enhancing system management capabilities, and fostering creativity in
leadership and administration, the Company has achieved the objectives set forth in the
General Meeting of Shareholders' Resolution over the past five years. Specifically:

4.1 For members of the Board of Directors:

- Number of members of the Board of Directors of the Company: 05 members (of
which resignation: 01 and additional election: 01)

The Board of Directors of the Group with a high sense of responsibility has
seriously implemented the contents of the Resolution approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders. In the process of production and business activities, the Board of
Directors has issued resolutions and decisions in accordance with the provisions of law
and the Company's Charter, closely following the Resolution of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders for the period of 2020-2025, and at the same time ensuring the
timely issuance of policies to direct the Company's production and business activities
to respond to changes in developments. of the market. In general, the management of
the Board of Directors in the term of 2020-2025 has complied with the provisions of
the Law, regulations on the operation of listed companies, the Resolution of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and the Company's Charter.




In the term of 2020 - 2025, the Board of Directors has held 26 periodic meetings,
issued 254 Resolutions/Decisions according to its competence to serve the Company's
activities;

- Members of the Board of Directors shall seriously carry out the assignment of
tasks according to the fields in which individual members are in charge.

- Implement the contents according to the resolution of the annual general meeting
of shareholders for the period of 2020 — 2025,

- Approving the contents under the authority of the Board of Directors, supervising
the activities of the Group's Executive Board.

- Orienting the Group's business strategy, deciding to restructure the organizational
chart of the Group, its member units, expanding domestic and foreign investment
markets and industries, etc.

4.2 For the Company's Executive Board:

The General Director together with members of the Executive Board have
actively implemented the Resolutions of the Board of Directors to achieve the
annual goals approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board of
Directors has been aware of the advantages and difficulties of the market, has been
flexible in operating production and business activities, has come up with many
solutions to manage costs, manage professional work, take care of customers,
regularly organize professional improvement courses, awareness for employvees to
build core values and company culture towards customer satisfaction. Specifically:

- Regularly organize monthly business plan implementation meetings, annual
review meetings to assess the situation of business activities, the implementation of
projects to consider existing aspects and limitations to come up with timely solutions
to remove difficulties and overcome.

- Closely follow and implement the goals of the Company's Business Development
Strategy.

- General evaluation: The Company's Executive Board has actively and proactively
administered, closely followed and strictly implemented the Resolution of the General
Meeting of Sharcholders, promptly proposed and consulted with the Board of Directors
on support measures to improve production and business efficiency.

111. Appraisal of financial statements in 2024:

1. Business Performance: (According to the audited consolidated financial statements
in 2024).

STT Basic indicators Amount
1 | Tumover VND 10,089 billion
2 | Profit after tax VYND 710 billion
3 | Paid to the NN budget 1,446 billion VIND
4 | Basic profit'share 1,177 VND/share

1. Results of appraisal of financial statements:

The Supervisory Board has carried out the appraisal of the Group's Financial
Statements in the fiscal year 2024, ending December 31, 2024 and agreed to confirm the
specific contents as follows:



- The financial statements fully reflect the production and business and financial
activities of the Group, presented according to the report forms specified in Circular
200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22/12/2014; Circular 202/2014/TT-BTC dated 22/12/2014 of
the Ministry of Finance.

- The report has honestly and reasonably reflected the key aspects and financial
situation as of December 31, 2024,

- The recording and opening of accounting books and classification of economic
contents according to accounting standards promulgated by the Ministry of Finance,

- The Company has made periodic reports and information disclosures of

organizations listed on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange in accordance with regulations
on information disclosure on the stock market.

3. Financial situation as of 31/12/2024:

Business Evaluati iteria Indicators In 2024

1. Liquidity Ratio.

- Current ratio (Total Assets / Short-term Liabilities) times 158
- Short-term debt repayment ability (Current Assets /

Short-term Liabilities) rimes 1,50
- Quick ratio (Total Assets - Inventory) / Short-term

Liabilities) fimes 382

2. Profitability Ratio.

- Return on Assets (ROA) (Net Profit Afier Tax /

Total Assets) b 3.45
- Net Praofit Margin (Ner Profit After Tax / Net .

Revenue) ¥ 7.04
- Return on Equity (ROE) (Net Profit After Tax /

Owner s Equity) i 9,53

3. Capital Preservation Ratio (Total Assets -

Liabilities) / Owner's Equity) times 2.16

Based on the Financial Indicators, the Supervisory Board finds that:

Liguidity Ratio =1, the company consistently maintains the ability to meet its
liabilities, ensuring financial stability.

The Group's profitability ratio is effective, showing 01 VND of assets spent,

generating more than 0,345 VND of profit, 01 VND of revenue generating about 0.07
VND of profit or 01 VND of owner's contributed capital generating 0,096 VND of

profit.

IV. Salaries and allowances of the Board of Directors and the Company's
Supervisory Board:



The salary of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board and allowances
of members have been strictly implemented in accordance with the Resolution of the
General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.

V. Conclusions and recommendations:
1. Conclusion: .

The Supervisory Board agrees with the data of the 2024 Financial Statements
prepared by PC1 and audited by KPMG Vietnam Co., Ltd. In terms of material aspects,
the Financial Statements, the Income Statement and Cash Flow for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024, have honestly and reasonably reflected the financial situation of
PCI.

2. Recommendations:

In addition to the results and achievements that the Group has achieved in the past
vear, To continue to develop the PCI brand in business fields, increase revenue and
profit, and increase benefits for sharcholders, the Supervisory Board has a mumber of
recommendations to the Group with the following contents:

- Completed the report on the Company's strategic goals for 2025-2030, with a
vision to 2035,

- Leaders of business blocks must build a vision and strategy for their blocks to
create motivation for employees to strive, learm and develop, innovate and create.

- Continue to implement the strategic thinking training program to help the
leadership svstem synchronously think that it is an effective strategic management
communication activity.

- Continue to exploit cheap capital sources and control more effectively the use of
cash flow, promptly meeting the capital sources for production, business and investment
activities of the Group. Develop an effective financial plan to ensure timely capital for
production and business activities

- Continue to improve the quality of human resources, improve management
capacity, and innovate to ensure that the Group's production and business development
speed is well met to further enhance the Group's reputation and image in the domestic
and international markets.

- Applying digital technology management, moving towards administration on a
centralized database and supported by Artificial Intelligence.

- To continue to invest in management technology and advanced construction
equipment and technologies in service of development objectives,

- Strengthen risk management, internal control, compliance with the quality
management system according to 150, contributing to improving corporate governance
activities; Promote culture, raise awareness of employees in risk management at the
Company on a regular and professional basis, integrate management according to ESG
and CSR.

- Continue to well implement policies with employees, emulation and reward
mechanisms to create motivation to attract and maintain high-quality human resources.
Promoting internal communication activities associated with the development of PCI
culture

10



The above is the full report of the Supervisory Board submitted to the General
Meeting of Sharcholders. We sincerely look forward to receiving contributions and
feedback from esteemed shareholders and delegates to help the Supervisory Board fulfill
its assigned functions and responsibilities.

The Supervisory Board respectfully submits this report for approval by the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board, we would like to sincerely thank the Board of
Directors, the Board of Directors, departments, shareholders and employees of the

Company for supporting and creating conditions for us to complete our tasks in the past
term.

sinecerely,

Hanoi, 03* April 2025
HEAD OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

ek

Nguyen Thi Hai Ha
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Statement of the Board of General Direetors

The Board of General Directors of PCI Group Joimt Stock Company (“the Company”) prescits (his

satement and the sccompanying separate financial statements of the Company for the vear ended 31
December 2024,

The Company's Board of General Directors js responisible for the preparation and trye and fair presentation
of the separate financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accoeunting Standards, the Vietnamess

Acoounting Svstem for Enterprises and the relevint statLtory requirements applicable o limancial reporting.
[n the opinion of the Company's Boand of General Directors:

@) the separdte financial statements set out on pages 3 to 58 give a true and fair view of the

results of operations and cash flows for the year them ended in accomdence with Yiemamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietamess A ecounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable 1o financial repoTting: and

{b) ot the date of this statement, there is no resson to believe that the Company will not be able to pay its
debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of General Direciors has, on the date of th
financial statements for ESne,

is statement, authorised the accompanying separste

Hanoi, 28 March 2028
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KPMG Limited

46th Floor, Keengnam Landmark 72
E6 Fham Hung Street, Me Tri Ward
South Tu Lisem Distrct, Hanoi, Vietnam
+84 (24) 3946 1600 | kpmg.com.vn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders
PC1 Group Joint Stock Compa ny

We have audited the |ecompanying separate financizl statements of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
{“the Company”}, which comprise the separate balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, the saparate
sfatements of income and cash flows for the year hen anded and the expeanatory notes thereto which
were authorised for izsue by the Company’s Board of General Directors on 28 March 2025, as sat out
on pages 5 to 58,

Management’s Responsibility

The Company's Board of General Directors 15 responsible for the preparation and true and fair
presentation of these separate financial statements in accordance with Vistnamese Aecounting
Standards, the Vietnamesa Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements
applicable to financial reporting, and for such intemal contral g= e Board of General Directors
determines Is necessary to enable the preparation of separale financial stalements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud of error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our respansibility Is to BXpress an opinion on these separate financial statements based on our audit,
We conducted our audi in accordance with Vistnamase Standards on Auditing. Thoss standards
require that we comply with ethical requiremants and plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable
assurance aboul whether the separate financial stateérmneants are free of matenal missiatemeant,

An audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosuras
In the financial statements. The precedures salected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fravd or
emrar. In making those risk Assesements, the auditor considers internal contral relevant to the
Company's preparation and trus and fair presentation of the financiag! statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
apinion on the effectiveness of the Company's intemal contral, An audil also includes evialuating the
appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonablansss of atcounting estimates made

by the Company's Board of Ganaral Directers, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financlal statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficiznt and appropriate to provide 3 basis
fiar our audit opinion,

FPTN L o R Uy T e R e |l i EITR Ry Bl vt Tl ol Ha 1
LFRE ghtal fl etk i vul minnrnrt rsee b oflindad Lt WAL | ahav e v
o privesle gl gy ik oy e a1 g el

L e Ay e
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KPMG
Auditor's Opinion

In cur apinion, the separate financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects,
of the unconsolidated financial posilion of PC1 Group Joint Stock Cempany as at 31 December
2024 and of its unconsolidated results of oparations and ite unconsolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Vietnamess Accounting Standards, the Vietnamesa Accounting
System for Enlerprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting.

KPMG Limited
Vietnam

Audit Report No. 24-02-00204-25-1

oo W

I2asFThanh Toan Phan My Linh
icing Auditor Registration Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate No. 3073-2024-007-1 Ceriificate No, 3064-2024-007-1
Depuly General Diractor

Hanod, 31 March 2025



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Separate balance sheet as at 31 December 2024

ASSETS

Currenl asseis
(100 = 110+ 120 + 130 + 140 + 150)

Cash and cash equivakents
Cash
Cash equivalents

Short-term financial inyesim ents
Held-to-maturity {nvestmenis

Accoanis receivable — short-term
A¢counls receivabie from customers
Prepavments 10 suppliers

Feceivables on constraction coniracts

necording o stages of completion
Loans receivable — short-term
Crher receivables

Allowance for doubtful debis

Inventaries
[mveniones

Oither current assets
Short-term prepaid expenses
Deductible valee added ax

Long-term assets
(200=220 + 230 + 240 + 250 + 260)

Fined nsseis
Tangible fixed assels
e
Accranuinred depreciation
[niangible fixed assets
st
Avinwedeefed sonorfivepiom

Investment property
ot
Aevimuluted depreciation

Long-term work in Progress
Construction in progress

Code

1
[l
112

120
123

130
131
HE
134
135

136
137

144
141

150
151
152

240
42

MNote

4

S(a)

Form B 01 - DN

el gl Cleicior Voo 20020 29 T-0000
it 22 Dhivarambor 2000 ol tho Murlstey of Flaames)

STALENE
YND

3,654,356,118.919

TOZ, 445,382,839
dh,443 382 B39
ety (10K, 0,00

i, G, 0, 00K
G, LI, AR, O

201061 8RS 209
1,246,277,940.072
48R, 453,454,061

BLI8T, 149,775
T5,625,280.244
270,917,926 563
(79,544,865 506)

B45.868,424,107
B45.868,4%4,107

35.421.356,754
2.667,243.007
12,754,112.847

7,947,449 045,666

1,894,492 933 187
|03 255 142807
2 7F7.SRT.TOL 548
(A6 332 648760
1,237, 700,550

2 06 AT0 (i
{468 679 4350

51,821 306812
101554352045

(48,732,045.237)

17,391,362.725
17.391,362.725

1172024
YD

LIR%.024, 415,102

1,028,714,838,500
63.214, 838,390
965, 500,000,000

103,601,176,833
103.,601,176,833

1,699,908,243,725
1,173,050 006,858
186, 723,471,407

106,051,103,451
239,267 .535,790
(5,183, 873.781)

311,768,058, 448
311,768,058, 448

5032097506
31.226,020,397
41 806,077,109

7,562,961,437,568

1,030.219.276,770
2.028.766,131.425
4, FE205, 467,353
FF26030 335.838)
[, 453,145.345
2,700, AT E
f1,253,324.635)

T1 353,081,680
122374,213.687
{51,021,132,007)

11,236,636,566
11.236,636,566

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separaie finamrcial statements



PCI Group Joint Steck Company

Separate balance sheet as at 31 December 2024 (continued )

Long=term fnoncisl investments
Investments insubsidiaries
Investments in associates

Eguity imvestments in other entithes
Allowance for diminution in the value of

long-term financial investmenis

Oither long-ferm assets
Long-term prepaid expensies

TOTAL ASSETS
(270 = 100 + 24

RESOURCES
LIABILITTES (300 = 310 + 330)

Current liahilitics
Accounts payable 1o supplisr
Advances from custimers
Tanes add others payable 1o
Stite Treasury
Payables (o empliovess
Adcrued expenses
Fayables oil consiruclion contricts
acconding (o stages of completion
LUinearned revenue — short-tenm
Crkver payubles = shori-term
Short=term borrowings
Bonus and welfare fund

Long-term labilities
Chher payables — long-term
Long-term borrowings and bonds

Codde

250
51
252
253

254

261

270

314
31
312

313
Jl4
3135

317
318
1w
320
322

EEN)
338

Form B 01 - DN

{dagupd mpkee Clendar Voo 200000 UTT-RIT
elirtesd 23 Devepher NP3 ol the Mty of Flniace)

J1n0z4
Mg VIND

S(h) 5,923,595,947,724
4,266,709, 540,989
693,302 636,168

L1202 4
YND

504 292 IR ETR
3,789,927.776.619
1,603,148, 756,168

4. B21. 770,000 4 B2, 770,000
(41.328,019.433) (3,606,071 2.909)

59,146,495 048 55.860,152,674

17 59146495048 55860152674

11,601.805,164,5T5  10,751,985,852,670

G A13,47T0,1 70,654 5.816,145,114,558

3.154,150,209,882 2,796,978,332,971

18 910,240,249.537 KO6,198,113.402

19 395,088,528.304 101,802 829,495

20 7,789,753.157 5,968,392 564

13,989,354 083 6,624,565 16 ]

21 41899701161 18,628,917 361

550,614,873 2

667,443,654 453,018,181

22 47,443,222, 182 20,020,281 837

I3(a}  1,365953,753 808 1.661,054,422 237

24 130,227,588.943 145 827 662,533

3.259,319,960,772 3,019,166, 781,857

1.393,778.640 1,521,414,720

23¢k) 3257026 182,132 2007045, 367,167

Fhe accompanying notes are an integral part of these separaie financial statements



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Scparate balance sheet as at 31 December 2024 (continued)

EQUITY {400 = 410)

Ovwmers” equity

Share capiial

= Lirdimary shares with voling
s

share premium

Investment and development fund

Other equity funds

Hetained profits

- Reltaived prafits browght forwvard
Profit for i current ear

TOTAL RESOURCES
(440 = 30 + 400

Prepared by

4

Yu Thi Phuong
Prepurer

Code  Naole
R

410 I5
411 2

dfla
412
415
420
421
24
S21h

440

28 March 2025

Tran Thi Minh Via
Cleief Accoisiant

Form B 01 - DN

{lavaenl ynpler Circpdipe Vo SO0 T4 8T
clred 23 Dhpvewnber 2004 of she Minser of Flsaree)

A0
VD

5,188,334,993,911

5,188, 334,993,921
3,576,421,210,000

3576421 210, (0
711,136,556, 786

1r120l4
VMDD

4,935840,737.812

4,935840,737 812
3109955, 580,000

3109 953, 580, (WK
TI1, 136,556,786

245,973,837431 246,973,837,431

(i 532,444,542 64,632 444 542
SB9, 170,545,162 803, 142,319,053
223.406,023,263 093,331,661 162
23,764, 321,899 109 810,657.8%)
11,601.805, 164,575 10,751,985,852,670

e accompanying nofes are an infagral pari of these separate finoncial statements



PC1 Group Joint Stock Com pany

Separate statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2024

Revenue frommn sales of gowsds and
provision of services

Cost of sales

Gross profit (20 =01 - 11)

Finanmcial income
Financial expensas
It vwhich! Borrowing cosis

Selling expenses
Creneral and administration expenses

Met operating profi
(3= 20 +21 - 22 - 25 - 26)

Crher income
Chier expenses

Resulis of other activities
{#h=31-31)

Acconnting profit before tax
(50 = M} + 40)

Income tax expense — current

Met profil affer dox (60 = 50 - 51)

Prepared by

e

u Thi Phuoag
Freparer

Code  Node
(1) | 19
11 in
20
21 31
22 31
23
25 i3
26 14
A0
31
1z
4
51 s
i

28 March 2025

Form B 02 - DM

{lrruvel et Clomlar o, J00200 8T T80
elnal 23 Dvevifer 2000w e Mirdstrg: o Finaeice)

2024 2023

YHND VNI
4RI NSATRRIS  3,700,979,619,231
JAS5.901,023,609 3460991018935
42T914,155.216 329988, 604,290
394,725 868,866 323.B34.150,750
348,567 068,754 405 693,467,939
JO8 SN 772 568 03 426 097 784
E 160264128 L1.814,435.240
|95, 169 891 608 111,524,903, 120
270,742,TU9.612 124,789,944.747
548,349,215 6,876,836,031
33,798,955 5.134,936,235
E14.550 2640 1741899776
271,257,349.472 126,531 544,513
1.,493,027.973 1.3,831,186,632
269,764,321,899 112, 700,657,891

Tran T Minh Vie
Chiaf Aceotitant

Phe accamparying moles are an imfegra! pari of these separate financial stcterents
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Separate statement of cash Aows for the year ended 31 December 2024

(Indirect method)

Code

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjusiments for
Depreciation and amortisation
Allowances and provisions
Exchange losses/| gains| Brsing trom revaluation of
monetery items denominated in foreign currencies
Profits from investing activities
Borrowing costs

Operating profit before chianges in
working capital

Change in receivahles

Change in inventories

Change in payables and other liabilities
Change in prepaid expenses

Interest paid
Income tx paid
Other payments for operat mg activities

Net cash Rows from opera ting netivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for additions to fixed assets anil ather
lonz-term fssets

Provesds from disposals of fixed sssete and cther
long-term assels

Payments for granting loans and placing deposits
with terms of more than three mortls

Receipts from collecting loans and withdrawing
deposits with terms of maore than three mamihs
Payments for investments in other ontities
Collections on investments in other entitiezs
Receipts of interests, dividends, profits

Net cash Mows from investing activities

0

(¥
U3

(k4
05

)
[
L
12

4
15
17

0

4
23

o

30

Form B 03 - DN
(el wnder Cirelar No, N6 4 -4
rered 22 Decwmbr 201 4 e Minderer of Finuce

2024 23
VND VND
171,257 340872 126,531,844,523
142,784,792 647 143,652.200,32 |
112.801.583.030 (4,499.761.444)
76068518 (T20,218.410)
(401,357,475 476} (331,990,579 492)
308.510,772,568 403, 426,097,784
434,073.062,068 138, 3400 583 282
(356,340,185, 279) 1277635862
(334,100,435,659} (33,176,142, 484)
464,753 822 306 (306,117,344 370
(2,727 565, 884) 12,776,894,95]
5,658,607 552 369.168,62 7,251
(297.507.174,18%) (403663, 1061363
{2.681.782.078) (A7.914,836,273)
(29,128,139 380 (30,238 308 300)
{323,658 395,093 65,344.376,533
{17.394.956,103) (42,570,543,550)
32,412,056,120 04,415,954, 168

(284,357 336, 2040

350,094,910 302

{274.431.176.833)

310,485,029, 848

(564,969,231 507) (83,318,723 ,000)

18,400,000 000 28472376,468
304,050,121,.205 22931 672 625
(160,763,436,192)

462,324,589,726

e accompanying notes are an i tegral part of these sepioraie finaeial starements



PCI Group Joint Stock Com pany

Separate statement of eash Mows for the vear ended 31 December 2024

(Indirect method - continued)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from bonmowings
Payments to settle loan principals

Net cash flows from financing activities

Met pash lows doring the vear
(500= 20 + 30 + 40)

Cash and cash equivalenis ot ihe beginning
if the vear

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the vear (70 = 50 + 60 + 61} (Note 4)

Code

33
34

S

il

Form B 03 = DN

Fizewea woder Cirendae Mo ML2LLTT.BTC
ifeated” 22 Devember 2009 af the Minivry af Fiace)

2024
YND

4,2111,389.0011.763
[4.053,163,164.711)

2023
VNI

3,575.161,.737,136
(4. 750020, 808 _204)

(1,180,865,071,070)

158,226, 447,052
(326,195,387,213) (653,196.104,811)
1,025, 714,838,500 1,681,934 406,809
(76,068,515 (13,463 498)
702,443 ,381.839 1,028,714 533,500

28 March 2025

Prepared by Approvedsl oo on;
,5:__-:—';-’ = -
-ﬁ—[,ji 147 oone Ty N
8 Lo
Vu Thi Phuong Tran Thi Minh Viet 7

Preparer Chief Aceowniant renerald Direciar

e goommpanying notes ave an Inegral part of these sefarafe firancial statemernts
1]
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PCT Group Joint Stock Company
Notes (o the separate linancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
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These notes form an integral part of and should be read in eonjunction with the accompanying separate
finarcial satements,

Reporting entity

Dwnership strocture

PC1 Group Joint Stock Company {“the Company™), formarly known as Line and Substation Installation
Company, was established on 2 March 1983, The Company was officially transformed inlo a jeint stock
compary operaling under the Business Registration Certificate No. 0100100745 issued for the first time by
the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on 20 July 2005 and amended for the 25® time on 4
December 2024,

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company are as Tollows:

- Trading in real estate, land use rights of land owners. land users or land lessces, including: investment
in the creation of houses, construction works for sale, lease, or lease purchase; purchase hwouses,
eonstruction works for sale, lease, lease purchase; remt houses and construction works For sublesse:
imvest in and improve land and invest in infrastructure Tacilities on leased Lad 1o lease land with
infrastructure; reeeive the transfer of land use rights, invest in infrastructure facilities for transfer or
letse; rent land use rights with infrastructure for sublesse (except for constuotion of cemetery
infrastructure for transfer of lad use rights attached 1o infrastructure);

= Consulting, brokernge, real esiate anction. land use right auction: real estate consulling services, real
estate brokeroge services, real estate valuation services, real estate adverlising services, real estate
munagement services; provide management, operation and exploitation services for urban sreas and
multi-storey apartment buildings;

- Producing and fabricaing sieel towers, hol-dip gabvanizing and metal structures for clvil ond indusirial
Fiscilities;
- Construction of other civil engineering works: construction and installation of power transmission

lines and transformer stations, power source facilities, industrial and civil works, infrastructune
engineering, traffic. imgation, post and telecommunication facilities:

Electricity production. tranamiszion and distibution: electricity production;
= lmport and expoet of goods under the Company s business scope;
- Surface preparasion;
= Installation of elecirical svsiems;

- Measuring cadastral maps, clearing lmnd plots, extracting and measuring land plois for land
COMPENSAton purposes;

= Wholesale of metals and metal ores: and

- Producing metal structures; forging, stamping, pressing amd rolling metal; metal powder smelting.

Normal operating cvele

The normal operating cycle for real estie investment and business, construction and installation of works
of the Company is based on the Investment and implementation period of each work ar project. The normal
operating cycle for other activities of the Company is generzlly within |2 months,

H g N Bl AN
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes (o the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
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Company stracture

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 27 tier-1 subsidiaries and 4 associates as listed in Nate 5(b)
(112024 26 tier-] subsidiaries and 4 associates as lisied in Note 5{h)).

As at 31 December 2024 and | January 2024, the Company had 252 emplovees

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Viemamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statitory requirements
applicable to financial reporting. The Company also prepares and issucs its consolidated financial
statements separalely. For a comprehensive undersianding of the Company's consolidated financial
position, its consolidated results of operations and its consolidated cash flows, these sepnmie financial
statements should be reed in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements,

Basis of measurement

The separate financial statements, except for the separate statement of cush Mows, are prepared on the
accrual basis using the historical cost concept. The scpomte statement of cash flows is prepared using the
indiract method,

Annual accounting paeriod

The annual sccounting period of the Company is from | January to 31 December.

Accounting and presentation currency

The Company's accounting eurrency is Vietnam Dung (“WND™), which is also the cumency wsesd for
financial reporting purposes,
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Maotes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Company in the preparation of
these separafe financial statements.,

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than VWD during the vésr have been tmnslied inte VIND 3t rates
approximating actual rates of exchange ruling af the trnsaction dates

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VIND are tranzlated into VND af the
account transfer buying rates (for assets) and secount transfer selling rates (for liabilities), respectively, al
the end of the accounting period quoted by the commercial bank where the Compary meost frequently
condwet transactions,

All foreign exchange differences ane recorded in the separate statement of indome.

Cuash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid invesimenis
thut are readily convertible to known amounts of msh, are suhjeet 10 an insignificant risk of changes in
value. end are hald for the purpose of meeting shori-term cash commitments rather than for nvestment or
other purposes,

Invesiments

Held-to-maiurify investments

Held-to-maturity investments are those that the Company”s Board of General Directors has the intention
and ability 10 hold until maturity. Held-to-maturity investments include ternm deposits at hanks. These
investments are stated at costs less allowance for doubriul debs.

Trvestments in subsidiaeiey amd asvociafes

For the purpose of these separate financial statements. investments in subsidiaries and associates are
imitially recognised at cost which includes purchase price plus amy directly atiributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are stated a1 cost less allowance for diminution in value.
An ellowance is made for diminution in investment value if the invedtes has suffered a loss which may
canse the Company Lo lose its invested capital, unless there is evidence that the value of the investmont has
nol been diminished. The ellowance is reversed it the investee subsequently made o profit that offsets the
praviows loss for which the allowance had been made, An allowance is reversed only to the extent that the
investment™s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determinad if po
allowance had been recogniserd

13
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Equity invesimenis in other enfities

Investments in equity instruments of other entities are indtially. recognised at cost which include purchase
price plus any directly attributeble transaction eosts, Suhsequent 1o initial recognition, these investments
are stated of costless allowance for diminution in value, An allowance is made for diminution in investmeni
values if the investee has suffered a loss which may capse the Company to lose its invested capital, unlese
there is evidence that the value of The investment has not been diminished. The alfowance is reversed iT e
investee subsequently made a profit that offsets the previous loss for which thi allowance had been made.
An allowance in reversed only 10 the extent that the investment's carrying amount dees nol exceod the
carrying amound that would have been determined if no allowance had been recopnised.

Trade and oilier receivaliles

Trade and nther receivables are stated at coxt less alivwmnee Tor doubtful debts,

Receivables and payables on construction contracts according to stages of completion

Receivables and payables on comstruction contracis accoeding to stapges of completion represent the
difference between the sccumulated revenve of construction contracts in progress at the end of the period
and the progress billings and advances from costomens,

Inventories

Inventaries are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of raw materinls, tools and supnlics,
finished goods and merchandise inventories are determined on a weighted sverage basiz and includes all
oosts imcurred in bringing the invendories fo their present location and condition, Costs of work in progress
are determined on #n identification basis. Cost of finished poods, merchandizse inventories and work in
progress includes raw naterials, direct labous snd anrbutable manufacturing overheads. Net realisable
valne is the =elling price of inventory items, less the estimated ¢osts of completion and estimated costs 10
sell. In cases where a construction contract stipulates that the contractor is paid based on the value of work
eartified, work in progress of the construction contret is recognised for costs thas have been incurred bui
not vet confirmed by the customer at the reporting date.

The Company applies the perpetual method of accounting for inventories,

Tangille fixed asscis

Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost kess accumulated depreciation. The nitial cost of a mngible fixed
assel comprises its purchase price, including import dutles, nor-refundable purchase taxes and any directly
atiributable costs of bringing the asset to Its working condition for its intended use, Expenditure incurred
after tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repair. maintenance and overhaul cost, is
charged (o the separate staiement of income in the period in which the cost is incurred. In situstions where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the expendiure has resalted in @ increase in the future economic hencfits
expecied fo be obiained from the use of tangible fixed assets beyond their originally assesscd standard of
performance, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of tangible fixed assets.
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Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over Lhe cstimated useful lives of tangible fixed assets.
The estimated useful lives are as Follows:

*  buildings-and sructures 3— M) yiars
* plant and equipment 3 — 20 vears
= moor vehicles 5= 10 years
* offiee equipment 3 =B vears
* other tangible fixed assets 3 =5 years
Intangible fAxed assets

Land use righty

Lend use rights ane stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. The initial cost of o land use rights
coenprises its purchase price and any directly atisibutable eosts incurred in conjunction with securing the
land use rights. Mo amaortisation is computed for indefinite land use rights.

Software

Cost of acquiring new software, which is net an integral part of the related hardware, is copitalised and
trented s an intangible asset. Software cost is amortised on o straight-line basis over 3 10 5 vears.

Investment property held to earn rental

Cost

Investment property held to cam reatal §s stated al cost less accumulated depreciation, The Inlilal cost of an
Investment property beld 1o earm rental comprises its purchase price, cost of land use dghts and any directly
attributable expenditures of bringing the property 1o the condition necessary for it 1o be capable of vpenting
in the manner intended by the Board of General Directors. Expendinure incurred affer the investment
property held 1o earn rental has been pul inlo operation, such as repairs and mainienance, is charged m the
separate statement of income in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. In situations where it can
be chearly demonsirated that the expenditure has resulted in Miure economie benelits in excess of the
originally assessed standand of performanes of the existing investment property held to eamn rental, the
expenditure is capialised as an additional cost of the investment property.

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of invesiment property.
The estimated wseful lives are as Tollows:

= buildings and structures 3 — 15 years

Construction in progress

Constrection in progress represents the costs of tengible fixed asseis and intangible fixed assets which have
et been fully completed or installed. Mo depreciation Is provided for construction in progress during the
pericd of construction and installation

iI5
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Lonp-term prepaid expenses

Teoly and instruments

Teals and instruments include assels held for use by the Company in the normal course of business whose
cists of individual items are less than VNDGU million and therefore not qualified for recognition as fixed
assets under prevailing regulations. Cost ol tpols and instruments are amaortised on A siraight-line basis over
& period ranging from 2 10 3 yvears,

Site clearance expenses

Sile clearance expenses represen; the compensation for site clearance of the hydropower projects Bao Lam
1. 3. 3A, and Bao Lec B. Site clearance expenses are recognised al cost and deducted from the Company™s
unnual land rental pavable according fo the notices of the Cao Bang Provincial Department of Tax and Ha
Citang Provingial Departinent of Tax.

Chiker long-term prepaid expenses
Criher long-term prepaid expenses comprise expenses fin assets renovation and repair, consulting fee and

other expenses, which are recognised at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over a period ranging
from 2 1o 3 vears,

Trade and other pavables
Trade and other payables are stated at thelr cost.

Provision

A pravision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company have a present legal or eonstractive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an oulflow of economic benefits will be
required 10 sefile the oblipation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
&t & pre-tax rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the fAsks specific
to the hability.

Straight bomnds

At initial recognition, straight bonds are megsured o cost which comprizes proceed from issuancs net of
ISsLAnCe cosls. Any issuance costs are amortised on a sradght-line basis over the term of the bomd.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are recognised at par value, The exeess of proceeds from shiare fssuance over the par value
of shares {ssued 1s recarded as share premium, [nerementil costs directly sttributable to the issue of shares,
net of tex effects, are recognised as a deduction from share premium.

16
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Taxatiom

Income tax on the unconsolidated profit for the vear comprises current and deferved tax. Income tax is

recopnised in the separate statement of income except to the extent that it relates 1o itlems recognised directly
o equity, in which case i1 15 recognised in eguity,

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the vear, using 1ax raes enacted ot the
end of the annual accounting pedod, and any adjustment 1o 1ax payahle in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax 18 provided using the balance sheéat method, providing for temporary differences betwean the
earrving amaounts of mesets amd liabilities for financisl reporting purposes. and the amounts wed for totion
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is hased on the expected manner ofrealisation or settlement
of the carrving amounts of assets and liahilities uaing the ta rates enacted or substantively enacted ot the
end of the annual sccounting period,

A deferred tax msset 14 recognised only 16 the extent that # is probable that future taxable profits will be
availible against which the temporary difference cun be utilised. Deferred tax pssets are reduced ta the
exteny that it s no longer probable thd the refated tiod benelit will be realized,

Revenuwe and other income

Crivends sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the sepurate stalement of income when the significant risks
grd rewards of ownership bave been mransfemred o the buyer. Mo revenue is recognised if there are
significant uncertzinties regarding recovery of the consideration due or the possible retumn of goods.
Kevenue on sales of goods is recognised at the net amourt after dedocting sales discounts.

Fransfer of real extafes

Revenue from the transfer of real estates is recognised in the sepamie statement of income when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred 1o the buyer, No revenue [s recognised i
there are significant uncertainties regardimg recovery of the consideration i,

Kervices rendered

Revenue from services rendered s recognised in the sepamte statement of income in propertion to the stage
of completion of the transaction. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work
performed, Mo revenue i3 recognised if there are significant uncedainties reganding recovery of fhe
consideration due,

Cimestraection contracts

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in the separate statement of income m proportion (o the
stage of completion of the contract when the outcome of & construction contract can be estimaled relinbly.
The stage of completion is sssessed by relerence to surveys of work performed. No revenue is recognised
il there are significant uncernzimies regarding recovery of the consideration due.
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Rental income under operating leaves

Rental meome from property under operating leases is recognised in the separate statement of income on a
straiphi-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease ncentives granted are recognised as an inegral part of
(he total rental incoma,

Electricity sold

Revenue from sale of clectricity is recognised in the separate statement of income in sccordance with
elegiricity meter minutes and selling prices as stipulated in the power purchase Agresment signed with
Vietnam Electricity Corporation. No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertaintics regarding
recovery of the consideration dus,

Inferest income

Interstincome is recognised on a time proportion hasis with reference to the principal ourstanding and the
applicable inferest rate.

Dividend fnceme

Dividend Income incurred after the investment date 5 recognised when the right to receive dividend is
established,

Leases

Operating lease papments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the separate ststement of income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the separate statement of income
as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as un expense in the vear in which they are incurred, except where the
barrowing, costs relate to bormowings m respect of the construction of qualifying assets, in which case the
barrowing costs incurred during the period of constrection ere capitalized as part of the cost of the assets
coneemned,

Related parties

Parties are considered e be related to the Company If ene party has the ability, directly or indirectly, 10
contral the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making finencial and
operating decisions, or where the Company and the other party are subject to common control or significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate enities and include close family members of any
individual considered to be o relnied party.

Related companies refer to the subsidiaries. associales and companizs whosa kev manngemen personnel
are close family members of the key management personnel of the Company

18
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Comparative information

Comparative information in thess sepamte fnancial statements {5 presented as corresponding fizures. Under
this method, comparative infermation for the prior vear are included as an integral part of the current year
financial statements and are intended 1o be read only in relation 1o te amounts and other disclosures relating
o the current year. Accordingly, the comparative information included in these separate financial
stafements is notl intended to present the Company s unconsolidaled financisl position, unconsolidated
results of operation or cash flows for the prior vear.

Cash and cash equivalents

narnzd 1204
VND VND
Cash on hand G4, 38E. 380 376,221,504
Cash in banks 45,7094 49%4 459 62.838.6017,086
Cash equivalants (*) 936,000, 000,000 B33,.500, 00,000

TO2A43 582820 1,028,714,838.590

Cash equivalents represent deposils al commercial banks with original term of less than three months and
eaming interest at the rates ranging from 4.65% — &4.75% per annum { 1/172024: 2.5% — 4 2% per annum).

Investments

Held-to-maturity investments

Cost and carrying amount
Izizoz4 1112024
VND YND
Held-to-maturity investments — short=terin
*  Term deposits 60006000000 103,601 .1 76,833

Heald-to-maturity investiments represent term deposits af commercial banks with original terms of more than
3 months and remaining terms of no more than 12 montha, carning inlerest ml rates rnging from 1.0%-
2.0% per annum (1/1/2024: from 1.4%-3.0% per annum }

1%



PO Group Joint Stoek Company
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

(b} Equity investments in other entities

= Righsidiaries

I
i

= e

B0 4 @ AA

.

P Haro Juinl Siock Company

PR Mien Mum Foim Sdeck Company [fsenerly known s Blizn Mam
B 1 Poweer Congiructios Co, Lid) (1)

bdien ac — Mo, | Fower Coastruction Insfallaticn Co., Lad

PCE My Ddich Joant Stock Compony {Foomecly knoam as My Déinh - W, 1
Power Corsmruction Ca., Lady (i)

Ha [homgy = M 1 Power Comstruciion instaliageon One Member Co,, Lid
PCT MNang Huong One Member Co., Lid

PCI Thing Lang Joinl Slock Camipun’y

P Ménh Bah Jos Sock Compony (lomagrly kancwmas Rink Bl -
Mo 1 Power Construction Installngion Coo, L) Giii)

g Ank Szl Tosver Manufsctunp Ca., Ll

VL Trng Thu Hydmopower Jaint Stock Camngamy (vig)

11.3y INnk Real Estate Investment loinl 5iock Company

12, Vbt Inclistrind Ercetion Joknt Stock Lty

15 Hea Binh Astomabile Mechanicol Inim Sinck Compamy

14. By Lain Energy Jainl Stock Compasny

%, Monlsern Ensvgy Tivestment Fadnd Suck Comgproy {vEi)

I3, Tien Bo westment Troduge Boind Soeds Comngreny

17, Eicn Lap Wind Poaver Joint Stock. Comparny

18 Phong Ny Wind Fower kint Ssock Campany

19 Plong Mguven Wind Power loter Siock Company

200, Evestimend and Technobogy Service Joint Stock Company

21, Van Phat Miserals Joint Stock Compary

22 Kang Gam Hydmpower lainl Stack Company (v}

23 Holdmg Commeerce Equipment Company

34 Aaia Diged Trabing P Lol £vlil)

25, 1wt My Intemetionad Industriad Pork Joint Stock Compuny | v)
26 Inpan — Hni Phong Indusdrial Aomse Developrnens Comporsiion | viii]
371 Apssaralia Py Lad

Addiress

Hanoi

Hio Chi kimh
Ciry
Henezi

Hazisd
Homod
Hags
Hurksi

Mink Binh
EHTE
[Men Hien
Hanoi
Hauhuai
Hanai
Cas Biiig
Cao Bang
Hamixi
Cheang Tm
Ceang Tr
Quang Tr
Hazii
o Bang
oo Hang
Hamni
Singapore
Hui Phuong
Hiai Phong
Agiiralin

% of equity owned amd

Y ol veling rights

SRS

Hhaies
[0 10

SO,
|G
1000
M), (4}

T, 12
LD
LI
030,
B0
o5 R
PR
5100
TS
5.5
F4 NS
14.13%
51,008
§7.27%
R
4o THG
100G
95 050
0T
LD,

Form B 0% - DN
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122024
Allowanee for

Cast dimimaibon in value  Falr valae

W NI W NI VMDY
150160 033 N ("
0, 0100, (170, O - %)
D236, 005 197 {1 317518506 ™
24,300,000, 0 - |
5942874513 - i*
TI5, 500,851 - ("l
3,5066,291,623 - =}
A, THL T 300 - ™
JRHRD AR LM . (%3
15 1. 200, (00 (D - (*)
IO 338000000 - (™}
2 550, iME} K} - *)
124003 318217 - )
33,91k, (MK, (K] - *)
NN EREARCEN - (i |
I54, 145,058,545 - [
A s 1L EE M2 - {*)
AT AT D), D - i)
A12A4T9. 556,200 - ™
1,576,851,000 - "l
AT, 500, BN, L0 - "
SR RO, DO - i*
LGS AL 51T - "
140,550,893 451 - i*
424, B0 DD OO - [*3
A0 358 04l - i*¥
5 118,703 b - *}
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PCI Group Joint Stock Company
Notes 1o the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Associnies
1. Coe Bamg Casl lrea e Seeel Jolnr Stoeck Comipeiy
2, CT2 Real Estate Invertment loint Stock Compaey

T Western Facific Inint Sinck Compiy (vil

4, Pha Bink Warehowsing Joint Steck Company

(rihers
1. Winadnon Centrifkgsl Concrese Jome Sock Compuany
2 Jalm Stock Coprvercis] Bank for Frvestment and Development of Wickaom

Aufdress

Lok Pangg
Hanni
Ho Chi Mink
iy
Fa K= -
Vung Tau

Hing Dy
Hainat

S of equity owmed amd
% of voting rights

25,0,
A5 ¥,

JLERY,

6 T

Ll
(L1 15%

Form B {# - [N
f el el Corowlar N, JIVERT4TT-81C
ohriead” 22 Dhocesrher T4 o ihe Mty ol Fiwamee)

I 2034
Allswance fisr

it diminutian in value Fair valae

VRND VN WHID
124,748 756, | 68 (36,010 34,227 il
000, D00 : i*)
1,206, 243,900,000 - il
08 A0 D00, O0 - |

LavE3akase it (SROD0S0023T)

4G ABIANDD {4 L0 DO (*}
FZ1_TTANN - 2ORRWHE TSN

e W T EEECHEE PR

5004923 967 157 (41328.019.433)
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FC1 Groap Joint Stock Company
MNotes to the separate Gnancial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {continwed )
Form B (49 - DN

fiemard s Circanfar N SNV 200GT .00
whirded 22 Deceembier 2004 pf dhe Wb af Fieance)

LUz
%o of equity wned Allwance for
Auldress amd ¥ af voting rights Cinst dimimution in valus Falr value
(%) YD YND VNI
= Bubsidinrics

I, 101 Hunoi Joint Slock Compoms Hazrii LR 3,519.064,533 - {*}
21 Mien MNam Jeim Steck Company (femerly kaown e kfien

Mam b, 1 Power Cimaimoctiee O, Lid) Hin Chi Mirh City LLERNR G 25,00, CEML, (0D - *)
3 Mien Bac - Mo, | Power Consgniction Enstal lation Co. Lid Iitrmi P00 % TEL2 36 [0 597 . (*}
4 IC1 My Dinh foim Stock Conipany | Fommerdy known 2= by Dinh

R | Power Congtreetion Ca., Lid) Hurwi 00,00 3000 DO 0 - ")
5. Ha Dang =Xo, 1 Pewer Constructicn Instalkatbon

e desnber Co. Lad [Hznde LGP SUMLATALS ¥ Ll
6, PC I MNang Huong Chne Member Cia,, Lid Hidnw L OO T25.500 851 = "]
T PO Ty Lo Jodnt Stock Campany THunai 6, (0, 3.566,251.625 - "]
B. [hame Anh Stccl Tower Wanufscturng Co., Lid Hunod ML (A 2ERIL 168406 - "]
9, Trurg Thu Hydronower Foint Stock Compony hen Bidn full [ 15 B 200008 CH) = i*)
i by Dvindy Ryl Eszate Inviestment Inint Sock Company Hanoi 08 3% T 3R ANRTHK) - i*
11, ¥ietnam Industmal Erection Jeanl Stock Caindaty Hanai 51008 3 S5k B - i*
12, Hou Binki Automobile Mechanicsl Foint Stock Company Hanoi U R 18405518217 - ")
15, B Lam By Joant Stock Cismpiny Lo Baag 0.00% 33 55, DN, 000 - "
L4 Mortherm Encrgy [nvestment Jaint Stock Company T Fang S0 L 1A, £ 4] - (")
£3, Tien Ba lnvestment Treding Joint Sock Company Henol 93 154144058, 145 2 i*1
Dh, Lhen Lap Wind Power Joint Stsck Company Clusang Tri 55.50% A0S Ll ESG 02 - i'h
[ 7. Phang Huy 'Winkd Powor Joint Stock Campany Cusang Tri 34.701% A1 2.420,000, 000 - (*)
LE, Phong Mguyven Wind Power loint Stook Compeny Cuang To 54.73% AP 2ATI S5, 200 & i*s
L9, Investmend ol Techaplogy Service bing Swoek Company Hanoi S1.MH1% 1.BTé 51,00 - ")
20, Tan Phit Minerals loint Slock Compmy Coo Bang e AT S0, G0, ) - *}
21, Sany O Hlydropower Joing Stock Compasy Cuio Bang A0 01 2, O, (0 - (")
22, Holding Commerce Equipment Campany Hanioi 99.75% 311,652 469,517 - (*}
23, Astn Dragon Trading Pre. Lid Singapore [ LERN 190,930, 8058 a5 - *1
24, Heai Phomg Infernational Indosiral Park Joint Sec, Conipany Hai Phang FAKFn S8, KB, LR H D, MR - "}
2%, Jupam = Hai Phong Indstrial Sone Developmest Coeparation Hatk Flisiig o TR R T, By v [*¥
26 FCT Astratln Pry Lad Austradia [EEERE i U1 8. 723,41k - ("

3, TEOG2T, TG 1D

LR T # g F



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate financial statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continuwed)

& Associaies
I, Cio Bang Cast lron and Sieel Joint Sock Comprany
2. U132 Benl Estare investmernt Joint Siock Company
1 ‘Western Pacibic Joint Siock Coampany
4. Fhu Bish Warehoneing kvint Stock Cempany

= (Mhers
. Vinnincen Cenrifugal Conerele Joinl Sueck Canmipany
2, Jint Seock Cenmmencial Bank for Invesiment md
revelopment of Vigtnzn

Adiress

Clnis ong
Harpis
Ho Chi Minkh iy
B Bia — Vg Tas

Hui Drueag

IHan=m
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1iRARFn R R LEEREEELN 1L B0 2. 90A 1*]
N0 5% R21.Tr0000 - 2534 300,400

4,82 1, T 0000 (3,606,002, 909

5397 898 502, TRY [3.60001 2,904

% e T T



*)

(il

(i)

(i1}

{iv)

(v

{vi)

{vii)

Lwiii}

PCI Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the separate financial statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continaed)

Form B 09 - 3N
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The Company has not determined fair values of these invesimenis fir disclosure in the separate fmancial
statements because information ebout their market prices 15 not avallable and there is currently no guidance
on determinstion of fsir value using valuation techuiques under the Vietnamese Accounting Standards or
the Vicmamese Accounting Sysiem for Emerprises, The fair valves of thess investments may differ from
Uaeir carrying amoumnls,

In the 2*¢ quarter of 2024, the Company completed the transfer of 208 of the contributed capital of PC1
Mien Mam Joim Siock Company 1 individuals,

In the 24 quarter of 2024, the Company completed the transfer of 20% of the contributed capital of PCI
My Dinhy Joint Stock Company 1o individuals.

In the 17 quarter of 2024, PC1 Niih Bith Joint Stock Company (formerly known as Ninh Binh - No. |
Power Construction Installation Co., Lid) became a tier-1 subsidiary of the Company through the
Company s receipl of 100% of the contributed capital of this company from PC1 My Dinh Joint Stock
COomparny.

Inthe 4™ guartér of 2024, the Company completed the ransfer of 34% of the contributed capital of PC
Minh Binh Joint Stock Company to individuals.

In the 2 quarter of 2024, the Company completed an additional contribution of VINDG6,000,000,000 o
Song Gam Hydropower Joint Stock Company.

In the 2* quarter of 2024, the Company completed an additional contribution of YNDE15,000,000.000 to
Hai Phong Intemational Industrial Park Joint Stock Company.

In the 4* quarter of 2024, the Company completed an additional contribution of VNDO0,243 800,000 w0
Western Pacific Joint Stock Company,

As al 31 December 2024 and 1 January 2024, all of the Company s shares in Trung Thu Hydropower Joint
Stock Company end Northern Enerpy Investment Joint Stock Compeny are used s collaterals for the bonds
issued by the Company (Naeta 23BN,

As at 31 December 2024, all of the Company’s capital contribution in Asia Dragon Trading Pte. Ltd. and
lJapan — Hai Phong Industrial Zone Development Corporation was uaed as collaterals for the Company’s
long-term borrowings (Mote 2Z3(bKi.



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Accounts receivable from customers

Form I 09 — 1Y

(e wieler Circuloe No 04 TTRTC
denigad 23 Dircwrmle 2004 af e Mimdiry of Flrorece)

Accounts receivable from customers detailed by significant balance and related parties

Tier-1 subsidiaries

Hai Phong Intermational [ndustrial Park

Joint Stock Company

Song Gam Hydropower Joint Stock Company
PC I Mien Nem Jont Stock Company

PC 1 Ninh Binh Joint Stock Company

Azia Dmgon Trading Pte: Ltd.

PC1 Hanoi Joint Stock Company

hien Bac - Mo, | Power Construction Installation Co., Lid
Tan Phat Minerals Joot Stock Company
[Hhers

Tier-2 subsidiaries

Thai Nguven Galvanized Steel Tower Joint Stock
Company — a subsidiary of Dong Anh Steel Tower
hanufacuring Co., Ltd

Tu Liem —No. 1 Power Canserisction [naalintion Co,, Lid
—a subsidiary of PC 1 Mien MNam Joint Stock Company

Parties whose key management personnel are close
family members of the key managoment porsonnel of
the Company

Dai Dung Mechanical Electrical Joint Stock Company
Minh Hung M&C Joint Stock Company (formerdy known
as “DHh Ton Construction Investment Joint Stock
Company )

Diher parties

Hanoi Power Develogment Project Manszement Boand —
Hanoi Power Corporation

Ho Chi Minh City Power Grid Project Munagemeani Board
The Southern Yietnam Power Project Manzgement Board
The Central ¥ietnam Power Project Managemen! Boarnd
The Morthern Vietnum Power Project Management Board
Morthern Power Corporation

Vietnam Electricity Power Projects Management Board
M2 — Vicmam Elacericiy

Tien Giang Wind Power Joint Stock Company

Chher customers

Inranze
VND

20,641,051, TRR
1357 837,600
f,763,715.807

370541400
S21,4060,000
432,241,755
354,027,654
48 560.000
32,416,000

32 514,545,634

B, 005 535

28,457,138.160

47680992

203,77R019.270
118,049,317475
79,023,533.034
75,589377.861
61,900,913,732
41,930,797 45)

1IL2024
VMDD

9333451788
5,484,987.785
A.760L81 2,315
2.B13.371.338
A, 000,000
1.288,102, 959
385,239,654
39,158.249.697
17,527,083 ,010

42,514,545,634

BA6,595,535

| 52,8599 801,367
[ 10 265 460
87, 1%.B55067
9200269, 106
ThO16,197.514
62,530, 160977

13,480,528 945 46,983 635 351
20,434 366,560 SO, ODDO00,000
523,262,531.407 490,131 278,286
1246277840072 I 073,050,006, 858
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Form B 09 — DN
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I =5

TR Wil

Prepayments to suppliers

J11202024 1172024
YND VNI
Tier-1 sulmidiaries
PC1 Mien Nam Joint Stock Company $1,340,407.220 -
PCL My Dink Joint Stock Company 27008034266 -
Mien Bac —Na. 1 Power Construction Installation Co., 1.1d 18,11 1,054,653 18,460,974 653
PCI Ninh Binh Joint Siock Company D553 072 123 3.291,288.384

Investment and Technology Service Joint Stock Company
Bao Lam Energy Joint Stock Company

6,006,907 833
2,596,792, 759

1 430,662,595

Dang Anh Sieel Tower Manufacturing Co., Lid 1.938,852,778 -
PC 1 Henoi Joint Stock Company I,Fel.733,939 =
FC1 Thang Long Jeint Stock Company J42.850,487 =

Tier-2 subsidiaries
Tu Liem—No. | Power Construction Installation Co, Lid

— B subsidiary of PC| Mien Nam Joint Stock Company 3 UER.EI3,480 4,736,002 478

Thai Nguven Galvanized Steel Tawer Joint Stock Compuny

— @ subsidiary of Dong Anh Stes] Tower Manufacturing

Co., Ld T.463.270,654 T463.270 654

Orther partics

Gl Loc Phat Toint Sioek Company 105,988 840,452 95,984 840,482

Seng D No_ § Joint Steck Company 30.974,554.174 -

Domglang Electrie International Carparation 40,926,457 094 -

Thang L.ong Investment and Technology Transfer

Joint Siock Company - 7.377.632.227

Chhers 151, 750,902,130 J7454.719,534
BB 453454, 061 I86,723.471,407

oy

i
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form [ 0% — BN
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Heceivables on construction contracts according to stages of completion

Accumulated costs of construction contracts in progress
at the end of the ves
Adiribartable profiis

Accumulyred revenee of construction conracts in
progress an the end of the vear
Progress billings and advances from customers

Loans receivable — shori-term

Tier-1 subsidiarics

My Dinh Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company
Tien Bo Investment Trading Joint Stock Company
Boo Lam Encrgy Joint Stock Company

Song Cam Hydropower Joint Steck Company

Tan Phat Minerals Joint Stock Company

Tier-2 subsidinrics

Thei Mguyen Galvanized Steel Tower Joint Stock Compamy
- subsidiary of Dong Anh Steel Tower Manufacturing
Co. Lud

Chther party
(llobal Green Energy Consulting Joint Stock Company

A4 303
VD VD
165,278,407 860 .
23.546,0175,320 3
[B8. 524,483,198 "
I9637.333.42%) -
Q187,149,775 z
123024 112024
VMDD VNI
27.234.176,793 .
24,0040, 000,000 22,000, 000,000
5500, D06, 00 | 0,000, 004,000
= a8 AR ]
= SO MR, (KB
16,302.6%3,300 16,302 653 400

2,588 410,051

2588410051

T5.625,280.244

106,051, 103,451

Louns receivables have the term of less than 12 months, are unsecured and sarn imterest ot eates of 4.0% 1o
6.0% per annum (1/12024: 4.0% w0 9.0% per annum), At the dete of these sepamte financial statements,
the principal and interest receivables of These loans hive been extended to the 27 Quarter of 2025.
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PCT Group Joint Stock Company

Motes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Other receivables

Dividends and profits distribution receivable (*)
Advances for site clearance compensation (%)
Advances 1o employess

Inferest income from deposits and loans (%)

Receivable from Tran Mhong {Constructon Team ¥No. 33
D posile, mortgages

rbers

Form B 04 - DM

Cugpwa undler Llrevaar Moo M0 LTTRIC

diateed 27 Desereber NI el ik Anivasy of Finmane)

These include other short-tzem receivahles from retated parties as follows:

Divideads and profits distribution receivable

Tier-1 subsladlaries

Tan Phnt Minerals Joint Stock Company

PC I Mien ham Jolnt Swck Company

My Dnh Real Estte Invesimen) Joint Stock Company
PC 1 My Dinh Joint Stock Company

PC 1 Ninh Binh Joint Swock Company

Bao Lam Enerpy Joint Stock Company

Hoa Binh Automobile Mechaonical Joint Stock Compsany
Mien Bac - No. | Power Construction Inssallation Co., Ltd
Investment and Technology Service Joint Stock Company
Phong Huy Wind Power Joinl Stock Company

Vietnam Indusirial Erection Joant Stock Company

Phong Nguyven Wind Power Joint Stock Company

Dong Anh Steel Tower Manufacturing Co., Lid

Morthem Energy Investment Joint Stock Company

Ter-2 sibsidiories

Tu Liem — Mo, 1 Power Constroction Installation Co., Lid —
w subsidiary of PC1 Mien Nam Joint Stock Company

Associafes
Wesiern Pacific Joint Stock Company

L2024 112024
VND YD
152.605,436.256 102.912,151,561
04.286.957.077 94,595,206, 236
12328 041,565 25681 80K, 302
7472, 789,540 9,168,117,522
2181 ,632.200 2151632, 200
28I IR0.000 3,570, 850,000
1,798, 789,925 1,187.679.870
2T0917, 526,563 239.267.535,790
31/12/2024 171/2024
YD YD
62 962,638,000 -
|6,970,431,356 =
0,935 000, (R0 =
9684, 600,043 =
7,457,025,264 4,763,941 603
5,015, 900,000 5,04 D060, 0010}
4,751,908.000 17,819,655,000
1664, 708,651 | st TON 51
1 0 8,000,300
- 23,567 B85,089
- 1,377,000, 000
- 17,320,05,843
- 14,620,338, 660
i 14,702,758, 871
1,054,956,942 |, 034,956,942

33,028, 268.000

152,605,436,256

102,9212,151,361
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Motes (o the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 {contin wed)

Form B 0% - DN
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JiAareg ranze
YWMND YIND

Interest income from loans
Fier-1 sohsiefiaries
Tien Bo Investment Trading Joint Siock Company 230,410,959
My D¥nh Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company 549,160,384 -
Bao Lam Energy Toint S10ck Comppay 197 835616 158232877
Holding Commercial Fquipmen Company 6,375,342 -
Song Gam Hydropower Joint Stock Company - 1,050,345, 205
PCI Ninh Binh Joint Siock Company . 89,424 638
Tier-2 subsidiaries
Thai Nguyen Galvanized Stec] Tawer Joini Stock Comparty 4,932.251 636 6,451,778, 458

6,616,233,93% 1742781198

154,221,670, 195 11,654,932, 750

Uther receivables from related Parties are unsecured, interest free and receivable #s per agreements.

{(**}  These are advance payments for land compensation and site clearanee costs al construction projects, which
will he reimbursed by the project investors; and advances for fand tompensation in real estate projects.
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PCI Group Joint Steck Company
Noles to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Bad and donbtful debts

{hverdoc debits

L usiomer group |
Cusiomier group 2

Customer growp 3

.r.l'.' '||.-.|'r.I=¢.'.|'r

Uverdue
perind

From
1io 2 vears
From
2o 3 years
Oy
3 years

Allowance for daubiful debis - shor-term

J1/121024
Reeoverable
Cos=i Allowanee smarml
YD YD VN
IR2TR09 80T (38 2TRO0LEZY)
Jo,830,154.593  (Jo.830,154,593)
4 TIRTIE 09 (4. 758, T18,0897)
THB44 BoS 500 (T9E44865,500) -
(79,844 R65, 50&)

Overdue
period

From
| o 2 yeprs
From
2o} years
Cheer
3 years

Form B 0% —DN
{iardd ke ireine ¥o. NI TLTT-BTC

aaied 2 Deceavner N af the Mirininr of Fimance)

172024
Recoverahle
Cost Allowance fimuunt
VNI Y YD
5183.873.781 (5,183,873, 781} -
5183873781 (5.183,873,781) .

(5. 183.873.781)

3
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FC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09— [N

Sitrrues’ wredee Cirewlar No, 20000/ 4TT-8NC
gl I3 Déceanber 208 o e Miwiery of Fimarce)

Inventories
1122024 12024
Cost Allswanee Closi Allowance
VNI YD VHND VMDD

Raw mnterinls 1,429,527,241 - H72,055,967
Waork in progress {i) B40,922 321 447 - 239 876, 318816
Merohandise inventorics LAi6645,319 s T1. 219683, 663

B45 868 404,107 - AL, T6E.058. 448
Work in progress comprised:

322024 | Fp LRt
YD VD
Constraction, mpply of electrical eguipment amd construction
of industrial park infrastructire:
EPC — Wind Power Plant Project = Khal Lomg - Ca Mau Tourist
Area Phase 1, Khai Long Wind Power Plant Phases 2 and 3 and
L IOKY feeder extension ot Mam Can 220&Y Substation 42,004, 157613 Mo 85
EPC Package for construction of icchnical mirastmisciure -
Yen Phong 1-A Indusinal Park, Project: Infrastruciurs
Construction lnvestment and Infrastructure Bugingss =
Yoo Phonyg -4 Tndustrinl Park &0, 737 850,000 26,700 B0G, 520
Ckbwers 139 &TT.207.072 167 BRI SET.RID
Real extiate prajecic:
Thap Vang Residential Are:n Project () 607 085 061,671 -
PC1 Bac Tu Liem Priject (G35 - CT2 and G8 - CT3
Residential Ares for sale) 7490726417 7494995417
PCE Gia Lam Residentiol Area Project 2,506,203 784 2,596,191,784
Onbers 130T 115,850 -
Dihatr woirk i progress - 02595079
B40,022.331 447 239876 IR R1A

As at 31 December 2024, work in progress being land use rights with a camrying amount of VNDSOT billion

have been pledged with bank as security for the Company”s borrowings (Note 23h i1,

3l



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
MNotes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

13, Tangible fixed assets

Form B 0% — [¥N

{ilr et wadler Crecwlor Moo 20020497810
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Buildings and Other tangible
structures Plant and equipment Motor vehicles OHTiee equipmen fixed assets Total
WVND VINTD Ll L VNI YD ViRD

Cost
Cpening balance 1, 328940 421,410 1.241,384,083 987 163.321,470,49% 20,009,516, 147 I, 148,375,210 2. 754 805,457,253
Acdlelitions B, 0000, (00 642, 578,081 . 939434.234 J60,3 12,000 2781324315
Closing balance 1,329,781 421,410 1,242,027,262 068 163,321 470,400 20,94 8.950,381 [, 500,687 210 2,757 587,791 508
Accumubated
deprecimiion
Chpening balance 279875302236 346 827.741.478 BE.943 447 681 0205586, 550 YR7.262,883 726,039.335.828
Charge for the year 47.762.939.550 T893 485 880 16. 716,671,006 2.782.191.914 138.024.543 [38,293,312.933
Closing balance 327.m35.241,820 417, 721,227,358 03,060, | 13,687 FZ, 087,778,464 1,125,287 426 864 132, 648,76/
Piet book value
Opening balance |.M9,. 066,119,174 B9, 556,940 500 74378027818 10,603,929.597 161,113,327 2.028.766,131.425
Closing batonce 1OHE2, 143,179,584 B24,300,034,710 37.,66]1,356,812 8701071817 JB3, 399, TR 1,893,255, 142,807

Included in tangible fixed assets were assels costing YWND33 hillion which were fully depreciated as of 31 December 2024 (1/1/2024: YND29 billion), but are still in active
5,

Az at 3] December 2024, fangible fAxed assels with net book value of VNIVER 1Y billion (1702024 VKD 022 billion) wend pledged swith banks as securily for thi
Companys long — term borrowings (Mot 23(bKi0.

32
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 {eontinued )

Intangible fixed assets

Form B 09 - ON

Asswed wicker Clrendor Mo, 200000 0T8T

el 33 Decervber JOM of the Mty of F i)

Land use rights Software Total
VND YND VD

Cnst
Opering and ¢losing balance 1, 108,070,004 1,558, 400,000 2,706,4 70,000
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance - 1.253,324.655 1,253,324 855
Charge for the year - 215,354,795 215,354,795
Closing balance - I 468 679450 LARR.ETS 450
Net book value
Crpening balance I, 108,070, (M) 145,075,345 LA53,145,.345
Closing balance I, 10070000 129,720,550 1.237.790.550

Included in imangible fixed assats were nssets costing WNDI billion which were fully amortized s of 31
Drecember 2024 (1/1/2024: VISD110 titllzon} but are still in active use,

i3



— e o TR BN NIl mrihe Hedi | o241 | LR AR

PCT Group Joint Stock Company
Nofes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)
Form B 09— iy
Mesnied soider Civvalor Ko, M0200 4TI FTC
Iﬁ'll'ﬁ-ll 22 Lklii‘“llﬂ:'r 2l !.If.l'.'lr -lf.'.l.'l.l'.'r.l'l'_'. mrF.:Mm v

I5. Investment property held to earn rental

Miee area ai

MNang Huong Apartment fice arca ai Office arca at
Building My Diisels Plaza PCCI Ha Dong Complex Total
VND L VD YND
Cost
Opening balance 11,076,525,1 75 90,477.826,874 20,819.861,635 122374.213,687
Dispesals . . (20LB19,861,618) (20B19.861,638)
Closing balance 11076525175 BFATT R26.874 = 101,554,352, 040
Accumulated depreciation
Chpening balance 3.208.050,918 I9.436,638.410 6,286 442,679 F1,021,132.007
Charge for the vear A0 K71, 720 3.597,484.180 278,769,010 4,276,124919
[Mispeosals ‘ = (6,5365.211,689) [6,5635.211,680)
Clozing bakmge 3697922 647 43,034, 122,500 - 48,732,045 237
Met book value
Upening balance 5 7718,474.257 51041, 188 464 14.533,418.950 T1L353,081.680
Closing balance 3378602 528 47 443,704,284 = 52, 822306.812
34
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PC1 Group Joint Stack Com pamny
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
s undder el Mo, 2000010 47T 510
el 22 Deevmiber 2004 af the Minerirey oy Miamen)

16. Construction in progress

Cipening balence

Additions

Transfer of Thuong Ha project
Crilher movements

Clozing balancs

Mijor constructions in progress were as follows:

Lane uze rights
Thueng Ha Hydropower Project
Oithers

2024
YND

11.236.636,566
11,555,551, 04
5,400,824 855)

2023
YND

T.R59, 535 02
K05, 105 18]

{6,428,113.435)

17,391,362,725

11, 136,636,566

JLTL2024
YND

9.500,000.000

TH91,362,728

1172024
YD

4,450,643, 750
6. 779,990,816

17391, 362,725

11,2356,636,566

35
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FC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Motes to the separate linancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

17. Long-term prepaid expenses

Opening balance
Ackditions
Ameriisation for the year

Closing balance

Tonols and
msrumenis
VNI

2. 146,108,220
1,361,134,182
[1,754.951,359)

Aszet repair expenses
VN

10,156,162,111
8.863,435,290
(6.145.373.460)

Site clearance
expenzes ()
YD
27 A57. 563 426

(515,223 360}

Form B 0% - DN
firaeed whdker [ dcular Mo, 200200 T
ke B8 Dwermbee J00 4 of iiee Minisney af Finencek

Oihers Total

VD YND
16, 100,318 908 55 B6d, 152674
12,614,827 360 22,838 396,832

(11,137,506,27%) (19 553 054 458)

[,752.20] 052

12874223041

26,042,340 066

11577 630989 50.146,495.048

(¥ Compensation for site clearance of the hydropower projects Bao Lam 1, 3, 3A, and Bao Lac B shall be deducted from the annual land rental payable according
i thes moatices af the Can Bang Provineizl Tax Department, Ha Giang Provincial Tax Department. Details are as follows:

Projeet

Bao Lam | Hydropower Project
Bao Lam 3 Hydropower Project
Bao Lam 3A Hydropower Project
Bao Lac B Hydropower Project
Bao Lac B Hydropower Project

MNotice

Motice Mo, B2 TH-CT dated 23/112016
Motice Mo, BAWTR-CT dated 21/872017
Motice No. TO8TR-CT dated 782017
Matice Mo, 1216/TB-CT dated 10122019
Maotiga Moo HISDTR-CT dated 11/1172019

Deductible amonnt
{(VNE)

11 413,476,782
10,061 418,000
6h% 410,942
T.B0G4:45, 192
TRT. 714,301

30,737 ATOI0T

Deductible compensation for site clearance offset against land rental thit the Company had to pay anovally in prior years are VND3.667,478,156.

i
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate Minancial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {comiinued)

Accounts payable to suppliers

Form B (#— D

{Trsmea wmaier Clecwlar Mo, 2003 T -7

idvred! 23 Plevler 200 4 efithe Misistey of Fimanes)

Accounts pavable to suppliers detailed by significant balance and related parties

Tier=1 subsidiaries

PC1 Mien Mam Joint Stock Company

PC1 Hanoi Joint Stock Company

PC1 My Dinh Joint Stock Company

PC1 Thang Long Joint Stack Company

Dong Anh Steel Tower Manufacturmg Co,, Lid.
Ivestment and Technology Service Joint Stock Coanpany
PC1 Minh Binh Joint Stock Company

Vietnam Industrinl Erection Joint Stock Company
Bao Lam Energy Jomnt Stock Company

Other tier- 1 subsidiarics

Tier-2 subsidiarics

Thai Neuyen Galvanized Sieel Tower Joint Stock
Comparny — o subsidiary of Dang Anh Stee! Tower
Manufacturing Co., Lid

Diher pariles

Thang Lang Investment and Technology Transfer Jolm
Stk Company

L5-¥ina Cable & Svsiem Joimt Stock Company
(nhess

Coast and amount within

payment capaciry
x4 iirzazy
VND YN
179.0026,505,228 B6,432,400,016

95,215,201,203
B0,005,753,044
40,342,171,844
17,123.762,853

55.883,121.085
107,080,793, 198
34.402,085,687
5032, 534,430

15,318,884, 608 72,827, 824,100
15,203,570, 448 =
B.002. 335,941
7,360,583 1,043 ;
1237,753,453 3.549,638.093
Z1 417506
110037 444,656 %
1070, 670,943,560 248,857 9712
233,683,574,953 340, 740,857,971
10, 240,249,537 B06,198,113.402

k¥
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PCT Group Joint Stock Company

Notes (o the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Advances from customers

Tier-1 subsidiaries

song Gam Hydropower Joimt Stock Cempany

tapan = Hai Phong Indusirial Zone Development Corporation

Other parties

The Southern Viemam Power Project Management Board
Hanol Power Goid Project Management Board

Dong Thanh 1 Wind Power Ca., Lid
The Ceniral Yiginam Power Project Management Board

Southern Power Project Management Board

Power Project Management Board No. 3
Management Board of Urhan Railway

CXher oustomers

Taxes and others payvable to State Treasury

Value ndded tax (%)
Import-gxport tax
Corporate

imeamie
Personnd

ineome tas
Matural resource
taxes

Land and housing
1anes

Fees, charges ard
oiher taxes

112024
VNI

[ 505376905

|, 889,550,688
175,792,657

£61,157.836

1.536.513.768

5.06E, 302 864

Incurred
YAD

73,165264 212
I87, 180,665

1. 493,027,073
784417518

42,038, 110,962

574,192.379218

0,461,734,756

Form B 0% - DN

filvaweed umder Cuculer So, 02004 TT-8T0

darent 12 Dereweder X004 of e Wiy of Floereey

11712/2024 11172024
VD YND
203,820,349,243 4

: 4,561,937,571
45,543.836,821 ;
22,752,187,170 -
31,515453,438  31,515,451,438
16418328453 8
16.241,96] 858 ;

9,960,013,803 -
157825981  31.214,189,119
49.07B5TI627  34,511.249357
3195,088,528,304  101.802,829,495
Paid/offzet SL22024
VNI VND
(72,145,042,368)  2,525,508,762
(187,186,666) 3

(2.681,.782.076)
{7.571,709,68%)
(41542907 210)
(574,192,379,218)

(16,979,753, 788)

TO0, 706, 585
188,501,486

1,356, 30| 584

3,0 B, 494,736

719,122.121,303

(717,300,761,0140)

7.780,753,157

The mmount incurred represents the total value added 1ax amount payvable after being offset with input value

added fax each month,

35
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes te the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09— DN
{harue mrader Cieoadar Ao, 2R STT-RFC

dated 29 December 2904 af the Minlsrry el e

Accrued expenses

Acerued interest expenses to banks

Accrued expenses for construction works

Accruzd expenses for management and operation of hydropower
plants

AN2/2024
VND

41.583,620.829
316,080,332

1A/2034
Y™

45,043,797 444
212,852,064

2.372.267.853

41LE99, 01,161

48.618.917.361

Other pavables — short-term

Short-term deposits and collaterals received
Inierest payable

Femuneration of the Board of Management
Fayables for maintenance of real estate project
Trade umion fess

{hhers

Orther short-term payables from related companies were as follows:

Interest payvable to ther-1 subshdiaries

Tien Bo [nvestment Trading Joint Stock Company

Ha Dong — Mo, | Power Conatruction Installativn

Chine Bember Co, Ld

Holding Commercial Cauipment Company

Haoa Binh Auomobdle Mechanical Joint Siock Company

JF1252024 11142024
WD YND
$6,337,343,594  2,836,374,546
20, 142,048,920 10,452 528,300
3826, 000,040 2,610,000,000
611,598,395 954,027,395
33,388,838 142,761,278
B, 491 941,435 3.020.586,118
§7.443.222,182  20,020.281,837
311272024 1/172024
YND VND

6,550,061 8.249

6.553,618,24%

231 307,572 z
3,120,887,935 1.932, 887,935
[ 990,359,812 735885330

13896375578 02223591514

Other shart-term payables from related companies wers unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand,

e

amow e S o sl



23.

(a)

FC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Form B (9 — N
{ e el Circadar Mo, J00-20 0T8T
et 22 Decemeier 200 of e Admanior o Fianoe)

Borrowings
Short-term borrowings
17172024 Movement during the vear 3122024
Carrying amount and Carrying amount amd
amount within amount within
repavment capatity Addition Drecrense repavment capacity
VND VND VND VND
Shori-term borrowings [ AILO06 422 237 3,296,335, 495 660 (3452765, 164.712) 1.274.576.753 185
Current portion of long-lerm borrowings (Mode 230h10 230,048, D080, L0 297, 377 000,713 { 2300, 08, D00 LW 201 377,000,713
|.661.054 422 237 JSRTTIZA90.5373 (3,682,813, 164,712) 1,365.953,753,898

40
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PCI Group Joint Stock Company
MNotes o the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Form B 09 - DN
filemmeesl ol Cirenlar Mo, MENLTTHTT
ateawad’ 22 Dpcewter X of the Mo of Fivmoncel

Terms and conditions of outstanding shor-term borrowings wers ps followe;

Iaxn24 17172024
Currency VAND VD
Yietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for [ndustey and Trade — Thanh An Branch VM 400,903 165,167 436,540, 705,500
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investiment and Development of Yietnam = Henod Branch W 23264801 1.672 114450443 366
BHP Panbas Bank = Hanoi Branch VMDD 171,609 360,755 283, 545093, 2012
Viecmam [nternational Commercial Joinl Stock Bank WM L5006, 275,678 114,007 847000
ahinhan Bank Yietnam Limited — Hanoi Branch WD 109,933,069 913 4,833,534,209
HSBC Bank {Viemem ) Lid, WD PRAIEIDZ 212 227, 759337, 1940
Joint Stock Commersial Bank for Foreign Trade of Yietnam — Transaction Cffice WM 87,274.514,998 Be 1,120,535
Linited Cheerseas Bank (Vietnam) Limited WML 2,797 250,789 =
Bark of China {Hong Kong Limited = Ho Chi Minh City Branch YMD - | 15.608041,597
Woorl Bank Vietnam Limited — Hoan Kiem Branch YD - 51,591 299 638

1274576, 753,185 I A3L006,422.237

The shoet-fenn borrowings have the terms from & o 1 T months and are mnsecured.

(h) Long-term borrowings and bonds

IV L4 1172024
VNI VNI
Long-term borrowings (i) 236,630,064, 753 2,063,793,603,649
Straight bonds (i) 1.188,673.118,092 1.183,899,763,51 8
Repavable within twelve months (Mot 23{a) (291, 377,000,713} (230,048, 000,000)
Repayable afier | 2 months 3257.926.182,132 3.017,645,367,167

41



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

if}  Long-term borrowings

Terms and conditions of outstanding long-term borrowings were as follows;

Anmnun|
Currency  interest raie  Year of matarity Calkaterils
Tiwr-1 subsidiaires
Holding Comunerce Equipment Congpanmy YHD aies 2027 Unsevured
Huon Binh Antnmobdle Mechumice] Joint Siock. Coanpany WL 1.2 22T Unsécured
Hla Deng —Ma. | Power Constraction Installation Ca Lid WML 4.3% 2027 Elnsecured
Flen Bao Invesumest Teading loine Stock Cosnpamy VLY 4.1 20127 Elneceaired

Other parties
Enbire caplial conbrbaion of PCL ot Asia
Errmpon ‘Traclimg Pre. i, &ncd Japan = Hag

Victmam Jaint Slock Cemmencnl Bank fisr Inelicsdne sl Paemp Inifustrial Soee Dovelipmesnil

Truides - Thenkh An Boach U [y Ll Lot b0

Vieinopm Joint Stock Commercal Bank for Indusrry asd WD (k] LI Al pssers of Thap Wang

Trade = Thanh An Branch {i§) P ThI Pragec

Vietnam Joint Stock Commiercial Bank fisr Industry nesd VD (* 2030 Al mesets off Bao Lam | Hyvdropowes Propect

Trale = Thanh An Banch (1)

Vietiuen Joim Stock Conmercial Bank fr Indusiny nnd
T'ragle = Thanh An Branch (i)

Jaknt Steck Commercinl Bank for Fonsign Trade ol Vidinam ¥HId (™) 20E0
« Transcdvon (HTice (1]

Wictnum Joim Siock Commnercinl Back for Industey and

VMR (=%} 32 Al ety of Bao Lac 1 Hydropawer Progect
Al e ol Bao Lam 3 Hvdropower Projec

Al maugis ol Ban Lam 1A Hydropower

Traele — Thanh An Brwh () YD b 2030 Progect

laint Siock Commencnl Hank for [nvestmet and All'assets of Sonp Mhiem 4 Hydropower
Developmeent of Vietnam — Hannj Branch (i} YMIY [ 2033 Prajee

Technabogical msd Comivercial foing Stock Bark — FIO YHiY birs 2025 bnsnzured

Individul {iii) VD e 2027 Un=rcured

Form B 09 - DN
(lenial mockier Circwbir Mo KNG TT-BIT
dawed 22 Decemter M af the Mniney of Fiauicef

S LML INE4 If1/2024
WML Vi
B3O 000,000 SE DK LO A0
21030, THGSER TIRELATLAIR
SOEH. B 300 348 Bl 5ed
= 1 2CLAMO ) AN O]
Sl | M) O OH0
IHLO5A, 1 16T
FIR 0, 105, TOHY JR0,N08, 393,700
274000, 508, 17 05,054, 508,179
I, F9 BURA0T 11 R ROT
T4E BAZ S2I 4T 152313 823473
|32 (R CHEL O [EEALLEREL TR
10 P00 T 13 ELE R A Rl
[ D AT CICHI [LUREELERELERITE ]
TAGLGIAGATEE 263, T9E 05 649

(i) These long-term bomowings were secured over tangible fived assets with a carrying amount of VN 813 billion (1/172024: VNOT 922 hillian) (Note 133,

(it} These long-term borrowings were secured over work in pregress with a carmying amount of VINDSOT billion [Mote 12).
{iii} The individual that pranted long-term loars to the Company is not 2 related party of the Company.

W\ B2 /8y



i |

[’li‘)

(i)

PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
MNotes (o the separale financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 {continued)
Form B 09 - DN
sl wesder Circudar Yo, 200 2004 TT-8TC
doved 22 December X014 ol the Morister of Fracmap
These logns had preferential mierest rates from capital suppon of the World Bank’s rencwable energy
development program (REDP).

These loans had an annual interest rate determined as the 12-month VMD savings deposit inerest rate plus
A mErgin,

lhese borrowings have a fixed preferential interest nate Tor 12 months from the first disbursement date. In
the sueceeding years, the annual interest rare is determined as the 12-month VNI savings deposit interest
rate plus & margin.

Straipht bowmds
Year of 31122024 1172024
Currency matariry YD VD

Bonds issued at par

Lt | WD 2U2T FO00 000, D00 D SO0 00 CH (0H
Lint 2 YND 2027 SO0 OO0, D00, 50 SO0, 000, COMD, DG
Bond 1ssuance cosis (11,376,881.908) (16, 100.236,482)
Bonds maturing after 12 months LIBBATIII8092 | 153 %04 763,518

These bonds had an arnual intersst rate determined as the 12-month VNI savings daposit intetest rie plus
A mAargin,

As at 31 Decernber 2024 amd 1 fanusry 2024, the ahove bonds sre securad by some ordinary shares of
Company held by some related individuals and all of the ordinary shares of Tring Thu Hydropower Joint
Stock Company and MNorthemn Energy Investment Joint Steck Company held by Company (Moge 3(b)).

The purpose of issuing long-term bonds is to invest in indusirial zone real estnte development through the
purchase of existing and newly issued shares of Western Pacific Joint Stock Company including making up
tor the Company®s owners” equily used 1o perform this transaction and supplementing the Company ‘s
warking capital.

43
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PC1 Gronp Joint Stock Compuny

Motes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
Form B (% — DN

e’ il Circwhee Mo, 20030 4TT-RIT

aiviaal 22 Dermader N0 ol the Mslsony of Firaca)

Bonus and welfare funds

This Tund is established by appropriating from retained profits as approved by the General Sharcholders’
Meetkng. This fund is used 10 pay bonus and welfars to the Company 's empleyees in accordance with the
Company s boms and welfare policies.

Movements of bonus and welfare fund during the year were as follows:

2024 2023

VNI VD
Oipening balance | 45,827 662,533 108,909 881,324
Appropristion 11,270,065, 790 &6,792,089.518
Litilisation (26,870,139 180 (29,874 308,30%)
Closing balance 130,227, 568,43 145,827.662,533

R
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate inancial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued )

Form B 09— DN
e mader Circnlyre No, N201 4 TT-FIC
dherten! 22 Devoanber Ml 4 o the Monsiry of Finamoe)

25. Changes in owners' equity

Invesiment and
development Oiher equity
Share eapital Share preminm fumd fomids Retained profits Tuotal
VD VD VIND VNI ViND V™D
Balance at 1/1/2023 2. T S0, 00000 TIE, | 36,556, TRE 211577792 672 632 444,542 95 145,355,439 4 8592 B22, 168 4349
Met profit for the vear - - - - 112, Td).657. 801 T2 700657, 801
Appropristion to investment
angd chevelopirment fund = - 33.396.044,759 - (33,396,044, 730 -
Appropriation 1 bonuy and
welfare fund (Mote 24) - . - - (66, 702 080 51 8) (G, 7O 080, 518)
Dividends (Mole 27) A0S 625,560,000 . - - (405,625, 5600007 2
Remuneration of the Board of
Managemen - i - - (ZE90,000,0000  (2.890,000,000)
Balance at 1/1/2024 1109,955,580,000 711,136,556, 786 XM60TIRITAZ  64,632.444 542 RO3, 142,319,053 4,935 840,737 812
Wet profit for the year . - - - 269, 764,321,899 269,764,321, 8%
Approprigtion to bonus and
willare fund MNote 24 = E - - (11,270,065, T (11,270,063, T%0)
Pavment of share dividend
(Muste 27} 466,465 630,000 . - - {406,263 ,6 30, (K8 -
Remumeration of the Boand of
Management - - - - {6, MO0, DO, Oy i G D000, OO, D0
Bulanee at 317122024 1576421 210,000 T11, 136,556,786 246,973 537 431 04,632 244 547 5B0.170,945,162  5,188,334,993,911

T
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 — N
(asasesd monder Chpmlar Mo, SNV S T-BTT
aiatead 23 Decepber 3000 6 the Ministry of Finanee)

Share capital
The Company s authorised and isseed share capital are;

Jii2id 1712024
Mumber ol Mumber of
shares YD shires YN

Authorised share capital IFT 642121 3576421210000 310995558 1.109.955.580,000

Issued share capital
Crrdinary shares JATOAZ021 3576421200000 310995558 3. 109,955,580:000

Shires in circulation
Crrdinary shares FFTH42.121 3576420200000 310995558 3.109.955,580.000

All ordinary shares have a par value of VNDI0.008, Each share is entitled to one vote at meefings of the
Company. Shareholders are entitled 1o receive dividend as declared from time to time. All ordinary shares
aré ranked equally with regand to the Company's residual azsets

Dividends

In the 4" gquarter of 2024, the Company distributed share dividends to shareholders amounting w
YHDA66A65.630,M00 from the profit after fax of 2023, cquivalent to 15% of por walue (2023;
WMNDA0S,625, 560,000 from the profit after tax of 2022, equivalent to 15% of par value),

Al



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continned)

Form B (9 - DN
filrrasesl prcler Cocadae Ao 2200 TS
eliredd 23 Py eewiber 2004 of phe Ministry of Fiannve)

28. OHf balance sheet items
in)  Non-cancelluble operating leases
R B e (8 | 17172024
YD VIND
Within onz vear 3,760, 540,034 1,712,799,231
Within two tn five years 12,550,643, 820 1R.563,006,1535
16, 320,183,854 22.276.795 386
ib}  Foreign currencies
11272024 1Frne4
Original VND Orriginal ¥ND
currency equivalent CUITEney equivalent
UsD 1.161.960 29339955 219 178053 4274 435,111
LAK G D] 528,941 a2 163 400 607
29. Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services

Total revenue represents the gross value of goods sold and szrvices rendered exclusive of value added tax,

Mel reveniue comprised:

2024 2023

VND VND
Revenue from construction. supply of electrical equipment
and construction of industrial park infrastruciure 2712106 231,929 2 1A9.000, Tas, 444
Revenue from sale of merchandizes and maferials QA0.040 464,073 1,041,561, 887,275
Revenue from sale of electricity 00871670211 IR 808,752
Revenue from trarsfer of nvestment progsery 23.ME279,111 100,039, 815,705

Revenue from rental ol investiment property

16,228,127.314

22,832, 984,007

- Y- o

Revenue from trarsfer of Thuong Ha Hydropower Project Q364,077,009 5
iCkhers 53,152,614 276 1T8821,353,438
4,283 RIS, 1TH.B25 5790979 619211

a7
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Cost of sales

Cost of construction, supply of electrical equipment ard
conatruction of industrial park infrastrecture

Cost of merchandizes and materials sold
Cost of electricity sold

Cos1 of trunsfer of investment property
Costof rental of investment property

Cost of transfer of Thuong Ha Hydropower Project

Others

Financial income

Interest income from deposits and koans
Dividends and profits distribution
Realised foreign exchange pains

Crains from capital transfer

Interest from deferred payment
Unrealiszed foreign exchange gnins

Financial expenses

Interest expenzs

Bomd issuance costs

Realised foreign exchange losses
Unrealised foreign exchange losses

Allowance for diminution in the value of long-tferm

financial investments
L.oszes fromn capital transler
Chihers

Form B 09 — DN

Firredd gl Clrcwlar o, AO200LTT-RTC
cdared 32 Lecpmber M of the Sivlerey of Fioaroe)

20z4 bl | ]

Y VMDD
2.596,209.429. 167 2.033.012,963,919
Q4R 353 520,670 021,975,499, 702
235 1T7.912.983 203993473339
14,499, 350,734 A4.695, 154,685
6,577,764, R0 11.089354.334
S.400 824 855 B
49,682,115.400 106218572056
A BA5.900.025.608 3460099 Q18935

2024 2033

WM VND
20,084,867 0al 50,776,000, 762
I6T. 508 663,290 257645, 284871
1.958.716.684 RB37,999. 504
| D000, 00 THIT.693 0046
2063.62] 851 6,234 8954175
- 720,218,410
J94, 725 864, 880 323,834, 150,750

2024 2023

VM VD
303,737.417,994 JGR60Z 084,043
4.773,354.5T4 4.734.013.741
1164584953 G4 802 STH
ToE068. 518 i
37.722.005,524 220300610
03.6346,191 -
- 1072, 086,906

348,567 068,754

405,693.467.930
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PCT Group Joint Stock Company

Motes 1o the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Selling expenses

Depreciation and amortisation
Diigsade services
Oither selling expenses

General and administration expenses

Raw material cosis

S1aff costs

Depreciation and amorsaion

Provisiondreversal) of allowance for doubtful debis
Tax, fee and charpe

Ouizide services

CHher edpenses

Production and business costs by element

Raw material costs

S fT cusis

Depreciation and amortisation
Ouiside services

Dther expenses

Form B4 = 10

(e ancler Cirenhar Yo, 22 EOTT-ATC
dietedd 22 Dgegpuber 200 of the Mimisiry of Finamee)

1024 2023
VND VND
8,027,398 s
7,788,003,200 11,682,521 310
364,233,530 131,213,921
S 60264, 128 FEET4,435 240
24 2023
YN YINIY
1,554,273,342 4,271,107.96%
67.636,144,681 61,646,946,798
6,577,880, 190 7,226,378 520
75.106,147 415 (350,000,000}
2.990,822.154 1,437.126,759
30, 787.006.060 28,613,197 475
10,517,527,766 8,640,143,500

195, 169,891,608

111,524.903,120

024
YIND

6015,269,31 0,872
£5,392,129,557
142,784,792.647

2 821.180,840,730
42,211,302.615

2023
YN

471,631,195.580
73,342.802,676
145,652,200,32
,753,736,297,437
39.055,417.559

1606, 838,376,421

2:483,417,911,873

44
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{a)

(b)

{c)

'C1 Group Joint Stock Company

Motes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B (9 — 1™
floxmed pwaler Cuvalar Np, MVRILT-RIT
el 32 Decombor 2009 of the Maviciry of Fingoce)

Income tax

Recognised in the separate statement of income

2024 2015
VND VNI
Current tax expense
Current yeur A0, 114,004 2.076,724,021
Under provisioen in prior years LA R F1,754.462.611
[, 493027973 [3,83], 186,632
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
4 2023
V™D VND

Accournting profit before fax

271.257349.872

126.531,844,523

Tax at the Company’s 1ax rafe 54,251 469,974 25,306,368 005
Non-deductible expenses 523.487,084 OTE. 598,702
Tax exempt income (73.519,732,658) {31,520,056,974)
Changes in unrecognised temporary differences 6,037,408 358 (10,449,674, 349)
Effect of tax relating to interest expenses over cap 30%
in accordance with Decree No. 1322020/ND-CP 14,898,301,595 35.610,625,260
Unrecognised deferred tax assets on 1ax losses . 2,153.862.477
Under provision in prior years B8.913.9609 11,784, 462,611
Tax lnases utilised (786,820, 549) -
| 493,027,973 13831, 186,632

Applicable tax rates

Under the terms of the cumrent Intome Tax Law. the Company has an obligation to pav the govermment
income tax at the rmte of 20% of taxable profits.

Fer Bao Lan | Hydropower Project, the Company is subject to income tax at the rate of 10% for 15 vears
{from 2017 1o 2031) and the standard rate for the suceeeding years. The current tax regulations allow the
Campany 1o be exempt from income tax for 4 years starting from the first vear Bae Lam | Hydropower
Project penerates: = faxable profit {from 2017 10 2020% and entitled toa 50% reduction in income tax for the
9 succeedmg years (from 2021 w 2029).

For Bao Lam 3 Hydropower Project and Bao Lam 3A Hydropower Project, the Company is subject 1o
Inconve tix ot the rale of 10% for 15 years (from 2017 to 2031) and the standard rate for the succeeding
yedrs, The current tax regulations allow the Company to be exempt from income 1ax for 4 years starting
from the first vear Ban Lam 3 Hydropower Project and Bae Lam 3A Hydropower Project generate o texahle
profit (from 20018 10 2021 ) and entitled 1o a 50% reduction in income tax for the 9 succeeding years (from
2022 to 20307,

a0
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (econtinued)

Form B 0% - DN
Sirxveen wiler Cirewie Voo JNEIEEE L HTT
edteed 22 Dyeewbae M09 ot Wil of Fimancel

For Bao Lac B Hydropower Project and Song Mhiem 4 Hydropower Project, the Company is subject o
income tax at the rate of 10% for |5 years (from 2020 1o 2034) and the standard rate for the succeeding
vears. The current tax regulations allow the Company te be exempt from income tax for 4 years stasting
from the first year Bao Lac B Hydropower Project and Song Nhiem 4 Hyvdropower Project generate a
taxable profit {from 2021 to 2024} and entitled to a 50% reduction in income tax for the 9 succeeding vears
{from 2025 1o 2033,

Unreeognized deferred tax azsets

2024 112024
Temporary Temporary
difference Tax valoe difference Tax value
YM™D VD YN YD

Deductible temporary

differences on interest

expEnse 252671 864,804 50,554 572,969 I 78, B0, 356,860 ISH36071.374
Temporary differenies

on albowance for

doubiful debis I0NRT 042 TRG 6137 408,558 - -
Tax losses 7.254.907,171 1. 450,981,434 1,189 005915 2237 801,083

290,113,814.804 58022762961  189,369366,784  37.ET73.B73357

Dreductible temporary differénces include interest expenses allowed 1o be camied forward for deduction
against furure txable profit in accerdance with regulation in Decree 13220200MD-CP dated § November
2020. These deductible temporary differences expire in the farllowying years:

Year of expiry Status of tax review Interest expenses deductible in
Puture periods
VND
2023 Clutstanding | 78,1840, 356,869
2029 Cutstanding T,49],507.975

L5267 1EGA. 544

The tox losses expire in the following venrs:

Year of capiry Status of tax review Tax lusses available
YNNI
2028 Chststanding T,254,907,171

51
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PC1 Group Jeint Stock Company

Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continned)

Significant transactions with related parties

Form B 09 - DN

el mder Clcanlar Mo, 200200 4T1- 81T

orased 22 e covaber 2014 of e Mimkcrey o e

In addition to related party balances disclosed in other notes to the separate financial stitements, the

Comparty had the following significant transactions with related parties during the vear:

Tier-1 subsidiaries

PCT Hanel Jodur Stock Company
Revenue from leases

Revenoe from sale of goods

{rher revenue

Purchase of construction services
Dividend mcome

Intzrest income on defemred payments
Transier of capital

PCT Mien Nam Fofmt S¥ock L‘ampmy
REavenus from sale of poods

Purchase of construction services
Dividend miome

Chher revenoe

Interest income on defemred payments

Mien Bac— Mo 1 Power Consirwction Ingtallafion Co,, Lid
Purchase of congtruction services

Interest expense for deferred payment

Ohther expenses

PCE My Dink Joind Stock Company
Bevenue from sale of goods

Revenue from leases

Cher revenmue

Purchase of construction services
Dividend income

Capimal receips of PCE Ninh Binh Jodn Smck Company
through offseing with labilites
Interest expense for deferred payment
Revenue frorm sale of goods
Purchase of constniciion Lervices
Lividend mncome

Hir Dovngr — Mo, 1 Power Constracilon festaflieion
ithre Member Co., L0

Purchae of consirction servicss

Purchase of fixed assels

Purchase of loods and equipment

nher expenses

Transaciien valoe

2024
VND

22338423 Be0
1.123.780,.431
153, 500,008,474
CFMY. CHOMND, OO0
48162, 166

3.943,396,010
126, 166,685,227
16,070,431,356
4,824,154
1,582,107

324,000, 000

16,211,370,754
626,860,612
TEO 10,000
278278327424
[2.976.87T2.018

10275400361
39,177,521 453

28,116,989.2493
10,6084 16,747

231.507.572

2024
VND

340, 1 06, D50
8792661838

195371,575.363
| 480,935,087

TRELAT]087
319.929,264,163

1,799, 686,972
718,784,008

18,300,243, 404
S33.373.1¢)

251,305,656, 763

96, 1 78,940

16,811,375,046
14626, 338 .66

756,085,812
2.125.302.487
181,523,050



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (eontinued)

PO Narig Hoong Chre Member Co., Led
Mevere [roan lenses

Chher revenus

Purchase of goods

Dividend income

Purchase of services

PCI Thang Long Joint Stock Company
Revense from sale of gonds

Criher revenes

Interest income from deferred payment
Purchase of construction services
Interest expense for deferred payment
Diwidend income

Transfer of capital

PO Niwly Bink Joint Stock Company
Revenue from sale of goods

Purchase of construction services
Criher revenue

Inleresl income from loans

Profit received

Offsetting liahilities with loans granted

Dang Anl Steel Tower Wonnfaciaring Co., Lid
Revenue from sale of poods

Purchaze of construction services

Dividend income

Trung Tha Hydropower Jolnt Stock Contpany
B evenue from lemses

Chther reveniue

Dividend incomie

My Dink Real Estate Fnvestmert Jaint Stock Company

Revenue from lepses

Purchase of construction services
Drividernd meome

Lesins granted

Collection of loan principals
Orif=enting loans granted with payables

Orffserting interest receivable from boans with payables

Interest income (rom loms

Firtnam frdustrial Erecrion Joinr Srock Company

Fevenue from leases
Purchase of construction services
Drividend income

Form B 09 - DN

flened wrcter Civcalar Ao, XX OTT- BT

tlpwed X3 December 2074 af g Wimintry o Flmanei)

Transaction value

2024
¥XD

1,182,603,424
475,344 2560
1,051,334, 936

BR2.827.081

21,392,688,616
213,143,023
166,765,833
1603 12,522,538

445,000, K0

2 TT0ETT. R0
100,355, 466,440
0,48 830

2,693 083 659

39,177,521, 453
2B, 116,989 293
10608416747

67,526,580
(11,011,108
35,410, 680,000

95,301,815
36,363,636
9,939, 004,000
33,000, 000,000
1,000, 000, 000
1,765,823,207
108,712,329
B57.872.715

247 800,002
24,243,159 966
| 020,000,000

2024

VNI
|, 499,163 684
| SB1 288, 700
|.870,104,537
33,927,927
8,500,581 %62
37,928, 794
106,751 698,138
118,726,300
1,433, 748.375
§.277.954.237
21,564,080,300

306,342 466

500, DO, M0

16 R11,375,046
14,626,338, 660

123,082,134

26,397 234,000

95,301,816

231,709,092

1, 377.000,000

53
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Hoa Bink Auroiabile Mechanical Joint Stock Company

Loans granted

Repavment of lean principals
(MEsetting loans with receivables
[nterest expense

Dividend income

Eao Lamt Erergy Jolnt Steck Comprany
Revenue from zale of goods

Interest income from loans

Receipt of loan repaymend

Odfseting loan receivable with payahles
Purchese of service

xher purchases

Naorihern Energy Tnvestonent Joind Stock Company
Fevenue from leases

Cither revenue

[Fvidend neome

[mterest income from deferred pavment

Tien By fnvesmment Trading Jolt Swock Company
Repayment of loan principals

[nierest expense

Loans granted

[mberast income from loans

Lien Lap Wired Power Joind Siock Company
Fevenue from construction services renderad
Revene from lzases

Revemre from provision of services

Revenue from disposal of asscts

Interest income from louns and defered paymenis
frclualing: Inferesy addad m principoe!

Drividend income

Pirong Huy Wind Fower Jdoinl Stock Compenny
Revenue from constreclion services rendered
Eevenue from keases

Revenue from provision of services

Imterest income from loans and deferred paymenis
Inciuding, interast pdded Fi priveipal

Dividend income

Phong Ngwyen Wind Power Joint Stock Company
Revenye ffom construction services rendered
Rivenue from leases

Revenue from provision of services

Interest income from loans and deferred paymeénts
fnciwding: fnteresi added o principal

Dividend income

Form B 0% - N
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Transacthon value

1024
VND

34. 00K, (00,000
17.819.,655,000
|.254,474.492
4,751,908,000

345,842,000
293,726,027
3,000,000, 000
1500, D0, 000
41,341 K30,561
763 337,568

66,004,000
111,011,108
7,640,084, 13)
6,578,342

| 200000040, 000
441,863,014
2.000,000,000
030,210,959

T0,000,000
76,800,000

14,766,595, 20

TULD0G
76,800,000

12977 606,711

70,000,000
76,800,000

15.379.289.657

2024
¥ND

.2, 500,000,000

412,223 487
17, 819,635,000

455753425

IH i, 652 78T

BB, 535,554

14,702, 758,871

B9, 000, BH

O, 00,000
396,607,314
61,000,000
386,691,454
328, 486804
13,245,001 B85

B, 400,000
416,607,314
1.085.320,052
4106, 165,445
35 327.225,2%

40,000

Ty 607,314
1,448, i, 563
6l 243.2258
55,361.94%9,650
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Vletnmm fndustriol Erection Joint Stock Conpany
Hevenue from leases

Revenue from construction services rendered
Dividend income

Tnvestment and Technology Service Joint Stock Company
Purchase of construciion services

Purchase of fixed nssedfs

Purchase of goods

[nvidend meome

Tan Phat Mincrals Joinf Steck Company
Revenue from leases

Fevenue from services rendered

[aans grambed

Callection of laan principals

Irterest income from Ioans

Inciwding: imterest addod 1o prineipal
[Mvidend income

Song Gam Hydrapower Joint Steck Company
Revenuz [rom construction services rendersd
Revenue from |sases

{kher reverile

Revenue from iransfer of projects

Loans gronted

Collection of lonn principals

Interest ineome from loans

Purchase of shares through offsetting of loans
Purchase of shares n through offsetting of dividends
receivoble

Purchase of shares

Capital transfer

Holding Comemerce Equipment Company
Bormowings

Repaymeni of loan principals

Interest expenss

Axia Dragon Froading Fre, Lod,
Revenue from provision of services

Hal Fhomwg Interntivinal Tndustrial Pork
Jaint Stock Camyprny

Revenue from provision of services
Revenue from keases

Purchase of shares

Form B 0% — DN

il pvokes Cireatar Mo JE2MLTT-0T
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Transaclion value

2024
YN

247 800,002
24,243, 159,960
1020000, (K0

33,671,475,000
5.341.79%0.000
1147504, 000

178,034,368
32 T50L0TT BE6
T1 000000, (00

122,142,397, 260

A.006, 163,207
1,142,307 260
104,025 225,000

7,540,880 204
46,000,000
6.364,366.286
4.364,077.000
44 00, ZH00, 0100
A CHM (00,0040
6 321 38R

5, L6, D0 D0

1,114,668,493
3%, T25.331.507

ZL000, 0,000
32,0000, 000,000
1.298,465,753

874,000, 000

10.470.000.000

415,000,000, 00D

204
VD

231709082
1377000000

2720161500
TT.AB0.247.415
G B CHO (M0

| 78,036,368
103,647.013.720

=

B.632,344,358
6,307, 260 431

507TH602304
33,000,000

£, 00, LMD, 0106

746,235,616
15,840,000.000

175940, 000 1K)

30,000, D00, D)

=

2096, 547,946

8.422 958,730
197,377,778
800 000,000
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

NMutes to the separate financial statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Jupan = Hol Phong Industria! Zone
Developmient Corporation

Revenue from construction services rendersd
Davidend income

Tier-2 subshdiaries

Thai Nguven Galvanized Steel Tower Jaint Stock Company
= o subsidioony of Dong Ank Steel Tower Manufacturing
O, Lid

[nterest income from loans

Interest income from deferred payvments

Revenue from zale of goods

Purchase of construclion services

Purchase of poods

ETIK Efecrrical Experiment Toint Stock Company - 4
sivbsidiory af My Dinf - No. T Power Canstrincfion
Trdalletion Chae Membar Ca., Lid

Revenue from sale of gonds

Purchnee of eonstrociion wervicas

Tu Liems = No. | Poveer Consirnction Installation Co,, Lid -
it sithsidiary of PCI Misn Nam Joint Stock Company
Purchase of comsimetion services

Interest expense lor deferred payment

Assoeintes

Western Pacific Joint Stock Company
Dividend income

Purchise: of shores

Pha Bl Warefrousing Joint Steck Compuny
Purchnse of shares

Farties whose key management personnel are close Gumily
members of the key management personnel of the Company

i Dy Mechanical Electrical Joing Stock Company
Purchnse of construction services

Minh Hung M&C Joint Stock Comgpanry (farmerly knewn as
“Dink Ten Construction fnvestment Joint Stock Company")
FPurchase of Cconstriction services

Form B 09 - DN
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Transaetion value

4
VND

25,824.840,138
T5.76T,799.820

BI7367.914
1,838,252, 787
19.368,748,378
b6 A20,08] 335

653,368,600
0,652 405 855

1,726,908, 104

33,029,268.000
90,243,900.000

39,402 848,900

11173544, 456

2024
VND

| .922,269,249
56,000,000, (40

837069 883
2.951,196,542

d7 248 BER

IS0 140, 1 26

7804280 637
| 38,397,218

08,400, 000,000

=4

I

THi

—

lim



PC1 Group Joint Steck Company

Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Board of Management's remuneration and bonus
fir. Trink Wan Tuan

Mr. Vo Anh Duong

Mr. Vo Hong Queang

Mr. Mguven Minh De

Mr. Phan Ngoe Hieu (from 26/4/2024)

Mlr, Mai Luong Viet (sl 122020

Board of General Direciors® salaries, bonuses and sther

benefits

Mr. Vi Anh Dupng

Mr. Vo Hong Quang

Mr. Nguyen Minh De

Mr, Dang Quoe Tuong

Mir. Mguyen Mhat Tan

Mr., Trinh Mgoc Anh (from §5772024)

Mir. Trinh Quang Thanl: (fram § 1062024

supervisory Board®s remmuneration
his, Meuyven Thi Hai He

Wr. Hoang Yan Cuong

hir. Hoang Yan Sang

38, Non-cash investing and financing activities

Shares dividend

OfTsening borrowings with dividends receivable
Purchase of shares through offsening with dividends,
pridiis réceivable

Purchase of shares through offsetting with loan
receivihizs

Offsetiing loans receivables with payables

Loan imterest capitalised to principal of loans receivible
CHfseting loan irterest receivable with payables
Orifsetting dividends receivable with pavables
Clselting advances from customers with

loans receivable

Form B 9 - DN

(irewed water Cievnle No. 200000 FT-RTTC
depect 22 December KU of e Mialsvy of Pisrace)

Transaction valne
224 | |
YD WINID
2,978 (0, G0 1,8 10,000,000
S40,000 000 270.000,000
540,000 000 270004, 000
540,000,000 270,004,000
360,000,000 .
A5 D0 a3y 230,000,000
1,306,734, 106 1125, 749 371
| 244,577 696G T1.136,214
200 D D 206, 004, (00
G 8,750 8400 orouf 540,361
851,733, 190k 578,279,634
J13.074,6480 -
F25, 780 897
F2000, 000 FERILIIRL
24 000 000 e T LEN ]
24 00 O 24 O, (WM
2024 2023
YN VMY
466, 465,630,000 405,625 560,000
17819 655 000 -
11,390,060 054 -
5, Lo, 00, 000 15, BA0, 000,000
3,265.823,207 e
|, 12,307 260 B.903, 167, 908
4,227 481,933 -
1,065,671 .856 -
= 27,3060, 185,058
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PC1 Group Joint Stoek Company
Notes to the separate financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
Form B 04 - DN
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39. Comparative information

Comparative information as & | January 2024 was derived from the bolances and amounts reported in the
Cinmpany 's separaie financial statements for the vear ended 3 1 December 2023,

I8 March 2025

Prepared by
Vu Thi Phuong Tran Thi Minh Viet T
d Fapsl Chrief Accauntant General Direcior
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Corporate Information

Enterprise Registration
Certificate Mo,

Board of Management

Board of General Direviors

Supervisory Board

Registered OMce

Auiitorm

010100745

4 December 20724

The Company’s Enterprise Registration Cenificate has been amended
several times, the mast recent of which is dated 4 Decemiber 2024, The
Enterprise Registration Centilicate was issoed by Hanoi Department of

Planning and Investment,

M,
M,
M,
Mr.
M,
Mr.

Mlr.
vlr.
M.
i [
Mr,

Trinh Yan Tuan
Vu Anh Duong
Vo Hong Cuang
Npuven Minh De
Phan Mgoe Hieu
Mai Luong Vict

Vu Anh Duong
Dang Cruoc Tuong
Vo Hong Quang
Meuven Mhat Tan
Nguven Minh De

Mr. Trinh Ngoc Anh
Mr. Trinh Quang Thanh

Mz,
Mr.
Mr.

M,

Mguyen Thi Hai Ha
Hoang Van Cucng
Hoang Van Sang

I8 Ly Van Phuc

Chairman

Member

bembhbes

Memhber

Member (from 26/4:2024)
Member finnd JA22024)

Cigneral Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director (from J5/7/2024)
Deputy General Divector (from 1] 02024)

Head of Supervisory Board
becmbor
bember

Cat Linh Ward, Dong Da District
Hanoi, Vicinam

KPMG Limited
Vietnam



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Statement of the Board of General Directors

The Board of General Directors of PCI Group Joint Stock Company (“the Company™) presents this
statement and the aceompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company for the vear ended
31 December 2024,

The Company's Board of General Directors is responsible for the preparation and true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statulory requirements
applicable to financial reporting. In the opinion of the Company’s Board of General Directors:

{al  the consolidated financial statcments set oul en pages 35 to 80 give a tue and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated
results of operations and cash (kows for the vear then ended in accordance with Viemamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accoumting System for Enterprises and the relevant
siatutory requiremnents applicable to financial reporting; and

(b} at the date of this statement, there is no reason to believe that the Company and its subsidiaries
will not be able to pay its debis as and when they fall due.

The Board of General Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for issue.

Hanon, 28 March 20235

Wil ) S8 ke,



kPMG'

KPMG Limited

46th Floor, Keangnam Landmark 72
Et Pham Hung Street, Me Tri Warnd
South Tu Liem District, Hanal, Vietnam
+B4 (24) 3346 1600 | kpmg.com.yn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Shareholders and Board of Management
PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Ve have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PC1 Group Joint Stock
Company ("the Company”}, which comprise the consalidated balance sheet as at 31 Dacember
2024, the consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the year then ended and the

explanatory notes therete which were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of General
Directors on 28 March 2025, as sel oul on pages 5 to B0

Management's Responsibility

The Company's Board of General Directors is responsible for the preparation and true and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vielinamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant
statutery requirements applicable Lo financial reporting, and for such internal control as the Board
of General Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
slalements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Thass
standards require that we comply with ethical requiremerts and plan and perform the audit te

obtain reasonable &ssurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatemani

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgament, including the assessment of the risks of materlal misstatement of the financial
staternents, whether due 1o fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers Internal conirel relevant to the Company's preparation and true and fair presentation
af the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of tha
Company’s internal control. An audit alse includes evaluating the appropriateness of accourting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Cempany’s Board of
General Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presantation of the financial statemenis.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion

FIPMIC, L], a Vrmnarnn Tss OETas nlled balins S oemiainy mrd m e 2ac B o e
FERRT el T AR e T e el i Drea AW et e i BOCLHE wls i | e
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KPMG

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material
respacts, of the consolidated financial position of PC1 Greup Joint Stock Company as at 31
Dacember 2024 and of its consolidated results of operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Viethamese Accounting System
for Enterprisges and the relevant statutory requirements apglicable to financial reporting.

Emphasis of Matters - Comparative figures

Wa draw attention to Mote 48 to the consolidated financial statemeants, which describes that the
comparative figures as at 1 January 2024 and for the year ended 31 December 2023, have been
restated. Our audit opinion is not modified in respect of this issus.

KPMG Limited
Vietnam
Audit Report Na, 24-02-00204-25-2

{37 cong 1y
% (Ao ik it an

< Doan Bfanh Toan Phan My Linh

Practicing Auditor Registration Practicing Auditor Regisiration
Cearlificate No. 3073-2024-007-1 Cenificate No. 3064-2024-007-1
Deputy General Direclor

Haroi, 31 March 2025
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 Decemi ber 2024

ASSETS

Current assets
(100 =110+ 120 + 130 + 140 + 150}

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash

Cash equivalents

Shori=ierm financial investments
Held-to=maEiunty investments

Acroins receivable = short-term
Aceounts rocoivahle froan customens
Prepayments to suppliers
Receivables on construclion contracts
according 1o stages of completion
Loans receivehle — short-term
Other recervables
Allowance for doubtful debes

Inventories
Inventories
Alloweance for imventories

Diher carrent assets
Short-term prepaid expenses
Deductibie value added tax
Taxes and others recervoble from
State Treasury
Other current assets

Long-term assets {200 = 210 +
220+ 230 + 240 + 250 + 260)

Accounts receivable — long-term
Oither long=term receivables

Fizesd asscis
Tangible Nixed asscly
{aasr
Aecunmlated depreciation
Finance lease tangihle fixed assets
Ceass
Accunmilated depreciation
Intungible fixed assets
Ciexsl
Accumulated amortisation

1
111
112

120
123

130
131
132

134
135
136
137

140
141
LY

150
151
152

153
155

200

210
216

220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229

Code  Note

Tial

1
11
i2ia)
I

14

21ia)

26
15

12ih)

|6

17

31122024
VND

H.085,980,091.224

2,277,327,707,879
734,582,707,879
1,542, 745,004,000

1,016,759,191.654
[ O e, TA5, 10054

3,112,002, 764,045
L0135, 59876, 890
156,269,424,703

D.187.140.775
309,543, 410,051
416,873,034.466
{95.060,151,849)

1,5H7,602,430,478
| 587.734.464,304
(132.033_826)

92,287,997,168
17,708,787.217
J0.935 7010 528

I, 173,507 815
2 480,000,608

12,90 1,664,649,904

32.830,193,500
32,830,193, 500

10,146,675,462,841
8970, 95 915,918

12,617,358 387 310
{3,646, 562 471 992

LTS HTS 546,023
1383 299121252
(207419 574 3201

Form B 01 - DN/HN
flvkwed tmdder Civeulae No, 2002074 TT-RTC
detteed 27 December 2004 of the Minisery of Finanes)

1172024
VND
Hestated

6,683 571,516,940

1,082,217,682,721
472,109, 384,006
1L610,108,298,715

780,833,305, 437
TR0.833,305,437

IL7TLAL 12 ). 203
| 877968 983,905
217,194,103,053

288,724.410.051
399,538,361,777
(12.395.737.583)

957,516,125,979
958,222,146,097
(706,020,118)

01,974,281,600
12,680,346,830
TTOTT 825,733

|, 307,409,037

13.491.573.3506,000

14,779, 136,760
14,779,136, 760

10 B0 286,865,661
G639 510,928 689
{2348 273257128
{2 908 74 128 430

4.905,112,226
5791, 150,000
(886,037 774

| 235 070,822,746
FIR2 308621232
F 146307 TOR 506)

The gccompmrying Reres are on nfegral part of thexe comsolidated finamcial staiemenis



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2024 (continued)

Investment property
Caost
Accumilated depreciation

Long-term work in progress
Long-term work in progress
CORSIruction in progress

Long-term financial investments
Investiments i associates
Equity investments in other entities
Allowance for diminution in the value
of long-term financial investrents

Ohther long-term nssets
Long-term prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assels
Long-term tools, supplies and
Spare parts
Cigrodweill

TOTAL ASSETS
{270 = 100 + 200)

RESOURCES
LIABILITIES (300 = 310 + 330)

Current Habilinies
Accounts payable o suppliers
Advances from customers
Taxes and others payehle to
State Treasury
Payables to employees
Acerued expenses
Payables on construction contracts
according to stages of completion
Uneamed revenue — short-term
Cither payables — short-term
Short-term borrowings, bonds and
finnnee lease Labilities
Provizions — shor-term
Bonus and welfure fund

Code

&

| S
Lk L
L

240

242

353

233
254

260
261
262

263
269

70

300

S0
3l
312

i1z
314
115

317
318
319

320
32]
322

Foarm B 01 - DN/IN

(issned wler Circwlar No, 202204 TT-BT¢C
deated 22 December 2014 of the Minisiry of Finance)

3122024 11120024
Muoie YND VND
Hestoted
18 112,102,542,263 145,675,172,322
536, 746,8406.681 S50,088,029.012
(424,644,204 418 (412 412,556,600
ATL,571,762,744 11.2,0%6,5064,279
19 202,549, BT 157 -
20 170,022,375.587 112,686,564,279
L7092, 056,195.340 1666, 569,505,763
T(h} [T08.234.428.340 1.605,353,748.672
Te) 4.821.770,000 4.821.770,000
Tieh ER RG] (3,606.017,004)
528,424 450,216 731.576,123,.215
21{h) 200,030,501 BG5S 478H BIR, 935,599
22 30,280,921,273 34.220,534.042
25,909, 362920 298,615,537
23 181,247,664, 1 38 216,342.037,987
20,987.644,741,128  20,175,144,8582,940
13,271,625,448,232  13,027,533,671,556
SNTE 147,101,360 4,777, 754,337,912
24 [, 120,664 354, 789 | 048,601,949 747
25 209208751 506 169,442 503,266
26 230,165,562.350 143017 465 802
B8, 754, 378, 100 A6, 30, 500,864
27 E3.045, 126802 216, 868,137,878
850,614,873 3
6. 780,962,417 4.607.211.060
28ia) 109,774,770.645 102,223,715,675
250(a) 2850283 971,656 2,838 478333, 303
3l 11,957,159 622 12,523,794,502
il |6l 660,443 500 184.692,725,750

Ihe accompanying potes are an integral pari of these consolidated financial starements



MC1 Group . Joint Stock Company
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 01 - DN/HN
(lesueed mmder Clrewdor No, 2022004 TT-BTC

i

dated 22 December 2004 of the Minlsiry of Firance)

J12/ 2024 1112024
Code MNote VND VNI
Restated
Long-term linhilities 330 B 193478346872 8,249, 779334674
Long-term uncamed revenue 336 480,757,160 926,919,632
Ciher payables = long-term 337 Bk 12,033,085,858 [0845,03] 958
Long-term borrowings, bonds and
finance lease linbilities 338 29(h) TE30,630,385,563 TO02.006,174.976
Deferred tax linkdlities 341 p: 305,205,522.136 104.986,716.432
Provisions - long-term 342 30 45,128,586,155 31,014,491.646
EQUITY (480 = 410) 400 7.716J019.292 8% T147611,210.354
Owners' equity 410 32 7.716,019,292 8% TA4TH11.210.354
Share capital 411 3 3.376,421,210,000 3,109,955 580,000
= Chelinory shares with vosing pights. 411a A ETRA20 250,000 JI00 055 80 ()
Share premium 412 TIL 126,556,786 711,136,556,786
Other capitul 414 50,847,073, 442 46,847,073 442
Differences upon asset revaluntion 116 08,285,511 708,285,511
Foreign exchange differences 417 (3,183,517,143) (1.277,8563.726)
Investment and development fund 418 298,573,907 3 10 2o 125 159, 814
Driber equity funds 420 65,403,533,120 63403533, 120
Ketrined profils 421 8216,354,445.227 852093 584 938
- Retained profits brought forward — 421a 364,771,554, 741 819,716, 498,085
Prafit for the current year 421 A61 582,590 486 33277 086,830
Non-cenirolling interest 429 2,189,757, 798,643 2.069,1 19,300,469
TOTAL RESOURCES .
(440 = 300 + 400) 440 20,987.644,741,128 20,175 144 882 940
28 March 2025
Prepared by Approveddns

Tran Thi Minh Viet
Chicf Accowoni

L Thanh Huong

FPreparer

eral Direcior

The acconpanying notes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial staiements



I'C1 Group Joint Stock Company
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2024

Form B 02 - DN/HN
(Lssued weder Circidar No. 2022014 TT-BTC
el 22 December 20104 of the Minisiry of Fimance)

nz4 Z0Z}
Code Maote YIND YD
Restaied
Revenue from sales of goosds and provision
i aroic LIk 35 TIOR8, 201,620,619  7,6%3,781,062,664
Cost of sales 11 206 7.99%0.507.019.628  6,245,614,973,514
Gross profit (20 =01 - 11) 0 2,002 204.600,991 1 448.066,089,150
Financial income il a7 1B DR AT 369 182694013, 188
Financial expenses 22 3R 821.368,107.542 067330851 856
I which: Borrowing eosrs 23 FOL206 77 RIT R4R.ITE 555562
Share of profil in associates 24 45, 704,008 D3 1.577,383,200
Selling expenses 25 39 8532757514 55,080,734.072
Gengrnl and administration expenses a0 40 487.725,540,156  335,208,954.077
Nel operating profit =
(30 =20+ 21 - 22 + 34 - 35 - 26} LT} HIR 448,385,131 273.916,945,542
Cither income 3l 41 |9,285,5415,308 | (0,705,650 T4
Oither expensey i 42 B, 723300714 IRTI2E91.615
Resulis of other activities
Accounting profit before tax
(50 = 30) + 40) B39.0010,650.813 255979,7T04,673
Intome tax expense — current 51 44 124.870.818,560 TEA60,979,635
Income tax expense/{benefit) — deferred 52 44 4. 164.418.523 (4. 511,197,107
Nt =5-5]1- =
EEIEDI Aer due gLl Pl e Sl ) 09.975,393,730  181,629,922,095

fearrvied forward fo next page)

The accompanying netes ave an fivegral pare of these convolidated financial siatements



PCI Group Joint Stock Company
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued
Form B 02 - DN/HN

{lesned wndler Circwlar No, 2022004 TT-BTC
dored 22 December 2004 of the Minisiry of Finaice)

1024 2023
Code Mote YMND WMD
Bestated
Nei profit affer tax (60 = 511 - 51 - 57) 629927
(hrought forward from previous page) il T09,975,393,730 151,629.922 145
Attributable to:
Oredinary sharcholders of the Company 6l 467,582 890 486 36, 167,086,850
Noa-comirol ling shareholders h2 242 302 803 244 145462 835 245
Earni h
arnings per share Austedod
Basic eamings per share T 45 1L177 53
28 March 2025
Prepared by Appm'-' )]
Luu Thanh Huong Tran Th &b Viet : : Duong
Prepaver Chrief Accomunitant Creneral Direclar

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidared financial sioremenis



PCI Group Joint Stock Company
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the yvear ended 31 December 2024
{Indirect method)
Form B 03 - DN/HM
flesned ander Cirepdar No, 2022004 TT-BTC
datecd 22 Decamber 2014 of the Minisery of Finained)

2024 2023
Caodde VYND VD
Restinled
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit hefore tax il E30,010,630.813 IS0 704673
Adjustments for
Deprecintion and amortisation 02 BT7.613,082,201 771,515,106.980
Aldlowances and provisions 03 T2, 564,007,143 £.927.585.946
Exchange losses arising lrom revaluition
of monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies W 135,493, 717,598 BT, B34 9R0.078
Profits from investing activites {15 (151, 743,983.202)  (188.221,520,054)
Borrowing cost {1 701,206,757 837 448,375 555 662
Operating profit before changes in
working capital LT 2AT4, 144,212 390 1,784,431 413,285
Change in receivehles 09 (266,543,535, 14400 500,603 200 478
Change inn inventoriss 163 (628,918 0461 378) (37,742 5065.910)
Change in payables and other liabilities 1 322,176,376,246  (211,424,749,853)
Change in prepaid expenses 12 4,001 864,912 12.055.953,375
1,905, 740,857,024 2.048,922 R6DATS
Intenest paid I (B9E,053,790,352) [ B60, 760,606,701 )
Income tax paid 15 (76,54 |, 785 ,887) [LOZT24, 508 059
Other payments for operating activilies 17 (41, 196,926.352) (34,052, 117:.239)

Net cash flows from eperating
setivities

0 1,089 948,348,435 1,051,385,627.336

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for additions to Mxed assets and other

long-tenm assels 21 (446.492.057.301) (492,252,091 ,207)

Proceeds from disposals of fixed psscts and

other long-term assets a2 31,808,133,068 |68.210,675,154

Payments for granting loans and placing

deposils with terms of more than 3 months 23 (1594612558972  (1.047,101.801.345)

Receipts from collecting loans and withdrawing

deposits with terms of more than 3 months 24 1,337.867,672,755 1,230,057,1 00 DRH

Payvments for investments in odher entifies 23 (90,243, 900,000% {GE, ADOL000, Ky

Colleetions on investments i other entities 26 17,285,003,051 28472 1T6.ABR

Receipts of interests, dividends and profits 27 OB, 284 542 872 08.803,414,042
Met eash Mows from investing sotivities LTl (646,103,074,527)

(72,310,226, 906)

Tive accompanying notes are an integeal part of these consolldared finascial siatemeniy
110



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the vear ended 31 December 2024
(Indirect method — continued)

Form B 03— DNHN
FInsied wnclerr Civowdar Noo 20220 00 TT-RTC
dated 22 Decomber 14 of the Ministry of Finance)

4 023
Code VIND VIND
Restated

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procezds from equity issued to non controlling

shareholders 3l b, 200,000 000 3,213,643,532

Proceeds from short-term and long-term

borrowings i3 TP 18.26]1,063 212 502450483265

Paymienis i satle loan principals i (7.826,820,309,008) (7,161 ,637,703,122)

Payments to softle (inance lease liabilities 15 (1. 454.373,074) (1577056 458)

Paviments of dividends 6 (202,587,071, 346) (134, 230,827.303)
Net eash Mows from financing netivities 40 (268.379.600,296)  {1,491.782.360.086)
Net cash flows during the vear
(50=20 + 30 + 40) 50 175.465,585,612 (S12,706.959.656)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginni
of this pear PRNIRE 60 1,082.217,682,721 1.581,357.801,353
Effect of exchange rate Muctuntions on
Sl e ::-’uw sage 61 21,550,094,963 14,727,995,325
Currency translation differences 61 (1,905,653 417) (1,161,154,301)
Cash and cash equivalents ar the end
of the year (70 = 50+ 60 + 61) (Note 6) ] 2277327, T07 870 2,082 317,682,711

28 March 2025

Prepared by

o

Luu Thanh Huong
Prepuarer

Tran Tki Minh Viet
Chief Accowntan

The pcoempanying nofes are an integral part of these consolidated financial siatements

—



{a)

()

4]

PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the consolidated linancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Form B 09 ~ DN/HN
{fxxaedd weder Cirenlfor No, 202200 45T T=-RT
dinteed 22 December 2004 af the Ministry of Finance)

These motes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
comselidated financial statements.

Reporting entity

Chwnership structure

PCT Crroup Joint Stock Coan pany {(Sthe Company™), formerly known as Lime and Substation Installation
Company. was established on 2 March 1963, The Company was officially transformed into a joint stock
company operating under the Business Registration Certificate Mo, 0100100745 issued for the first time
by the Hane Department of Planning and Investment on 20 July 2005 and amended for the 25" time
omn 4 Docember 2024,

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group™)are as follows:

- Tresding in real cwiafe, land use rights of land owners, land users or lend lessees, including:

Investment in the creation of houses, construction works for sale, lease, or lease purchase; purchase
houses, construction works for sale, lease, lease purchase; rent houses and construction works for
sublease; invest in and improve land and invest in infrastructure facilities on leased bind to lease
land with mfrastructure; receive the transfer of fand use rights, invest in infrastructure fcilities for
transfer or lease; rent land use rights with infrastructure for sublease (except for construction of
cemotery infrastracture for iranster of land use rights attached to infrastructure);
Consulting, brokernge, real estate auction. land use right avetion: real estale consulting services,
real estate brokerage services, real estate valuetion scrvices, real cstate advertising services, real
estule management services; provide management, operation and explottation services for urban
areis and multi-storey aparment buildings:

- Producing and fabricating steel towers, hot-dip galvanizing and metal structures for civil and
industrial facilities;

- Comstruction of other civil engineering works: construction and installtion of power trunsmission
liries and transformer stations. power source facilities, industrial and civil works, infrastruciure
engineering, traffic, imigation, post and telecommunication facilities:

= Electricity production, trapsmission and distribution: electricity production;

= Impor and export of goods under the Company’s business scope;

- Surface preparation;

- Installation of electrical systems;

- Measuring cadostral maps, clearing land plots, extracting and measuring land plots for land
COMpensation purposcs;

- Expleiting, processing and wholesale of metals and metal ores; and
- Producing metal structures; forging, stamping, pressing and rolling metal; metal powder smelting.

Normal operating cyele

The pormal operating cycle for real estate investment and business, constiuction and installation of
waorks of the Group is based on the investment and implementation period of each work or project. The
normal operating cycle for other activities of the Group is genesally within 12 months,

12
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FC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
Form B (9 - DN/HN
{Tesued wmder Civewdar No, 202200 3TT-BTC
derted 22 December 2014 of the Ministey of Finamee)

Company structure
As at 31 December 20024, the Group had 27 tier- | subsidiaries and 2 tier-2 subsiduanes ( [/1/2024: 26 tier-1 subsidiaries and 4 ter-2 subsidanies) as follows:
k1B il L] 1/1/2mL4
% nfl
Yool equity % ofvating  equity Ve of wodling
M, Company masme Prinvipal sciivities Adldress owmed rights owmed rights
Tier-1 subsidiarices
1 Pl Haznipd Joind Siock E‘-mnpm_l,' Prewer emnstnuciing Hamad i s i, EH 5 flh, {1 A FacY
I PCI Men ™t Polsl Sk Comipany (Cormey Ko es Poawir comstraction His Chei Minks LR AOLB D00 T0LEKFY
bdicn Mam ®o. | Power Constnsction Co., Lid) () City
3 Micn Bac — Ko, | Power Constmectin insallation Co,, 1.0d Prvver comstrasisom Hanaii IRETRRLE 1AW, O 100, 02 1000,
§ PC1 My Denb foine Steck Company (fermerly known as Prawer constrosinm Hanaoi LS BOLDOR,  DO0LD0™, AR
Kby Dimbs— Mo, | Power Comstruction Co. Lad) (i)
5 Ha Dong — Mo, | Power Canstruction Installation O Power constnsstion Hanaol LE 1S HLOO%y D000 1000005
Member Co. Lad
& PO Mang Huong (he Member Col, Lad, Provision of services Hangi LT RN E POLOOS  [O0L00 100,00
T FCH Mink Binh feint Stock Compary {irmerdy inown as Pavwer consmetion Minh Hinh e D R, 00%, TOHLAN B NI
Ml Blgh — Moo 1 Power Canstrgetion Inssaflation One
Mlernber Co., Ll i)
£ PO Thang Long Forne Beack Company Pararer eanstnpction Hamui i, 0P SEA0N SEAT e, 00,
9 Dieng Anh Siee] Towsr Manufacturing Co . Lid. Manufacniring galvantsed seel columng, steel gnictore.  Hanol LI AP AAML EUHR LY
refated occessories, galvanizing services: Trading seel,
s, imirzld for productio, nasufafering sleel
struciure; Trading eleclrical aquipment and suborals
K T:uug Tl H:,-'.;lmpngr it Stock E'mm {iv) Cremerating ind radirg power checineily [Meix Blen AL S Bl A SRy
I My Dih Read Bstate Investisent Joint Stock Comgrany Henl estute investeent and frding Hars G530 g ] Pt H 3
12 Yiemam Indusinsl Erection Joind Sasck Company Drsstallation of machinery and industrial aqulpment Hare S 1A 310 sl B L 21 4H .
13 [l Hanhi Auomobibe Mechanical Jolne Swock Conspuoy Irwestment and trading in roal eslate IHarod =k 5L G HI G H3% L
14 Dian Lam Encrgy Joind Stock Compiny Pist-invemiment management af kydropower snd wind  Can Bang
o 00 a0k, .90 0 LR
15 MWorhern Energy Investneent Joint Siock Conmpmny fiv) Producing arwf trading electmicin Can Pamp S10% 100 31005 51.00"%
I Tien Be vestmen Trading Joint Sock Commpiuny Isveszment and tradivg real estate Hanoi b 49.95'% 4o 55 % LAY
17 Lien Lap Wind Paswer Joint Stock Compnny Producing ebeiricity from wind eneigy Cheang Tri 3554% 35.59% 55.54% 35.54%
18 Pheng Huy Wind Power Jomi Siock Company Producing efsciricity from wind energy Chzny T 54.70r% 54,70 54,71 54,704
19 Phong Npuyen Wined Pawer loin Siock Comzany Praducing elagzricity from wind anergy Luange T MM mE e 4, TG 34,750
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DNAIN

{Tuswied towder Ciremlar Na 2022004TT-RTC
cierted 22 December 2014 of the Minixiey of Finonee)

A/ 12T
%o of eguiny % il voting
M, Com pany natie Primcipal activitles Adbidress wwnl righis
20 Investment and Tochnobegy Serviee Jotnn Stack Company Sapply of malerioke eouipmend and electrical system Hano S1idFn 14105
ceai{lguiation
31 Tan Phat Minerals Foing Sinck Compamy Miming Caix Bong L 3T
22 Song Gam Hydopower Fain Stock Company (v) Ponrer progluction Can Bang AL G
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In the 2™ quarter of 2024, the Company completed the transfer of a 20% equity interest in PC1 Mien Nam Joim Stock Company to individual investors,

In the 2™ quarter of 2024, the Company completed the transfer of a 20% equity interest in PC1 My Dinh Jaint Stock Company to individual invesiors.
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In the 1" quarter of 2024, PC1 Ninh Binh Joint Stock Company (formerly known as Nink Binh — No. 1
Power Construction Installation One Member Co,, Lid) became a tier-1 subsidiary of the Company
through receiving 100% interest of PC1 My Dinh Joint Stock Company in this Company,

In the 4" quarter of 2024, the Company completed the transfer of 3 34% contributed capital in PCI
MNinh Rinh Joint Stock Company to individual investars.

Az at 31 December 2024 and 1 January 2024, all shares of the Group in Trung Thu Hydropower Joint
Stock Company v Morthem Encrgy Investment Joint Stock Company were pledged as security for
the bonds issued by the Group (Note 29h)(iH ).

In the 2* quarter of 2024, the Cempany completed a capital contribution of VND&6,000,000,000 1o
Song Gam Hydropower Joint Stock Campany,

In the 2™ quarter of 2024, the Company completed a capital contribution of YND415.000,000.000 to
Hai Phong International Industrial Park Joint Siock Company,

In the 4" quarter of 2024, the Group completed the divestment of 200,000 shares in ETIK Electrical
Experiment J5C, a tier-2 subsidiary (Note 4). According to the share transfer agreement, the remaning
110,000 shares held by the Group will be divested no later than 30 June 2025, Therefore, as at 31
Diecember 2024, the investment in ETIK Eleetrical Experiment JSC was recognised at cost (Note 15).

Asal 31 December 2024, all of the Group®s capitnl contribution in Asia Dragon Trading Pre. Lud. and
Japan — Hai Phong Indusirial Zone Development Corporation was wsed as collaterals for the Group’s
long-term bormowings (Mote 2N ).

As ut 31 December 2024 and | January 2024, the Group had 4 associates as listed in Note 7(h).

Asar 31 December 2024, the Group had 1,625 employees (1/1/2024: 1,595 emplovees),

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnumese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements
applicable to financial reporting.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements, except for the conselidated statement of cash lows, are
prepured on the accrunl basis using the historical cosl concept. The consolidated statement of cash
flows 1s prepared using the indirect method,

Annual secounting period

The annonl sccounting period of the Compony and its subsidiaries is from 1 January o 31 December.
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Accounting and presentation currency

The Company’s accounting currency is Viemam Dong (“VND"), which is also the currency used for
presentation of consolidated financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies lmve been adepied by the Company and its subsidiaries
in the preparation of these consolidated financial ststements.

Basis of consolidation
Nibsidiarien

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statements of the subsidiarics are
included in the consolidated Anancial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases.

Now-controlling interesty

Nom-conirolling interests (“NCIT7) are messured at their proportionate share of the acquirec’s
identifiahle net assets at date of acquisition,

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsiliary that do not result in a loss of control are sccounted for
as transactions with owners. The difference betwoen the change in the Group's share of ner assets of
the subsidiary and any consideration paid or reccived is recorded directly in retained profits under
cquity.

Associates

Associates are these entities in which the Group has significant Influsnce, but not control, over their
fimancial and operating policies. Associates sre accounted for using the equity method. They are
intially recopnised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
consolidated financial stalements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss of associates, afler
adjustments 1o align the sccounting policies with those of the Group., after adjustments to align the
accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant infleence commences until
the date that significant influence ceases. When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in an
associate, the carrving amount of that interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced to nil
and the recognition of forther losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an
obligatson or has made payments on behalf of the nssociate.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Inira-group transactions, balances and any unrenlised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statoments. Unrealised gains and
louses arising from trangactions with associntes are eliminated against the investment to the extent af
the Group's inferest in the associates,

I
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Business combination

Busmess combinations are accounted for using the sequisition method as at the acquisition date, which
is the date on which control is transferred 1o the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account,

Under the acquisition method, the assets and Babilities of the acquired entity are consolidated using
their fair values vpon consolidation. Cost of a business combination (cost of the acquisition) is the
aygregate amount of the fair values, at the date of exchanpe, of assets given, liabilites incurred or
assumed, and equity insfruments issued by the acquirer in the acquisition in exchange for contral of
the acquires and any costs directly attributable to the business combinntion. Identifiable assets
acquired, identifinble labilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the scquisition daie.

Any goodwill that anises representing the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest
in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, lisbilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree is
recognised in consolidated balance sheet, then amortised through 1o the consalidated statement of
imcome. When the excess is negative {gam from bargain purchase], it is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income for the current year afler a reassessment has been performed to ensure that the
messurement of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed, and the cost
of the business combination appropriately reflects consideration of all available information as of the
acquisition date,

I the initial accounting for a business combination iz incomplate by the end of the reparting pericd in
which the combination occurs s the result of fair values of scquiree's identiliable assets, liabilities or
contingent labilities or the cost of the combination being only provisionally determined, the Group
hall account for such business combination at provisional amounts. During twelve months from the
acquisition date {i.e. the measvrement period), the Group shall retrospectively adjust the provisional
amounts recognised at the acquisition date, if any discrepancies arise.

Transaction costs, except for costs related 1o the issuance of debt instraments or equily securities of
the Company in conneelion with a business combination, melude costs directly attributable to the
business combination, such as fees paid 1o financial advisors, legal consultants, valuation experts, and
other consultants involved in the business combination, These transaction costs are included in the
acquisition cost of the business combination. General administrative expenses and other costs not
directly aliributable to the specific business combination transaction being recognised are not included
in the acquisition cost bul are recorded as expenses incurred during the vear
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Foreign currency transactions

Foreign curvency transaciions

Transactions in currencies other than VND during the year have been translsted into VNI a1 mates
approximating actual rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated i currencies other than YN are translared into VND at
the account transfer buying rates (for assets) and account transfer selling rates (for liahilities),
respectively, af the end of the annual secounting period quoted by the commercial bank where the
Company and its subsidiaries most frequently conduct transactions.

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the consolidated statement of income,

Foreign operations

The assets and labilities of forcign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on gequisition, are translated to YWD at exchange rates at the end of the annual accounting period. The
incme and expenses of foreign operstions are transtated o YND at exchunge rates at the dates of
Transacions.

Foreign currency differences arising from the transiation of foreign operations are recagnised in the
balance sheet under the caption “Foreign exchange ditferences™ in equity

Cash and caxh equivalents

Cash compnses cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalents are shori-term highly liguid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject 1o an insignificant risk

of changes in value and are held For the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
far investment or other purposes.

Investments

Held=to-maturity irnvesinenis

Held-to-maturity investments are those that the Company™s or its subsidiaries' Board of General
Diirectors has the nfestion snd ability to hold until maturity. Held-to-maturity investments include
term deposits a2 banks. Tlhese investiments are stated al costs less allowance for deubtful debis.

Equity investments in other enfities

lnvestments in equity instruments of other entities are initially recognised ot cost which include
purchase price plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent o initial recognition, these
investments are stited at cost less allowance for diminution in velue. An allowance is made for
diminution in investiment values il the investee has suffered a loss which may cause the Company o
lose s invested capital, unless there is evidence that the valug of the investment has not been
diminished. The allowance is reversed if the investee sobsequently made & profit that offsets the
previous loss for which the allawance had been made, An allowance is reversed only to the extent that
the investment’s carrving amount does not exceed the camying amount that would have bheen
determined if no allowance had been recognised.
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Accounts receivable

Trade and other recervobles are stated at cost less allowanee Tor dowbiful debts.

Reeeivables and payables on construction contracts according to stages of completion

Receivables and payables on construction contracts according to stages of completion represent the
difference between the accumulated revenue of construclion contracts in progress at the end of the
period and the progress hillings and advances from costomers.

Inventories

Inventaries are stated &t the lower of cost and net realisable value, Costs of raw materials. tools and
supplies, finished goods and merchandise inventories are determined on a weighted average basis and
includes all costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of
work in progress are determined on an identification basis. Cost in the case of finished goods,
merchandise mventories and work in progress includes raw materials, direct labour and attributable
manufacturing overheads. Wet realisable value is the estimated selling price of inventory items, less
the estimated costs of completion and estimated cosis to sell, In cases where a constriction contract
stipulates that the confractor is paid based on the value of work cemified, work in progress of the
constrction contract is recognised for costs that have been incurred but not yet confirmed by the
customer at the reporting date,

The Group applies the perpetual method of accounting for inventories.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

Fangible fixed assets are stated af cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible
fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and
any directly attributable costs of beinging the asset fo its working condition for its intended use,
Expenditure incurred after tangible fixed nssets have been put into operation. such as repair,
mairtenance and overhaul cost, is charged to the consolidated statement of income in the vear in which
the cost is incurred. In sibeations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulied
in an increase in the fture economic henefits expected to be ebtaired from the use of tangible fixed
nssels bevond their eriginally assessed stundard of performance, the expenditure is capitalised s an
additional cost of tangible fixed azsats.
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Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed
assels. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

®*  huildings and structures § — 30 vears
= plant and equipment 5 — 20 vears
"  motor vehicles 5 — 12 vears
= office equipment 3 = 10 years
®»  ather tangible fixed assets 3 -7 vears

Intangible fixed assets

Mining rights

Mining rights represent the fair value of minersl reserves in the nickel - copper mines arising from the
business combination of Tan Phat Mineral J5C, & subsidiary of the Company. The fair value of mining
rights acquired through the business combination is determined using the excess earnings method. in
which the subject asset is valued after deducting a ressonable return on all other assets that contribute
o the related cash flows, Mining rights are then amortised 1o the consolidated statement of income on
a straighi-line basis over the expected exploitation period of 21.5 vears.

Right o exploit and operate Japan Indusirial Zone — Hai Phong (“NHIZ")

The rights to exploit and operate the NHEL Industrial Zone, acquired through 3 business combination,
are capitalised and presented as an intangible fixed asset ai fair value st initial recognition, The fair
value of the explottation snd operation rights acquired through the business combination is determined
nsing the excess eamings method, m which the subject asset is valued after deducting a reasonable
return on all other assets that contribute to the related cash Nows. The rights to exploit and operate the
MHIZ Industrial Zone are then amortised to the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the expected exploitation period of 22 years.

Land wse rights

Land use rights are stated a1 cost less accumulated amortisation. The initial cost of a land use rights
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs incurred in conjunction with securing
the land use rights. Definite iand vse rights are smortized on & straipht-line basis over o period ranging
from 44 to 49 vears, Land use rights with indefinite are not amontised

Software

Cast of acquiring new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised and
trented as an intangible assel, Software cogt is amortised on a straight-line basis over 3 to § vears.

20
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Investment property held to earn rental

Cost

[nvestment property held to eam rental is stated af cost less sccumulated depreciation. The initial cost
of an investment property held to eam rental comprises its purchase price, cost of land usc rights and
any directly attributable expenditures of bringing the property o the condition necessary for it 1o he
capable of operating in the manner intended by the Board of General Directors, Expenditure incurred
after the nvestiment property held to eam rental has been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is charged to the consolidated sistement of income in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonsirated that the expenditure has resulted in future
economic benefits mn excess of the oniginally assessed standsrd of porformance of the exisling
investment property held to earn rental, the expenditure is capitnlised as an additional cost of the
investment property.

Depreciarion

Depreciation 15 computed on a straight-line basis over the cstimated wseful lives of investment
property. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

*  land use rights 48 years
= apariments for lease 5 = 30 vears
" factories 30 vears

Construction in progress

Clonatruction in progress represents the costs of tangible Nxed assets and intangible fixed assets which
have not been fully completed or installed, No depreciation is provided for constroction in progress
during the period of construction and mstallation,

Long-term prepaid expenses

Taols and instrumenis

Tools and instruments inelude asses held For use by the Group in the normal course of business whose
costs of individual items are less than VNDI0 million nnd therefore not gualified for recognition as
fixed assets under prevailing regulstions. Cost of tools and instruments are amortised on o stroight-lne
basis over a period ranging from 2 to 3 vears.

Prepaid land lease renials

Prepaid Innd lease rentals comprise prepuid land lease rentals. including those for which the Group
obtained land use righta Sertificate bul are not qualified as intangible fixed assets under prevailing laws
and regulations, ond other costs incumed in conjunction with securing the use of leased land. These
costs are recognised in the statement of income on o straight-line basis over the term of the lease over
A4 to 49 years.

z1
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Sife clearance expenses of hydropower planis

Site clearance expenses of hydropower plants represent the compensation for site clearance of the
hydropower project Bao Lam 1, 3, 3A, Bao Lac B, Trung Thu, Mong An. Site clearance expenses are
recopnised at cost and deducted from the Growp®s annual land rental payable sccording io the notices
of the Cao Bang Provincial Department of Tax, Ha Giang Provineial Department of Tax and Dien
Bien Provineial Departiment of Tax for a period ranging from 11 10 67 vears.

Site clearance expenses af wind power planis

Site clearance expenses of wind power plants represent the prepaud compensation for site clearance of
the wind power projects which are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on & straight-
line basis over the periods of Lien Lap, Phong Huy and Phong Noguyen wind power plant projecis
which are 49 vears.

Infrastructiure rental costs

Infrastructure rental costs for praject connection are recognised at cost and amortized on a straight-line
basis over a period of 48 vears.

Dther long-term prepaid expenses

Other long-term prepaid expenses comprise expenses for assets renovation and repair. consulting fee
and other expenses, which are recognised at cost and amaortised on a straight-line hasis over a perind
rangng from 2 to 5 vears.

Goodwill

Goodwill arses on the acquisition of subsidiarses, associates and joint ventures. Goodwill is measured
al cost less accumulated amortisation, Cost of goodwill represenis the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Groop’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, linbilities and
econtingent lahilities of the scquinee.

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries is nmortised on o siraighi-line basis within 10 years,
Carrying value of goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary i3 writlen down (o recoverable amount
as managemen! determines that 1 1s not fully recoverable.

In respect of equity accounted investees, the cammying amount of goadwill is included in the carmving
amount of the investment and 15 not amortised,

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at their cost.
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Provision

A provision is recognised if, as a result of @ past evenl, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation thal can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will
be required b settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
tHlows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of money and the risks
specific to the liability,

Warranties

The provision for warranties relates mainly to goods sold and construction works completed during
the annual accounting pertod, The provision is based on estimates derived from historice! warranty
data associated with similar produects and services within the most recent three vears.

Severance allvwanee

Under the Vietnamese Labour Code, when an emplayee wha has worked for 12 months or more (“the
eligible empioyees™) voluntarily terminates his'her labour contract, the employer is required to pay the
eligible employee severance allowance calculsted based on vears of service and employee's
compensation at lerminatien, Provision for severance allowance has been provided based on
employees” vears of service and their average salary for the six-month pertod prior to the end of the
accounting period, For the purpose of determining the number of years of service by an employee, the
period for which the employes participated in and contributed to unemployment nsurance in
aceordance with prevailing laws and regulations and the period for which severance allowance has
been paid by the Group are excluded.

Environmental rehabilitation and restoration for mine

The Group has an obligation 10 rehabilitate and restore the environment at the nickel-copper mine
located in Quang Trung and Ha Tri Communes, Hoa An District, Cao Bang Provinee. This ohligation
inglwdes the nehabilitation and restoration of mining areas, waste dump sites, industrial site premises.
certain areas beyond the mine boundary, and oilver maintenance, repair, and restoration obligations,

The provision for environmental rehabilitation and restoration is recognised at the present value of the
estimated Future cash (lows required to settle the obligation. The estimated cash flows arc based on the
environmental rehabilitation cost projections stated in the Environmental Impact Assessment Report
and the annoal volume of extracted mw mineral resources,

Straight bonds

Al mitial recognition, straight bonds are measured at cost which comprises proceed from isseance net
of issuance costs. Any issmdance costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the bond
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Share capital

Ordinary shares are recopnised ol par value. The excess of proceeds from share issuance over the par
vilue of shares issued is recorded as share premium, Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of shares, net of tax effects, are recognised as 4 deduction from share premium.

Taxation

Inceme tax on the consolidated profit for the vear comprises curent and deferred tax. Income wx is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income except 1o the extent that it relates to lems
recagnised directly to equity, in which case it is recognised In equity.

Current tax 18 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year. using tax rates enacted at
the end of the annual accounting period, and any adjustment 1o tax payable in respect of previous years,

Deferred tux is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying ameunts of assets and liabilities for financial repoiing purposes and the amoants used for
taxation purposes. The amount of delerred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the camying amounts of assets and labilities using the tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted &t the end of the annual accounting period,

A deferred tax asset is recognised oaly to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profiis will
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised, Deferred tax assets are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the relsted tax benefit will be realisad.

Dieferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences arising from investments in associates are not
recognised as the Company has the ability to contral the timing of the reversal of these tem porary
differences and it is certain that sueh temporary differences will not reverse in the foresesable fture,
as the Company has no plans to dispose of these investments.

Revenue and other income

Ceivirels sl

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the
significant risks and rewards of cwnership have been transferred o the buyer, No revenue is recognised
if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or the possible return
of goods. Revenue on sales of goods is recognised at the net amount after deducting sales discounts.

For revenue from the sale of mineral concentrate, revenue is initially recognised at a provisional value
determined at the revenue récognition date and subsequently adjusted based on updated information on
velume and selling price upon final séttlament. As st the reporting date, provisional revenue is
recognised based on the estimated fair valoe of the total receivables.
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Services rendered

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the consolidated statement of income in proportion
to the stage of completion of the transaction. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to
surveys of work performed. No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due.

Constraction contricts

Revenue from construction contrects is recognised in the consolidated statement of income in
propartion to the stage of completion of the contract when the outcome of a construction coniract can
be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work perfoamed.
No revenue 15 recopnised i there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration
due,

Rental income

Rental income from property under operating leases is recognised in the consclidated siatement of
mcome on & straight-line basis over the ferm of the lease, Lease incentives granted are recognised as
an infegral part of the total rental income.

Electricity sold

Revenue from sale of electricity is recognised in the consolidated statement of income in aceordance
with eleciricity meter minutes and selling prices as dipulated in the Power Purchase A greement signad
with Vietnam Electricity Corporation. Mo revenue is recognised if there are significont uncenaintics
regarding recovery of the considerstion due.

Tnererest fncome

Interest income is recognised on a time propertion basis with reference to the principal outstanding
and the applicoble interest rte,

Leases

Leased assefs

Leases m terms of which the Group, as lessee, assumes substantially nfl the risks and rewards of
awnership are classified as finance leases. Tangible fixed assets acquired by way of finance leases are
stated at an amosnt equal Lo the lower of fir valee and the present value of the minimum lease
payments at inception of the lease, bess accumulated depreciation,

Depreciation on finance leased assets s computed on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term andl the estimated useful lives of the leased assers onless it is rensonably certain that the Group
will obtain ewnership by the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of finance leased assets
are consistent with the useful lives of tangible Mixed assets as described in Note 3{h)(ii).
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Lrease paymenis

Paymenls made under operating leases are recognsed in the stastement of income on a straight-line
basis over the ierm of the lease, Lease incentives received are recognised in the statement of income
as an integral part of the t4al leese expense, over the term of the lease.

Lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the autstanding lishility. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease
term 50 45 fo produce o constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the linbility.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognisad as an expense in the vear in which they are incurred, except where the
Borrowing casts relate to borrowings in respect of the construction of qualifying assets, in which case
the borrawing costs incurred during the period of construction are capitalised as part of the cost of the
mssets concerned.

Earnings per share

The Company presents hasic eamnings per share [or its ordinary shares. Basic eamnings per share is
cilculated by dividing the consolidated profit or loss atiributable 1o the ordinary shareholders (after
deducting any amounts appropriated 1o bonus and welfare fund for the annual sccounting period) of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year,

Durmg the vear ended 3| December 2024, the Company had no potential ordinary shares and therefore
dees not present diluted eamings per share.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related 1o the Group il one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, 1o
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
aperating decisions, or where the Group and the aother party are subject to common control or
significant inflaence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities and include close family
members of any individual considersd to be a related party.

Related companies refer 1o the Company’s associates and companies whose key manapement
perscnnels are close family members of the key management personnel of the Company.

Comparative information

Comparative information in these consolidated financial starements is presented as corresponding
figures. Under this method, comparative information for the prior vear is included as an integral part
of 1he current year™s financial statements and is inended to be read only in relation 10 the amounts and
other disclosures relating 1o the curent vear. Accordingly, the comparative information included in
these consolidsted financial statements is not intended to present the Group's consolidated financial
pesition, results of operation or cash flows for the prior year.
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Disposal of a subsidiary

During the year, PC1 My Dinh Joint Stock Company, a tier-1 subsidiary of the Company, disposed of
200,000 shares of ETIK Electrical Experiment Joint Stock Company, i tier-2 subsidiary of the
Company, to an individual for a disposal price of YND2 billion. The loss from the disposal was
recognised in the consolidated statement of income fior the vear (Note 38).

Aceording o the share transfer agreement, the remaining 310,000 shares, equivalent ta a 31%
ownership interest, will be disposed by 30 June 2025, Accordingly, as ot 31 December 2024, the
itvestment in this company was recorded as other current assets (Mote 15). This transaction impact to
the Group™s assets and liabilities at the date the Group”™s control over the subsidiary ceased, as follows::

Carrying amount at the

date control ceased
ETIK Electrical
Experiment Joint Stock
Company
YN

Cash and cash equivalents 3.114.906,949
Short-term receivables 15.314,235.920
[nventories 3, T3E. 808 935
Cther current assels 446,248,505
Tangible fixed assets (Mote 14) 13,331,939
Finisnee lense mngible fixed asseis 4, 186,077,254
Short-term borrowings and Mnance lease liabilities (Note 2%a)) (11,419.767,560)
Other cument labilities (6.513,649,529)
Mot identifiable assets and liabilines B AR0, 283422
Non-controlling imterests at the date control ceased (Note 32) 4,351,338.386
Cither current assets (Mota 15) T ABOD0D,A08
Loss from disposal recognised in the consolidated statement of income
(Note 8] 48,943 428
Disposal price received 2,000,000, 000
Reduction in cash due to disposal of subsidiary (3, 114,906,549
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiary (1,1 14.906.949)
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Segment reporting

Business scgments

A segment iz a distinguishable component of the Company and its subsidiaries that is engaged either
in providing related products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services
within o particular ceonomic enviromment (geographical segment), which k& subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments. Segment revenue, expenses and resulls include
transfer between business segments, such transfers are climinated on consolidatiom. The Group
comprise the following main busmess sepmenis:

Construction;

Indusirial production;

Real estate;

Energy,

Trading;

Exploitation and opemtion of industrial 2ones;
Mining: and

CHhers.
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Geographical segments
The Group has geographical segments including Vietnam and Singapore as follows:

Vietnam Singapore Consolidatien
For the vear ended 31/1272024 2023 312024 3023 31122024 J122023
VD VNI YD VND YND YD
Restated Restated
External revenoe 8.378.027.842,020  7.069.882.829605 1.TI0B73.778.599 623.898.233.059 10.088901.620610  7.693 781,062,664
Capital expenditure 234.495.616,983 50,322,093, 703 - . 234, 495,616,983 506,322,093 703
Asat 322024 31/12/2023 J1A2r024 JL22023 S1M2024 311122023
VND VND VND VND YIND VIND
Restated Restated
Segment assets 20,955,239,642,987  20,158.857.394,600 32.405.087,141 16287 ARE250 20087 .644741,128 20,175,744, 282,940
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Cash and cash equivalents

3171272024 17142024
YD VMDD
Cash on hand 32,254, 830,129 27202 597 470
Cash in hanks 702,327.877,750 149,156,686,536
Cash in transit = B DO, 0}
Cash equivalents 1,542, 745,000,000 1,610, 108298,715
2277327 T0T.RTS 2081217682721

Cash equivalents represent deposits at commercial banks with original term of leéss than three months
and eaming interest at the rates ranging from 1.6% — 4.75% per annum (1/1/2024: 2.3% - 4.2% per

ANNUm).

Investments

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments — shori-ferm
Term deposits

Cost and carrying amount
31/122024 17172024
VND YND

016,759,191 654

780,833,305 437

Held-te-maturity investments represent term deposits at cormmercial hanks with original wenmns of more
than three months aml remaining terms of no more than twelve months, caming interest at rates ranging
from 1.0%= 9.5% per mnoum {1/ 12024 1.4%-9.5% per annum).
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Investments in associates

Cao Bang Cast Iron and Stez|

Joint S:ock Company

CT2 Real Estate Investmen

Jaint Stock Company

Western Pacific Joint Stock Company
Phu Binh Warehousing Joimt Stock
Comparny

Cao Bang Cast Iron and Steel

Joint Stock Company

CT2 Real Estate Investment

Juint Stock Company

Wesiern Pacilic Joinl Stock Company
Phu Binh Warehousing Joint Stook

Company

Formn B 00 - DINHN
Chisnoed wnder Clrewlgr No. 2022004 TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2004 of the Minisiry of Finance)

Movement of investments in associzies during the vear were as follows:

Orpening balance

Share capital purchased during the year
Share of profit in associstes

Dividends received during the vear
Other movements in associntes” equity

Closing balance

311272024
%o of equity Carrying amouni Fair
owned and % of  wnder equity method  value
voting rights VND YNNI
(*)
25.08% 56,390,200, 542
{*)
49.00% SO0, (0, D00, 000
30.08% 1253 444.21R, 798 ™)
(*)
36.00% 68 400,000,000
1.708,234.428 340
1712024
Vo of equity Carrying amount Fair
owned and % under equity method  value
of voting rizhis VND VND
*)
25.0%% 126,907,281.952
(*)
49.00% 300,000,000.000
30.08% 1,110,046, 466,720 (*)
*)
36,0074 B8, 404, 000,000
1,603,333, 748,672
For the year ended
312024 122023
YND YND
1.605,353,748.672 1,536,504,981,744
G40,243,900,000 68 400, (00,000
45, 794,608,083 1.577,383,200
(33,029 268,000 -
(118.561.315) (1,188.616,281)

|, PR, 233 428,340

1, 605,353.748,672
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ic) Equity investments in other entities

Joint Stock Commercial Rank for Investment and
Development of Vielndm
Vinaincon Centrifugal Concrete J5C

Joint Stock Commercial Bank for [nvestment and
Development of Vietnam
Yinaincon Centrifugal Concrete J5C

Mumber of
shares

2,625
A0, 000

M lver of
shares

65,806
400,000

Yo of equity owned and
% of voting rights
Yo

0.00115%
10003,

% of equity owned and
o of voling rights
Y

00401 1 5%
10.00%

Form B 09 - DN/HN
{Fesped wrder Civcwdar Neo 202/2004877T-810
dered 12 December 2004 of the Ministry of Finanoe)

ILAEZNI4
Allowance for
dimimution in
st value
WIND YND
820,770,000 =
4 000, 000,000 {A.000,000, 0007
4820, 770.000 (4,004,000, D)
1172024
Allowance for
diminution in
Cost value
VND VNI
821,770,000 -
4,000,000,000 (3,606,012,908)
4,821, 770.000  (3,606,012.909)

Fair value
YIND

2989 918,750
£*)

Fair value

VND

2,534,386,400
(*)

(*)  The Group have not determined fair values of thess investments for disclosure in the consolidated financial ststements because information about their market
prices is nat available and there is currently no puidance an determination of fair value using valuation technigues under the Vietamese Accounting Standards or

the Victnamese Accounting System for Enterprises. The [air values of these investiments may differ from their camymg amounts.
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Form B M - TINHN
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dated 22 Docember 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Accounts receivable from customers detailed by significant balance

Vietnam Electricity Corporation

Hanoi Power Development Project Management Board
— Hanoi Power Corporation

The Central Viemam Power Project Management Board

Ho Chi Minh City Power Grid Project Management Board
The Northen Vietnam Power Project Management Board
Fhe Southem Vietnam Power Project Management Board

Power Project Management Boand Ne. 2 = Vietnam
Electricity Corporation
Oithers

Prepayments to suppliers

The party whose key management personnel are chse
family members of the key management personnel of
the Company

[Xai Dung Mechanical Electrical Inint Stock Company

Oiher third parties

Gia Loc Phat Joint Stock Company

Sofg [a Na, 5 Joint Stock Company

Dongfang Clectric International Corporation

Thang Long Invesument and Technology Transfer Joing
Siock Company

Cilkcrs

L2024
VND

263,660,955,793

234 656,351.299
139310, 796227
| 18.049,317.475
05.618.342 792
79,023.533,034

33 AR0.528 945
1.051.381.051.334

172024
YiND
Hestated

3I00,562,675,147

152,599,801 367
79,296,369, | (d
43,526,996,0092
T6,016,197.514

190,545 Ba4.016

162,767,074,244
BE3. 554, 166419

2015,189.876,899 1.877.968.983.905
51122024 /172024
YND VYND
].ﬁaﬁ.dﬁduﬂﬂz o
105,988,840,482 05,988, 840,482
49.972,254,174 -
40,926,457,094 -

246,693 118,151

17.877,632,227
103,327,640,344

456,209,424 703

217.194,103,053
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Heceivables on construction contracts according to stages of completion

S1/122024 1172024
YND YD
Accumulated costs of construction contracts in prograss
2t the end of the year 1465.278.407.869 -

Attributable profits 43,546,075.329 -

Accurnulated revenue of comstractiion contracts in

progress a1 theend of fhe vear |BR.RB24 483,198 =
Progress hillings and advances from cusiomers (179.637.333,423) -
9.187,149.775 -
Loans receivable — short-term
Jr2/2024 1172024
VNI YND
Neuyen Tat Cuong (*] 05, 725.000,000  235.075,000,000

Tran Thi Tuvet

Global Green Energy Consulting 18C

Crhier individmnls

2 588410051
| 230, 000, (0

X9 a3 0 000,000
758841008
| 430,000,000

309.543.410.05]

28B.724.4 10,051

This i5 the short-term loan receivable granted by subsidiarics to an individual, whom the Board of
General Director has confirmed not to be a related party of the Group. This loan eams interest raes
ranging from 3.5% o 6.0% per anmum (1/1/2024; 3.5% — 6.0% per onnim). As al the date of issuance
of the consolidated financial statements, the principal and interest of these loans have heen axtended
to the 2*! quarter and 3% quarter of 2075, The Group’s management assesses that the loans granted to
Mr. Cuong are fully recoverable as thev are secured by 13.8 million listed shares owned by an
individual and kand use rights, housing ownership rights, and asscts atiached 1o land of two real estate
properties owned by Mr. Cuong.
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Other receivables

(Other short-term receivahles

Advances for gite clearance compensation [*)
Advances to emplovess

Advances made to works steering leams
Acerued interest income from deposits and loans
Dividend receivables from an associate

Dreposits, mongages
Cbers

J1/1212024
¥ND

170,802 845,302
[ 18427 028 B12
| 8,506 869461
A3,333.564, 158
33,029, 268,000
18.823.501.517
J.B59 950, |

1172024
YD

| Ta61 1,651,082
103,920,144,217
24.856,454,080
38,534,783, 873

29.474,663,501
f, 1 diha6d [ 22

416,873,034,466

199,538,361,777

These are advances to pay compeisation al construction works, which will be setiled the project
investors {customers) and advances to pay compensation for real estate snd energy projecs,

Other long-term receivahles

Deposits, mortgages

122024
YIND

2,830,193,500

1/1/2024
VND

14,770,136, 760
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Bad and doubtful debts

Owerdie debis
Cusiomers group |

Cusiomears group 2
Customers group 3

Cusiomers group 4

T wihieth:

Crveridoe
periond

Ungler | vear
Froan
| -2 vizars
Fim
2 -3 veam
{Iver
3 ¥ems

Aliowance Tor douhtful deks — short-term

J1F1LFE0Z4

Cuost
YND

JE275,902, 812
36, 830,154,593

19,953, 084434

Albrwanee
VI

(38,275,992 827)
(36,830,154,593)
(19,053,984 .434)

Hecoverable  Owerduoe

amouani
YD

85,060 151,849

(95,060, 13 L.E49)

(95,060, 131 549)

period

Unifer 1 year
Iroy
1 =2 vears
From
2 -3 years
Crver
Yyenrs

Form B (09 — DMNFHN
Fleywed wder Clreulaor No, 200200 8 TT-BTC
glentecd 22 Dweember 2014 af the Ministry of Finanee)

12024
Recovernhble
Cost A llorwance ot
YD VI YND
2431941262 (TRO582.370) |.B42,358,883
O B6E. TR0 946 (4934395473 4934395473
2 4068 BT 900 (1,971.083 5%0) 406,504 300
4751,242.337 (47006761810 50,646,208
19720042 445 (12395737583 7324 304 862

(12,395,737,383)
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14. Inventories

JAL30E4
i Allowanee Cost Allowaner
VNI VD VN VMDD
Resinted
Goods in transit 21,640,945, 639 . 490 380,000 5
Raw matcrials VG291 5930, 7H) {132,033, 526) 2040 282 00 642 (T 0200 18
Tools and supplies ot Bl e d 1. - 21.3553261,04) -
Work in progress (*) [ 189241, 573,075 - Si1.60%51101,506 =
Finished goods 141, 134,751,701 - 144,758.628,534
Merchandise inventones 3,527.043 50/ - 70,725355,564
| 58T, 734464 304 { 132 035 E26) Q58 222 146,097 (7060201 18)

41
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the consalidated financial siatements for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)

Work in progress comprised:

Form B (9 - DNHN
Flssned wnder Clrowlar No, N220080TT-RTC
dated 22 Decgimbar 2074 af the Wiaistry of Finoanoel

31122024 1112024
YND VD

Keal estate business activities 637, 70974807  28.494,850,392
Low-rise housing and commercial construction project at Thap
Wang land, Phu Thi commune, Cia Lam distriet, Hano {*%) 07,095 061,671 =
PCCT Vinh Hung office, commercial, and spartment complex 14399687, 700 14,300 687,700
PC1 Bac Tu Liem Residential Area Project (G5 — CT2 and G8

CT3) 7490726417 7,494 006417
PC1 Gia Lam Residential Area Project 239G, 191,784 2,596, 191,784
Cither projects 6.160.307,235  4,003,974,49]
Construction, supply of electrical equipment and
construction of industrial park infrastructure 440,703 858,416 461,179.631,063
5SMkY Nhon Hoa Transmission Line Project 55.161.921,742 | 8,867,261
EPC —Wind Power Plant Project — Khas Long - Ca Mau
Tourist Area Phase 1. Khai Loag Wind Power Plant Phases 2
and 3, and 110kY Bay Expansion at Nam Can 220KV
Substalin 42,014, 157613  34,710.041,195
EPC Package for construction of technical mfrastmciure — Yen
Phong [1-A Industrial Park, Project: Infrastracture Construction
Investment und Infrastructure Buziness — Yen Phong 11-A
Indusirial Park A0, TITRA0000 26,799, 806,527
Chher projects J08. 7895929061  399,650.916,078
Indusirial production activities 91,561.5398.050  Z1,.918.629.861
2206V Truung Son — Do Luong Transmission Line 30977942 707 -
110 = 500KY Transmission Line Project in Belt 4, Bac
Ninh provinee 15,173,594,324 -
Cther projects 4a,410.061,.019 21,928,629 B6
Other work-in-progress 12,225,141, 802 -

As nt 31 December 2024, work in progress being land vse rights with a carrying

1,189,241,573,075

all,603,111316

amount nf VINDGOT hillion

have been pledged with bank as security for leans granted 10 the Company (Mote 29(h){i).

Other eurrent assets

Asat 31 December 2024, other curment assets comprises 310,000 shares of ETIK Electrical Experiment
Joint Stock Company carrying at cost of VN2 480,000,608 (1/1/2024: Nil). According to the share
transfer agresment. these shares will be fully tranaferved for o value of VMDA, 100,000,000 no later
than 3 June 2025,

"l#“... i



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Mates 1o the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Form B 0% - DN/HN

{Trsned wnder Circufar Mo, 20220048TT-BTC
cleateed 22 December 20004 af the Mimisicrof Fivance)

Tangible fixed assets
Bl b bt snal Plamt and Maotor {HTce hher fangible
struetures equipment vehicles eopuiprm ent Mixed assets Total
VI VN YD YND VND YD
Cost
Cpening balance - restated 4 562 690 035,787 TA58551 372,525 437631, 588,944 132Z70921,098  56,173,339.874 12.548,275.257,128
Clperming balence — o previowdy raparid S R f 2 R T 402 T30 209 564 436,807 823 FEQ I3 NI ETORR0  S&ITIZINETH {3418 820 [55, 708
Restatenrent (Mode 45 F1.704.m 550 I35 702073 paT TA3 Fes 158 Fil5 350448 - P28 34p 18] 120
Additions 4437314370 20 BT7 301,861 TA12 386,912 2A58.317 0ad [ 154312000 36,319,530 217
Transfeered from constroction in progress 71409357178 |6 075 228,970 20499 F52 908 - - [ 16, 984630050
Disposals - (I6R04.919.561) (R.972 561 B4 (25, 777481410}
Written off (331 3HE. 0340 - = = (331.388.034)
Adjustments upon finalization £9.95] Th8.650 (136,526, 19791T) 30 804,000 L - (716,523,629.187)
Decreases duz 1o disposal of' a
subsidiary (Mote 4) - (463272000 - - - (46,337 200
Ceher additicme deductions) 16,224,354, 154 I IRT G4 497 {76, TR AT 314659 - FBA37, 778 440
Closing balapce A, T 14, 382 444, 0909 T594.415,826. 175 465 545,080 308 35689385459 AT 3ET65| ATA 12617 338 337,910




FC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Nutes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Form K (9 - DNHN
(Fssuied wmcler Cirosdar No. 2022018 TT-RTC
datedd 22 Dacember 2014 of the Minisry aof Finance)

Hubidings and FPlant and Motor Office Oiher tangible
structures equipment vihicles equipment fixed assels Tartul
YD YD YD VMDY VD YND
Accumulnted :I:Fru'mﬂi{m
Cipening balanee - restoted OTBASESSE5IT  1,5331.97E, 960,683 332003 2392460 | B, 63, 700,248 45 597860031 2008 764328430
' Ldning balomce — ag praiansiy
reparted TGP T2 59N L F2TFARATT MR FRL002 295854 I8 G0 722 dR0 45 AT AE0 830 2 HNREIT S E02)
Rosiaremei} (Nore 48) A 304, URd 4 749 583,578 J0, 943 4048 F4. 078 468 . 8116812 418
Charge for the year 250609 BT 298 468044, 276 801 7245 315,642 3.061.750.331 4,3 10,460,271 TA9.533,074 393
Disposals - (15,509 361, 084) (5.821,766,361) - - (21,391,147 545)
Written off (3313ER034) - - # - [331,388.054)
Decreases doe to disposal ofa (32.995.261) - - - (32.995.261)
subsadinry (Mole 4} o
Clozing balance 123421904 1,781 1,984, 420,861,039 355456, 7RR 50 1250451278 4RO0E 329,002 3546, 562471,992
Met hook valoe
Opening balance — restated B4 II2ATAITD S ERGST2AI1L B2 105 598 34968 14,532 731,050 3575470, 843 9439 5[0.928 659
3AR0, 163,402,313 5339992865136 1 I00B8,29]1,717 13,030,954, 180 TA19322 572 R970. 795915918

Closing balance

As ol 31 December 2024, tngible fived assets a net book value of VMDE, 750 billion {1/1/2024 — restated: WVND9, 533 hillion) were pledged with banks as security
for loans granted to the Group (Mote 29(b)(i)).

Asal 31 December 2024, tmngible fixed assets costing VIND679 billion (1/1/2024: VNDS74 billion) were Tully depreciated but are still in active use.



17.

PC1 Group Jeint Stock Company

MNates 1o the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Intangible fixed assets

Cast

Crpening baldnog

Additions

Transfizmed [mm construction in
Prigress

Clising halance

Accum ulated amortisation
Opening balance
Charge for the vear

Form B 09 - DN/HN
{Trsted wnder Circufar No. 2022014TT-BTC
dertedd 32 Deceweber 2004 of the Minisiry of Finaweeg)

Closinge batance

Met ook value
Dipening balance
Closing balance

Rights 1o exploit
anil nperate
WHIY. Industrial
Mining rights Lone Land use rights Soltware Cihers Total
YND VND YD VNI VND VD
077,536,206 866 385284021525  142409.528 442 5,193,442 600 105331819 1,382,368.621,252
e - - BOG 0K, ORI - S99 F00, 0440
. . - 3k, B, OO0 - 30_K00,000
977,536,296, 866 385284021525 14249528 442 6,123,942 600 105,331,819  1.383,299,121,252
115,561 461,450 |9 898472334 £,292,457,574 4.644,075 329 105,331,819 | 46,497, 798,56
42, 758,707,921 17418.614,785 269,749,116 474,704,000 - 60,921, 775,823
158,320, 169,371 ITAT.087, 020 3,262, 206,690 5,114, 779320 105,531,819 207419, 574,329
SR1074.835416  3A5.3R5.540,19 T.057.070 868 553367271 1,235,870, 822,746

RI10.216,127.495

4T 066,034 405

T.687. 321,752

1,009,163 271

1,175 879,546 923

As at 31 December 2024, intangible assets costing VND2.6 hillion (171/2024: VND1.7 billion) were fully amortised but are stll in active use.



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the eonsolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Investment property held to earn rental

Cost
Dpening balance
Pisposals

Closing balance

Avcumulated depreciation

Opening balance
Charge for the vear
Disposals

Closing balance

Net ook valoe

Opening balance
Closing balance

Land vse rights
VND

49744759 862

Form B 09 - DN/HN

(issued sender Circlar No, 2022004TT-B7C
deted 22 December MM 4 of the Ministry of Finance)

Apartments for
lease
YND

157,755,932,150
(21.341,182,331)

Factories
YWD

395,357,001 7,HK

Total

358,088,029,012
(21,341,182.331})

T84T RGT

2.684.908,425
104,177,436

136,414,749, 810

§5,004,0185,496
55830022436
(6.634,379,620)

395357617,

353,733,802,769
13,178,587 476

536,746,846, 681

412,412,856,600
18,865.787,348
(6,634,370, 620

2789, 145 861

54.942. 728312

66,912,300.245

424044 104 418

228951 L4537
2,183,334,001

11,761.846.654
81,472.021,507

41,623.814,23]
28,445,226,755

145.675,172,322
112, 102,582,263

46
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

(eontinued )

Form B 09 — DNHN

{Tsxaied wnder Circwlar No, 2022004/ T7-B7¢'

dated 22 Decembar 2004 of the Minivine aof Finames)

Long-term work in progress

Leng-term work in progress reflects the value of land use rights for a project with an expected

implamentation period exceeding 2 normal business eyvele.

Construction in progress

2024 2023
ViND VNI
Hestated
Opening balance — restated 112.686.564.279  1.373,792.0497 80

Opening balamce ar previowsly reporied
Restatement (Note 48)

07818 411, 504
4,568, 162,775

§,373, 792,992 639

Additions 205,943,257 429 425,904,103 008
Additions — as previewsly reported n F21033. 930 233
Restatement (Nate 48) - 4,668 162,775
Reclassified to inventories (4, 197,494 906) =
Transter to short-term prepaid expenses {21,767.624.401) (3,408,313 487)
I'ransfer to tangible fixed assets { 116.984,639.056) (1.541.801.714.501)
Transfer to imangible fixed assets (30, %00 0K y
Transfer o long-term prepaid expenses (5,666,682,758) (44244934517
Decduction of income arising during the trial period - {69,179,711.860)
(ither movements : 28,375.857.044)
Closing balance 170,032,575,587 112.686.564279
Major constructions in progress were as [ollows:

31272024 1172024

VYND YD
Restated

Bao Lac A Hydropower Project T6.972.3568,337 23.555,749.753
Nikel — Copper open pit mining Project 24 467 389358 48,933, 828,605

Thuong Ha Hydropower Project
Oihers

22.230.259,134
46,352,558, 758

40,196,985 921

170.022,575,587

112686564279

4
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(a)

PC1 Group Jeint Stock Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

{continued)

Form B 09 — DNHN
flesnedd wmcer Civeular Ne, 202200 85T T1-800
derted 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Fivigrce)

Prepaid expenses

Short-term prepaid expenses
Izzoz4
VAND
Tools and supplies A 05,334.421
(dher short-ferm prepaid expenses 14,603,452,796

111/2024
WD

6,243,481 752
6,445,463,078

17,708, 7871217

12,689, 346,830

43



PCY Group Joint Stock Company

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for the yvear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
Form B 09 — DNHN

(Testied wnder Circwdar No, 2027208 4TT-81C
dated 22 Degember 2004 af the Minisiry of Finance)

ith)  Long-term prepaid expenses

Site clearance
enpronses of Site clearance  Land ase rightover
Tisals med Anset Fl-Plil' Frepaid land hyvidrepaner expenses of wind the lamd aren nt 120 Infraztracture
matrumenis RPN rentsl plamts (%] powr plats Diak Cong pental enst Oithers Tatal
YN VD YVaDb YND WD YA VI VND WD

Ompening balancs TATHONEE0E  156TROZTIIE YA On0 285  DTI069R23 N 11570155500 1R WL TRy 62RO 554920 4T 39T 2T0RIT RRer f E S L
Ackditions X3 51T 5T Q95 TG MI2 - - Ui | K68, 0 - - 52X ana 142 67, T8 T9 624
Tranxler rom
cnpsnicion n prgmes
(P 200G = SonsnonE2 THE = = = - - - Jobho a8 T5R
Charge for ihe voar (5, TELSTATIY) TR NTISHY [2AS8435816) (DRI NKLAFY) (3333083241 = [ BAT 62 445) (434 IHO2T Ran] (b6, 272 AHERIT)
Roslassifealion - 1 3. 459 6(Hp. TTH - . . = L e A | .
Tranefer by longe=tomm
work in propress . - - - - (PR 100, TeT - - {192.928 100, 76Ty
Ciher additiendeduction| 20 EE T - « (16 A40811) - - - (674,50, 53580 il R R [
Closing halance TRIS 000508 DLO79ESE2M0 RO0AEAIES 1YY 106X ITE L83 13SAT TS R4E - G475 500 483 62437034807 2001930, 5 RS

" Compensation for site cleamnce of the hydropower projects Bao Lam |, 3, 3A, Bao Lac B, Trung Thu, Mong An shall be deducted from the annual land rental pavable according
to the notices of the Cao Hang provineial Depariment of Tax. Ha Giang provincial Department of Tax and Dien Bien provincial Departmedt of Tax. Detalls are as follows:

Project Maotice Deductible amaunt
VND

Boo Lam | Hydropower Projact Motice Mo, BRUTHR-CT datad 2471 12016 11413 476,782
Bao Lam 3 Hydropawer Project Motice No., 349 TB-CT dated 2 1/8/2017 10.06 1A 18000
Bao Lam 3A Hydropower Project Motice Mo, 798 TB-CT dated 7782017 HEE, 410,942
Bao Lac B Hvdropower Project Motice Mo [216/TEB-CT dated VOVT2720159 TRO6,445 192
Ban Lae B Hydropowes Project Motice Mo || SVTR-CT dated 117112019 TET. 719,391
Trung Thu Hydrepoweer Progect Motice Mo, [0S TE-STC dated 367201 6 T0,790,693,435
Matice Mo, 1217 TB-CT dated 100122005 21,334,749 438

Moz An Hydropower Project

122,862.913,178

Total lond rental offset up w31 December 2024, 15 YND15 614,606,295,

49
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'"C1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

{continwed)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Form B 0Y - DN/HN

lssned wader Circular Na. 20220047 1-B1C

Reeopnised deferred tax assets and linhilities

Deferred tax assents:
Inventories
Fixed nsseis
Congtrciion in progress
(Mhers

Total deferred tax assets

Deferved tax linhilities:
Fixed assets
Fixed assets
Inventones
Allowance for long-term investments
Long-term work in progrece
Gain from revaluation upon capital
increase from investment in an nssocistc
to a subsidiary
Loss from disposals of subsidiary
Long-term prepaid expenses
{thers

Tial deferred mx linbilities

Applicable
ax rates

2
20%
2%
2095

20%
10%%
20%
20%
20%

20%%
20%

20%
20%

dirfed 22 December W4 af the Minixtry of Finanes)

31122024 1/1/2024
VND YIND

1.120,138.530 2,611,849 364
27,517.011,850  25,220.668,171
1,169,077.722 4,201,763.973
473,793,162 2,192,252,584

310,250,921.273 34,726,534, 002

(164, 208.912.250) {173,598, 386,637
(35,100,407 BB8) (36,842 269 367)
{303,714, 448} {303,714,448)
{TAR5.603.887) :
(40,500,837 431) z

(52, 402,000,000  {52,402,000,000)
{757.751.421) (737,751.421)

- (3R651L42%.518)
(4367.294.811)  (2430,966,046)

(305,205,322, 136) (304,986,716,432)

{274,924,000,863) (270,760, 1 82.340)

h11}
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PMC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

icontinued)

Form B 09— DN/HN
{fssued wrder Chroular No. 2022004/TT-8TC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministre of Finance)

Goodwill

Cost
Opening and closing balance

Accumulaied amortisaiion

Cipening balance
Charge for the vear

Closing balance

el ook value

Opening balance
Clozing balance

Accounts payable to suppliers

2024

240,056, THE QRO

223, 754,731,002
35094.573,.829

258,844, 104 831

216,342,037 987
IBE.247 664,158

Accounts payable to suppliers detailed by significant balance

The parties whose key munagement personnel are close
fmily members of the key management personned of

the Cimipamy

Dai Dung Mechanical Electrical Joint Stock Company
Minh Hung M&C loint Stock Company {formerly
known as "Dinh Tan Construction Investment Joint
Stock Company ™)

Oher third parties

Thang Long Investment and Technalogy Transfer
Joint Stock Company

L8-Vina Cable and System Joint Stock Company
Hon Thinh Trading services Joint Stock Company
Thinh Cucng Juint Siwock Company

Siemens Energy Limited Company

Vinacomin — Minerals Holding Corporation
Crthers

Cost and amownt
within payment capacity

3122024
VNI

32.306,117,963

50669.217.600

110,037 444,656
101670043560
H.562,242,.897
43,599, 805,132

116518287975

17172024
YD

B3.134.119,522
96,229,903, 174
13,920,000 (41D
T95,317.927.051

I, 120,604,359, 789

1,048,601 945,747

51
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MC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the consolidated financial stutements for the year ended 31 December 2024

(comtinued)

Form B 09 — DN/HN

(Tssmed wicher Circlae No. 202720048 TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2004 of the Ministry of Finance)

Advances from customers

Southern Vietnam Power Grid Project Manapement Board
Dong Thanh | Wind Power Co., Lid.

Southern Power Project Management Board

Hanod Power Grrid Project Management Board

The Southern Vietnam Power Projects Management
Board

Mandgement Board of Urban Railway

Oither customers

J122024
¥ND

v, S04 600, 0692
31515451438
23.036,620,441
22752 187,170

21,360,763,271

133,640,127.004

1152024
YD
Bestated

31.515.453.438

11,214,189,119
106,712, 860.709

2099 109,751,506

169,442 503,266

L)
Fud



16.

FC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Taxes and others receivable from and payable to State Treasury

Form B 09 - DN/HN

{Ixsned wnder Circular No. 2022014 TT-8T0"
dlreted 22 Dercwgmber 2074 of the Minisine of Finmce)

112024 - restated N4
Heceivable Pavable Incurred Maid/net-off Receivable Pavable
YIND YND VND VYND VYND VND

Value added tax (*) - X7.002.841,082 202,540,181 430 (205,191 517, 178) - 24,351 ,505,334
Import-export tax {479.631) - 318,985,684 252 (293,089,811 1,828) - 23,895,402,792
Corporate income tax (Te1034.370y 33,308, 154.682 124,870.818,560 (F6,541,785.807T) (7o 222543) 101631575524
Balance — as previously reported (Fe10343700 G4 B T06 535 - - - -
Restatement (Nofe 48) - fTL536,751.873) - - - -
Personal income tax (265, 779457) 1. 826,958,335 43, 332,.974.0°79 {23, 160.055,959) {93 938.862) |, B48.056 380
Royalty taxes (**) - 52737936, 718  188.879,558,8092 (170.846,083,757) - T0771.411,853
Belimice — gy previously reported - 6, 710.095.829 - - -
Hestatemend (Note 48) 2027 8408559 - B - - -
Land and housing taxes. and lapd

rental (280.115.378) 237200873 378,834,924, 020 (5TO068, 154.485)  (276.055,170) -
Environment protection tax - 7,272,570324 43 640,901 /04 (50.013.471,928) -

Other taxes - 5,220, 198,755 (5,220, 198,755) - -
Fees, charges and other taxes 1.536,513,768 48,464.208.033 (#2.376.581,578) {43,271,240) 1.667.610.463

(1.307 400,037}

143,917 465 802

1L.532, 780 460,125

{1 446407 462 355) (1.173.507.815)

230,165,562 ,350

53
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
MNotes to the consvlidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024
feontimued)

Form B (09— DN/HN
{Tssued wnder Circular No. 2022014 TT-BTC
deded 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finaneel

The amount incurred represents e total value sdded tx amount payable after being offset with inpart
virlue added tax sach month.

Az stated in Note 48(h), due to inconsistencies among the current regulations guiding the calculation
ol royalty tax and the lack of specific guidance from the competent authonities, in 2023, a subsidiary
of the Company has temporanly declared and paid rovalty tases based on the taxable price issued by
the Cao Bang Provincial People's Committec announced and the quantity of extracted raw resources.

In 2024, thas subsidiary has redefined the royalty taxes calealation mefhod based on the interpretations
of the provisions of Circular 15220157 TT-BTC dated I October 2015 guiding the royalty axes
[“Circuslar 1 527), Accordingly, this subsidiary has redetermined the royalty calculation price according
to the customs value of exported natural resource produets excluding export tax and transporation
expense stated in the sake invoices and determined the tazable resource outputat the exploitation stoge
to redeterming the tax liability payable for 2023 and subsequent years, The Board of General Directors
believes that the Group has fully estimated its royvally taxes obligations under this new method, in

accordance with the interpretations of relevant regulations and practical production practices of the
subsidiany,

Currently, this subsidiary is still in the process of applying for detailed guidance from the competent
authonty on the method of culoulating rovalty taxes in accordance with its practical practices, The
final result depends on the detailed guidance of these agencies. However, the competent tax authorities
may have different inferpretations of the flaw.

Accrued expenses —short-term

Axcrued interest expense

Averved expenses for construction and industrial
production works

Acerued expenses for mining operations

Accrued expenses for the completed mining factory
Canstractian

Accrued expenses for wind power plant operations
Accrued expenses for completed hydropower and wind
POVET PR TECTS

Dher acerued expenss

31/1272024
VND

35,406,703,.006

0664512412
8.613,272,211

5,606,135,719
607,756,400

3,086,726,454

17172024
VD

63.043,534,451

14,333.821.819
1,295,500 848

25,243, (09,226
F1,045.051,431

03,386,367 366
7,520,763,737

B3,045 126,502

216,868,137 878

54
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(a)

(h)

PCT Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
Tesued wnder Cirewlar Na, 202201 4°707T-87¢
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Other payables

Other pavables - short-term

Short-term deposits and collaterals received
Payables 1o construction teams and project
management boards

Dividends and profits payable

Interest expenses pavable

Remuneration of the Board of Management™s member

Trade union fees

Payables for real estate project maintenance
Social insurance, health insumnee, unemployment
IMELUTENCE

Deferred payments related to letter of eredit
(UPAS LC)

Other payables and liabilities

Other pavables — Jong-term

Long-term deposits and collaterals recerved

J1/12/2024
VND

56.3317,343,594

19,415 K79 856
15,884 868,033
6,246,575,342
3,826,000,000
2,152.993,283
745,439,097

b6, 665 366

5,009 004,974

L2024
VYND

2918,719.672

22,291 5802564
37.040,430,492
230,136,980
2,6 L0 D00, 000
2,127,530,317
1.972_1 65,960

1,273,002,537

15529179387
15,380,941.070

1 0R, 774,770,645

102,223.715,675

I 2024
VND

12,033,085, 858

17172024
Y

10,845.03],988
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
Form B 09 — DMN/HN
(Ieened wnder Clrendar No. 2022004 TT-RTC
dated 22 Decoember 2004 of the Ministry of Finmee)

Borrowings, bonds and finance lease liabilities

Shori-term borrowings and current portion of long-term bonds and linance lease liabilities

112024 Movement during the year 31/12/2024
Carrylng amount Decrease due (o Carrying amount
and amount within dispusal of a Unrealised and amount within
repavment capacily Addition hec rease subsidiary (Note 4) exchange differences repavment capacity
VND VND VND VND VND YND
Short-term borowings 2092378704 844 6,595,491 481 483 (6,573,879.025,643) (10,472.403,176) = 103,518 847,508
Current portion of
long-term borrowings T44,512,949.711 844 (49332193 (746,226 316,557 . 4,429, 158,801 B46,765,124,148
Finance lease
principals due |.586,588 808 15,148,630 i1,454,373.074) {947.364,584) z -

2B38478,333,363 7440355962326 (V,321,559,715.274) (11,419,767,560) 4429158801  2,950,283.971,650
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M1 L roup Joint Stock Company
Notes to the consvlidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
{continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
{Fsnneeel wder Ciroular No, 2022004 TT-8TC
deted 22 Decenber 2014 af the Ministry of Finance)

Terms and conditions of cutstanding shori-team borrowings were as Tollows:

Currency SUA2/Z024 3 Fdies]
VNI VND
Wictnam Jomt Stock Commercial Bank for VIND
Industry and Trade 757606557645 174,440,817 954
Yietnam International Commercial VYND
Joint Stock Bank 141 644138 655 128,088 248,251
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investmsend VR
and Development of Yietnam 252.648,011,672 228.BB3 385,427
Shinhen Bank Viemam Limited VD 196,861,263, 264 4,853,534.209
Joint Stock Commenrcial Bank for Foreign VIND
Trade of Vietnam 191,.093,418913 215, T2 A07.518
BNP Paribas Bank — Hanoi Branch VND 171.609,360,756 283,545.093,202
HSBC Bank (Vietnam ) Lud. VND QR A15,102212 2277758 337,190
Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank VND 90,023,511,038 2,258.907.851
United Owverseas Bank {Vicinam') Limied VMDD 2,797,252, 789 =
Victnnm Technological and Commercial VD
Joint Stock Bank 20,230,564 -
Hank of China (Hong Kong) Limited — VN
Ho Chi Minh City Branch - 115,608.041.5397
Woor Baik Vietnam Limited - WND
Hoan Kiem Branch . 53591299 638
Cther individuals VND g 56.657.524.007

103,518,847 508 2.000.378.7694.844

The short-term borrowings have the emms from & months to less than 12 months and ae wnseciured,

(b}  Long-term borrowings, bonds and financial lease liahilities

MAx0z4 1712004
VNI VND
Lang-term borrowings (i) TAEE 7224001619 T 4601 804 212,519
Straight bonds (i) LIRE 673 118,092 | 183 899 763,518
Finamce lease linbilities - ZA01,TATASE

B677.305519.711  8.648,105.713,405
Repayable within twelve months (Note 2%a)) (B46.763.124.148)  (T46,099,538,519)

Repayable alier twelve months 7830630395563 7,902,006, 74,976




PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
Form B 09 = DINHN
{fexued uwaer Circkdar No. 2022004 TT-811
daied 22 Decermber 2004 of the Ministry of Findanoe)

Lang-term barrowings
Terms and conditions of outstanding long-term borrowings were as follows:
—— Annual Year of 3151272024 1172024
interest rate  maturity Collaterals VD YD

Asian Development Bank - B Lo USD  Sofr 3-month -+ 2036 All assets of Lien Lap, Phang Huy,

margin Phong Nguyen Wind Power Prajects |.660,238.919.837 1,790,290, 700,012
Viemam Joint Stock Commercial WD {*1 2032 All assets of Nickel-Copper Ore Extriction
Bank for Indestey and Trade Plant Project ELE.905 248 588 Q83,905 248,588
Asian Development Bank — UsSD  5.50103%-5351 1% 2036 All assers of Lien Lap, Phong Huy,
A Loan Phong Mguyen Witd Power Projects TIT38T 217208 TI35E2.451,955
Fxport Finance Australia Lsh 4.65% - 5.02% HI36 All sssets of Lien Lap, Phong Hiy,

Phong Nauyen Wind Power Prajects 635,8046,867.534 T07.275,548.923
Vieinam Jodet Stock Comimercial VMDD ("} 20 Al capital contributioas of PC1 in Asia
Bank for Industry and Trade Myagon Trading Pre.Lid and Japan — Hai Phong
Indusirial Zone Development Corperution 541,000 000 D0}

Jupan International Cooperation UsD Sofr G-month + 136 All essets of Lien Lap, Phoag Huy,
Agenoy margzin Phong Nguyen Wind Power Projects 512423678757 552 558 844932
Vietnam Joint Stock ©ommercal VMO [} 32 Al aszets of Mong An Hydropower Project
Bank for Indusiry and Trade 372 585079 414 36, | 00000 _0030
Vietnam Joint Steck Commercial VD g N2 Al sssets of Thap Vang Phu Thi Project
Hank for Industry and Trade 350,054,116,104 -
Viemam fobnt Stock Commercial VD () I3 Al assets of Bao Lam | Hydropower Project
Bank For induslrrl.r andd Trade AR08 555,700 6, 968305 700
Vietnam Joini Sock Commercinl VND {*3 2032 Al as=zats of Bao Lac B Hydropower Project
Bank for Indusiry and Treads 274,986, 568,179 305,034.568.179
Joint Sroek Commerciil Bank for YND (3 2030 Al aszets of Bao Lam 3 Hydropower Project
Foreipge Trade of Wicinam 262,705,858, 607 10, 704,898, 617
Hank For investment and VND (*¥) 20 Al aszets of Trung Thu Hydropower Project
B.;-ue[ﬂpmen[ of Viemam EM.MU.MH.UW Eﬁ?.}limﬂll}ﬂﬂ
Vietnam Joint Steck Comimercial VMDD (*3 2030 AF assets of Bao Bam 34 Hydropower
Bank for Industry-and Trade Project 145,862.523,972 152.2121,523 971
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Bandk for [nvestment and
Development of Vietnam

Bank for [nvesiment and
Development of Vietnam
Viemam Techdalogical and
Commercial Joint Stock Bank
Bank for lnvestment and
Development of Vietnam
Vieinam Joint Stock Commercial
Bank for Industry and Trade
Bank for Investment and
Development of Vietsam
Shinhan Bank Vietmam Limited
Bank for Investment and
Devalopment of Viemam
Crther individuals

Amount repavable within 12 monins

Amaount repavable after 17 months

WD
WD
VD
VKD
VND
VND

YO
YL

WD

Annunl

Curveney oo vust vt

(")
(*)
0.0%
"}
*)
")

7.5%
4.2%

4.1% - 6.0%%

Yearof
miaburily

2035
203%
2024
039
TO2E
28

026
el |

2027

Caollaterats
All assets of Song Mhiem 4 Hydropower
Project
All assets of Bao Lac A Hydropower Project
Uinsecured
Allsssers of Thuong Ha Hydrapower Project
All zssets of Thai Nguyen Galvanizing Pland
Project
BlO-ton crans ZCCORODW

Ford Everest car
Linsecurad

LInsecurad

22024
WL
1 32040 108, (R0
128,515,687, 186
16, 929.000.7113

62,355,142 561

Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Fexueed wmeder Clvewlar No, 2022004 TT-RTTC
duieed 22 December 2004 of the Ministry of Findaece)

1112024
VKD

148,000k, CHICR X0

364929 000,713

48.965 207,755 54,573, 185,348
40,500,0040,004 55,9000, 000,000

. 436085590

. 1D, 00D N0

| 001,000, 500, 004 12000100 000,000
TABE 722401619  TA461.804212.51%

(846.765.124.148)

(T44.512.949.711)

66 | BT 2TT 4TI

6, 717291 262 R0E

Long-term bomrowings from banks were secured by tangible fixed assets with net book value of VINDE,750 billiond L/1/2024: restated — YNDI2,233 billion) (Noe
16, amd construction m progress with carmying value of YNDEOT billion (Note 14).
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the consvlidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(continwed)
Form B (4 - DNHN
{Taswed wnder Civcular No, 202°2004TT-8TC
dated 22 December 2014 af the Ministry of Finance)

The borrowing interest rate within the first 12 months from the date of the first disbursement is fixed.
Inihe following years, annual mterest rate would be determined as the | Z-month VND savings deposit
inierest rate plus 3 margin.

These loans had preferential interest rates from capital support of the World Bank's renewable energy
development program (REDP).

Straight bonds
Currency Year of 31NL2024 11172024
maturity YD VND

Bonds issued at par

Lot | VND W27 300,000,000,000 300,0040,000,000
Lot 2 VND 027 Q00,000,000 000) O, 0K, D00, 0400

1, 200,000,000_000 12000, (MY, TN, (M}

Bond issuance costs (11.326,881,908) (16,100,236,482)
Bonds maturing afier | 2 months |, 188,673,118.092  1,183.899,763,518

These bonds had an annual interest rate determined as the 12-month VND savings deposit interest rate
phes a margin,

Asat 31 Decernber 2024 and | January 2024, the above bonds are secured by some ordinary shares of
Company held by some related individuals and all of the ordinary shares of 2 subsidiaries which are
Trung Tho Hydropower Ioint Stock Company and Northern Energy Investment Joint Stock Company
held by the Group (Note 1{d)).

The purpose of issuing long-tesm bonds is to lnvest in industrial park real estate development through
the purchase of existing and newky issued shases of Westem Pacilic Joint Steck Company including
these previously acquired using the Company s owners” equity source of fund: and the supplement
the Compuny s wirking crpital

i



PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 = INTHN
{ Insmredd wncfer Civewlor Mo, 20220041181
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Provisions

Movement of provisions during the vear were as [ollows:

Environmental
Provision for Provision for rehabilitation and
product warranty  construction warranty restorafion for mine  Severance allowance Tatal
VYND YD WND VN VD
Opening balance 39055642790 3,118,063,697 - 1.364,579,661 43 538286, 1448
Provision / reversal ) made during the
year 17,504,492, 5% (1,112.452,160) 2096432, 120 - 19.328472,556
Utilisation (5,593,496, 367) (79,1 56,000 - {107,960, 5640) (3. 781,012,927}
Closing balance SL.966.239.019 1.926.455.537 2936432120 1 250,619, 101 ST.085. 745,77
I whicl,
Current 11.957,159,622 - - . | 1.957,159,622
MNon-currenl 19009 079,397 1.926,455.537 21936432, 120 |, 256,619,101 45 128 586,155
0966230019 1,06, 455,537 2936432 124 |, 256619 101 ST.085. 745777

Gl
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
{continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
{ixsreeel wnder Cirewlor No, 2022014/ TT-8TC
ot 22 Devember 2004 of the Miniviry af Finanee

Bonus and welfare funds

This find is established by sppropriating from retained profits as approved by shareholders at the
Ciencral Sharcholders” Mecting, This Tund is vsed to pay bonus and welfare o the Group employees
in accordance with the Group bonus and welfare policies. Movements of bonus and welfare fund
during the wvear were as foilows;

24 203

VD VMDD
{pening balance LB4.692, 725,750 [47.348,887.255
Appropriation (Note 32) 15 380,644, 102 71.395.955,734
Utih=ation (36,412,926,352) (34,052,117,239)
Closing balanece I 6A 660 443 500 [84 602 725 750




32.

PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Changes in owners' equity

Balance ot 117123
Capital cordribution m
subsidisries by retined
praliks e cquiby jumsds
Capmial comtrilwdion m
stihsidaaries

Share dividends {3

Mt proli o e year
Apprapoiion i B

ind weitare furids
ApppHELON 10 fverimment
and develeporent fud
Mk de deckired

b e

Morement dug s changi: m
nwners" ety of ssdcianes
[Fartial divesiment nx
enilsidlary wiiknoe bsing

Buord of Monigemenl's
e e

Enlamee mr 17172024
ims previously reporied)

Share caplead
VD

2L ER00 G0l

A0S ATS SH 00

ERAEGR RS R

Share preminm
VI

THL 136556780

T30 550, 76

{irher capdral
Y0
200 SO0

24,031 g Al

(53T ETALES)

&0, BE7 0TI 842

TEMerenqes

I aEsed

revaliatkim
WD

TiE 285511

TORZEF 500

Faredzn exchanpe
tlilferenes
WD

116,508 42%)

A21.BTH,TH3

105, 1 358

Form B 09 - DN/HN

{fssned vmder Civenlor No, 202720714/ FF-RTT]

dated 22 December 2004 of the Minisiry of Finares)

levesdineil amil
develapment {hher equity Mon-giuntralling
Tanil Tumils Helnined profits Inersst Latal
Vi YD L L1 YD
JRL0TZ, 2,951 ASATIE0IRE 1 3 SITEES DR D0EEATR 2T 190 2072 THe RS 371
[LETR60T, 16R) (I R2T 260 (2157, TER 35 x &
- - - 1217643, 532 L2135, 645 852
- - 4415 6325 Sal), DO - .
- - 1 FaT1 335, 571 | 6300 H5E 9L B2 012 G ]
- . ITOTT L2680 83T (1l A3 3T 7 DS NS T
M. 510 658001 - 134 53685000 ) = ]
- - - [ 1G] B ES.DEE.TUS [
- - [ E ATy . (1, L8R BLH282)
- - TG kel T 26314 3K5, 1KS IR AT I AGE
- . - 220,878,783
- - L2 RO (M) - 1 B 0 DM
THLTEF NS EIL BRE A0 FRF 20 A56, ™8R2 ] £30 2,080,717, 1154 T2 BT S0 R




PCI Group Joint Stock Com pany
Naotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Form B 0% = DN/HN
{vxned pncler Clircular No, 202200470T-8T0C
dated 22 Decporber 2004 of the Ministry: of Finanoo)

Ihifferenres lwvesiment ynd
wponasscl  Ferelgn exchange  development Uhitser eqquity Man-comtrolling
Skeire capitnl Share premium  (Wher cagital  revalsatien diMerenees fansd funds Retaiusd prodies imferest Tetul
vl [T NN VAD VNI VND VNI VNI ¥ VNI
Bllnltf“ a1 1I7E024 - 1I090SS.SEI0M  T11 136556878 46847073447  TeSISS 11 (LITTRELTIE) 291725059804  ASADG SN0 KSEOOISREUIR 2069119300268 747 B LI035
il
;“"‘"_mu'\ﬁ m B3 NOTIIAMN I I30SIEFNG  AMATOTE4l NN DNS.S1) S IE935 NITISIMEIE  BRNASILIZ0 PIATREILEN  LOSETIZIILIS  TITUART.EIN44
Benumemenr (o o8 i IR - EERY TRk [ I AT RN ANT) {22 TN SN £
iapitd comnibubios m
subnadismin by rediiend
proirls amd Sy ands = S0 o1 - - 5, [HAk IMHE T - = -
apital comtribubi= in
subnadianes - - - - - S48 2R MY 44 2HE D, THG
Share drvideods il A A1, B30, D00 - - - {488, A0 B0, 0 - -
St profin far the year : - - . dET SEE EMLUEES 242 393 503, 244 VOO 5 33 T30
Appropatim o b
v vieifin fuds - - (7156510200 bt RN REREIL TS BN el
Anpropriata o invedment
e devilopumeni funil - . E O AP AR (LB I3 D4R DAT) - S
Dividends deciansd m
wilsidiaries - - - - [ IR0 E31, SRLT8T [ESU S5 300 36T
Slovemamt due W thang e
In mamers’ ity df
B IRIEs £ - - - - - (1560, 305 [12R.561 315
Faitial divesment ina
sabsidiary withou keing =
ol - {1 PHHILT 090 (T - - = LE LA A 15,550, 734,007 15,00, D 11
Cumenizy rns! bk
dilMempess . - (1,805 533417 - [ L
Birand o Mban ggeineni 3
TC ML N TR - - i, DT )0 DO - [ERLIRT R
ks il o subvad iary ;
Mo 43 = - . = - - {4 E5E B RE R (4551 338, 366)
Licher movemen = e . . TS AL 5A] 773,691, 10 | 6FE 105,277 L1305 S 1
Ealames of 310272034 ISTEATIZEG O FUIASSE TR S0 A47 073,441 TR RES SEN [LIEES170450  TOESTI007 310 08 45553 120 H2 54 445227 2130 T53. THE -3 T 6019 292, 50

In Quarter 4 of 2024, the Compeny distributed dividends in the form of shares amaounting 1o VND166,455,620,000 from profit after tax for the year 2003, equivalent o 15% of par valus
{2023; dividends in the form of sheres amountng o VRNI08,625,560,000 from profit after tax for the year 2002, equivalent to 15% of par value).
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fcomtinmed)
Form B (9 - DN/HN
{Tesnes wnder Circulgr No, 2022001 4TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2004 of the Ministry of Finanee)

Share capital

S1A1272024 Li2oz4
Namber of Number of
shares YIND shares YD

Authorised share capital F3T.042,121 3. 576421210,000  3[00995.558 3, 109955580, 000
Issued share capital

Crrdimary shares A5T642,121 3576421210000 310995558 31,109,955 580, 000
Hhares in circulation

Crredimeary shares 357642121 3ATGAZLZI0000 310995558 3,109,955.580,000

All ordinary shares have a par value of VND10,000. Each share is entitled to one vote at meetings of
the Company. Sharcholders gre entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. All ordimary
shares are ranked equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. In respect of shares hought
back by the Company, all rights are suspended until those shares are reissued.
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PC1 Group Joint Steck Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)

(T balance sheet items

Lease

Within one vear
Within twao 1o five years
hiore than five vears

Forcign currencies

Form B 04 - DNJIIN
(Fsxied undler Clrewlar No, 2022014 TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2004 of the Minisiry of Finmice)

31/12/2024
YIND

10,185,240,588
I8, 716,445,630
20,523,480 920

17172024
YN

B,103,354,214
21,353,478.791
21, 380,860,579

49,725.176,144

S50.E37.693,584

311202024 112024
Original VML Original VNI
CurTEnCy equivalent Currcncy equivalent
LAK GHEAEN 528,961 602,363 409,607
ALID 207,918 3292374996 236,216 3,596,971.349
UsD 29,175 4635 730,092,180,528 26,991 418 648611 902,269
Bad debts written off
Keason for Written SL22024 L172024
writing off ol in year YD VND
Phian Maoc Tien
{Construction Team No. 17 Unrecoverable 2024 418,555,690 -
DHT Vietnun Investmeni
and Development JSC Unrecoverable 2021 1,396, 500,000 1L.306,500,000
Phu Giang Servicas Co., [Inrecoverahle
Lad. 2021 216,700,000 216,700,000
AL Ajikawe Corporstion U'nrecoverable 25 (2,373, 726,137 12.373,726,127
(hhers Unrecoverable 20007 1,285,920,000) 1,285,920.000

| 5,601,401,827

15,272, 846,137
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PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Motes to the consolidated Mnancial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024
{eontinuwed)
Form B iH - DRNHMN
{lesned wnder Clrcular No, 202200 4/7T-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services

Total revenue represents the gross value of goods sold and services rendered exclusive of value added

[ Fi L

Met revenue comprised:

Revenue from construction, supply of elecineal
cquipment and consdruetion of imdusinal park
infrastruscture

Revenue from sale of mineral concentrotes
Fevenue fom electricity sold

Revenue from industrial production

Kevenue from merchandises and materials sold
Revenue from exploilstion, operation of
industnal zone

Revenue from transfer of real estate

Revenue from leasing investment properties
Others

Cost of sales

Cost of construction, supply of electrical equipmeont
and construction of industrial park mfrastructure
Cost of sale of mineral concentrales

Cost of electricity sold

Cost of industrial production

Cost of merchandises and materials sold

Cost ol exploitatsm, operation of industrial zone
Cost of trensfer of real estaie

Cost of leasing investment propertiss

Others

Eeversal of allyowance for inveniories

2024
VND

3.686,739.333.726

2013
YND
Restated

1607 422,011,497

1,710 E73, 778, 5090 623 898,233,055
1,706,289,302.547 | 460,798 810292
1,457.375.933.958  1,166.132.058,047
£37,422,249.307 994,824,547,901
504,334,045,300 £14.102,201,835
23 597 687,931 160,297 723,757
15,627,504, 166 26,903, 425,827
31.640,791 986 30 402,050,449
[00ER.901,620,619 7,693,781 05d.664
4 2023
YND YND
Restated
3428 335.589 800 2372274698716
[ 146, 153,000,488 516,565,167,657
160,402 020,035 24,542 698,502
1,313,703277.041 | 048,752 8560, K13
B3 1,146,744, 5041 076,253,338, 260
450,520,308,384 473 527,762,175
14,940,529 320 S0 433, 1 TR 443
3.421,989,423 8,699,333 901
48,434,426,129 31,282.682,219
(573.986.292) (7.716,745.172)
7.996,507.019.628  6,245.614,973,514

67



37.

8.

39.

PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024
{continued)
Form B (9 - DINIMN
{lesued vmder Cirowlar Noo 20020004 TT-R10
aaled 22 December 2004 of the Minlsiry of Finance)

Financial income

Interest income from deposits and loans

2024
YIND

03,283,321,155

2023
VND

124,286,757,899

Realised foreign exchange gains 35,186, 780,749 14,026,085,555
Imterest from credit sales and early payment digeounts
receivad 1,247,504.132 3107431620
Unrealised foreign exchange aains £,367,973 858 4.081.031,891
[nterest income from interest rate swaps - 37,054,307 890
Ciler financial income 475 118398333
138,085,670,369 182,694,013, 188

Financial expenses

2024 20523

VD VND
Interest cxpense 696,433,403 .263 B43.04 1,541,921
Bond issuance costs 4,773.354.574 4 734,013,741
Realised foreign exchange losses 15,551,283.929 3856016 464
Unrealised foreign exchange losses 143,861,601 456 01,936.01 1.969
Allowance for diminution in the value of long-term
investments 103 987.091 220,390,614
Foreign contractor tax on inlerest expenses 12.987.042.151 22.578.035.297
Loss from disposals of a subsidiary (Nowe 4) 48,943 478 .
Other financial expenses S18,491.650 364,841 845

481,568,197 542

967.330,851.856

Selling expenses

2024 2023

VNI VNI
Rirw malerial costs G4 86 2156 40,760 833
Sinfi costs &, 0449, 346 563 4. 112,300,895
Deprecistion and amorisation 8027308 =
Cutside sarvices 83004224 278 29,996,039 972
Other expenses in cash 1, 856,802,473 4,954,074,566
Provision for product warmanty 17,504,492 596 | 68T 7,548,806

T8,532,757.5314

55,980,734,072

b
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FC1 Group Joint Stock Company
Notes to the consalidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
¢ lesned wmder Ciroular No, 20220046 TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2084 of the Mindiry of Finence)

General and administration expenses

Raw material cosis

S1uiT costs

Depreciation and amorlisation
Allowance and provigion
Tax. fee and charge

Chatside services

Crther expenses

Other income

Compensation received from other entities
Ciain from disposal of fixed assets

Reversal ot provision for construction warranty
Ckher income

Other expenses

Amortisation of mining rights

Amortisation of land vse rights over the lnd area

at 120 Dinh Cong
Oihers

2024
YND

6.308,412.475
231,416,878 491
56,677,326,560
82.471,887.070
7.478.769,712
75,765,541,236
25,586,724,494

223
VIND

9,023,242, 874
178,720,392,234
56,473,218,386
5,3480,165,276
4.860,721,118
51,686.039.621
29.065,1 74,568

487,725,540,156  335,208,954,077
2024 2023
VND VND

1,641, 799,407 197,179,893

4,057,837 881
3,118,063,697

1,492 833,632
5,382,018.313

10,467.845,413 3,513.618,906

14.183.546,39% |0, 795 650, 746
2024 2023
VND ¥YND

- 1,366,701, 126

- 4,050,983,743

R.723300716 13,315.206,746

B.723.300.716 2B.732 891,615
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Production and business costs by element

2024 2023
VND VND
Restated
Raw material costs 2435290264669  1,653.911.421,551
SialT cosis 47T AT 235 400,639.91 1,030
Depreciation and amortisation BT7.613,082201 771,515, 106,980
Addition of provisions 60 445 943 446 5618981 204
Cutside services 4.153,B08,230,000  2,627.020 345 660
Other expenses ITTARL 336953 176, 304,617.375
B.300.692,628 404 5638,0919.283 800
Income tax
Recognised in the consolidated statement of income
2024 2023
VHND VHND
Restated
Income tax expense — current
Current vear 123,455,036,456 65,984, 177991
Under provision in prior years I A15,782,104 2,876,801 6%4

Income tax expense/{henefit) — deferred
Reversal of tempornry differences

124, 870,818,560

4.164.418,523

T8. 560,979,685

{4.511,197,107)

129.035,237,083

1,549, 782578
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Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2024 2023
YIND VYND
Restated

Accounting prolit belore tax 839.010,630.813 233,979, 104,673
Tax at the Compainy’s 1ax rate 167,802,126,163 51,195.940935
Temporary difference on borrowings interest expenses
undher Degree 1322020MWD-CP 14,857 489, Tod -
Unrecognised deferred tax assets on tax losses 6.601,282,521 21,093,302.840
Mon-deductible expenses 10,624,076,833 2478022, 148

Lifect of consolidation entries without originating o

temporary differences (1,958, 774.269) O.101,923,719
Tax incentives (31.001,273,622) {49,376,381,072)
Changes in unrecognised temporary differences 1.783.721.B52 27265 250 748
Under provision in prior yers 1.415,782.104 12.876.801.604
Effect of other tax rates in subsidiaries {26,174.888,579) {520,390, 729)
Tax losses wtilised during the vear (14927 671,291) =
Clthers (16,634,303) 231,503,278
120005 23T 083 74349, 782 578

Applicable tax rates

Under the terms of the current Income Tax Law, except for the following tax incentives, the Company
end its subsidiaries in Vietmam have an obligation to pay the government income tax at the rate of 209
of taxahle profis.

For Bao Lam | Hydropower Project, the Compuny s subject to income tax at the mte of 10% for 15
years (2017 - 2031) and the standard rate for the succeeding years. The curmen! tax regulations allow
the Company 1o be exemp! from income tax for 4 vears starting from the first year Bao [am |
Hydropower Project generates a taxable profit (2017 - 2020) and entitled to a 50% reduction in income
tax for the 9 succeeding vears (2021 - 2029),

For Beo Lam 3 Hydropower Project and Bao Lam 3A Hydropower Project, the Company s subject Lo
income tax at the rate of 10% for 15 years (2017 - 203 1) and the standard rate for the suceeoding years,
The current tax regulations allow the Company to be exempt from income tx for 4 years starting from
the first yesr Bao Lam 3 Hydropower Project and Bao Lam 3A Hydropower Project generate a taxable
profit (2018 - 2021 ) and entitled to0 8 30% reduction in income tax for the 9 succeeding vears (2022 -
2030).

For Bao Lac B Hydropower Project and Song Nhiem 4 Hydropower Project, the Company is subject
o income tax at the rate of 10% for 15 vears (2020 - 2034) and the standard rate for the succeeding
years. The current tax regulistions allow the Company to be exempt from income tax for 4 vears starting
from the first year Bao Lac B Hydropower Project and Song Whiem 4 Hydropower Project penerate a
tmxcable prafit (2021 - 2024) and entitled 1o a 50% reduction in income tax for the © succeeding yvears
(2025 - 2033).

11
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For Trung Thu Hydropower Project, Trung Thu Hydropower JSC, a subsidiary of the Company, is
subject W income tax a1 the rate of 10% for 15 years (2017 - 2031) and the standard rate for the
succeeding vears, The currenl [ax regulations allow the Company to be exempt from income tax for 4
years starting from the first year Trung Thu Hydropower Project generates a taxable profit (2017 -
2020) and entitled to o 50 reduction in income tax for the 9 succeeding years (2021 - 20297,

For Mong An Hydropower Project, Northern Power Investment J3C, a subsidiary of the Company, is
subject to income tax at the rate of 10% for 15 vears (2020 - 2034) and the standard mate for the
succeeding venrs. The eurrent tax regulations allow the Company 1o be exempl from income tax for 4
yenrs starting from the first year Mong An Hydmopower Project generates a taxable profic (2020 - 2023)
and entitled toa 50% reduction in income tax for the 9 succeeding years (2024 - 2032),

For Lien Lap, Phong Nguyen, Phong Huy Wind Power Projects, Lien Lap Wind Power JSC, Phong
Mpuyen Wind Power J5C, Phong Huy Wind Power J5C, subsidiaries of the Company, are subject 1o
income tax al the mie of 10% of taxable profits for the first 15 vears starting from the first year of
operation and standard rate for succeeding years. The current tax regulations allow these subsidiaries
1o be exempi from income tax for 4 vears starting from the first yvear the Wind Power Projects generate
a taxable profit (2022 - 2025) and entitled to a 30% reduction in incame tax for the 9 succeeding yvears
{2026 - 2034).

For the Japan — Haiphong Indusirial Zone Project, Japan — Haiphong Industrial Zone Development
Corporation, a subsidigry of the Company, is subject 1o income tax a1 the mte of 100 of taxable profits
from invesiment, construction and business activities of infrastructure and utilities and provision of
services necessary for the operation of the industrial zene.

For the Projeet of Thai Nguyen Galvanized Steel Tower 15C, a tier-2 subsidiary of the Company, is
subject to income tax at the rate of 17% of taxable profits for the 10 years starting from (he first year
it generates revenue from the investment project. The current tax regulations allow these subsidiaries
to be excmpt [rom income tx for 2 years starling from the first year Thai Nguven Galvanized Steel
Tower 15C generate a taxable incomse (2021 - 2022y and entitled to a 50% reduction in income tax for
the 4 suceeeding vears (2023 - 2026),

T2
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Basic earnings per share
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The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2024 was hased on the
profit. atiributable to ordinary shareholders after deducting the amounts appropriated to Bonus snd
welfare funds estimated for the annual accounting period and a weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding, details as follows:

Basic earnings per share

et profit for the vear (VND)
Estimated appropriation o Bodus and
wellare funds (WNID) [*)

Net profit attributable (o ordinary
sharcholders (VD)

Weighted avernpe number of ordinamy
shares for the year (momnber of shares)

Baswe earnings per share (VNI share)

As at 31 December 2024, the Company temporarily estimated the profit for the veor ended 31
December 2024 to be appropriated to Bonus and welfare funds as 10% of net profit of the yvear 2024,

2024 2023
Restated
4675828904586 36,167,086 850

(46, 758,289,049y (17,125,651,021)

2023
As proviously

reported
39972 323 571

(13.997,232.357)

4200824607 43T 19.041,435 829

125.975,001,214

357,642,121 3157.642,12]

310,995,558

1177 33

dils

™
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Restatement of busic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2023
et profit utiributable to ordinary sharehalders

Daring the year, the Company and its subsidiaries appropriated WND17, 125,651,021 from peofit after
tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company for 2023 to Bonus and Welfare Funds.
Therefore, net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company for the vear ended 31

December 2023 for the caleulation of basic eamings per share was changed.

In sddition, the Group made adjustments related 10 value-added lax, royalties tax, and revenue off
certain subsidiaries (Note 48), which resubted in changes to the net profit atiributable to ordinary
sharcholders of the Company for the vear ended 31 December 2023

Weighted average number of erdinary shares

In the 4" Quarter of 2024, the Company distributed dividends to shareholders in the form of shares ar

a rate of 13% of charter capital from retained profit afier tax as of 31 December 2023, equivalent 10
VIND466,465,630,000.

034 2023
Restated
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year 310,995 558 110,995 558
Effect of ordinary shares issued for payment of share
dividends in current vear 46,644,563 A6 646,563
Weighied average number of ordinary shares for the 157.642.121 197 647 121

year ended 31 December

A comparison of basis earming per share previoushy reported and as restated is as follows:

23
As previouzly
reported Hestatement Hestated
Baswe enrmings per share { VN sharc) 405 (352) a3

74
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Significant transactions with related parties

It addition to relatsd balances diselosed in other notes o the consohdated fingncial statements, the
Crrongp hnd the following significant tmnsactions with related parties during the yvear:

Transaction value

2024 1023

VND ¥ND
Assncintes
Wesiern Pacific foint Stock Company
Purchase of shanes O, 243,900, 00
Profit distribution eamed 33,029, 2680600 =
Phu Bink Warehouse Joint Stock Company
Borrowings 22, GO G, (00 -
Borrowing repayment 22 (00,000,600
[nterest expense 113,301,370 -
Parties whose key management personnel are close
family members of the key management personnel of the
Company
Dai Damg Mechanical and Efectrical Joint Stock Company
Fevenue from constrisclion services 39 400,548,900 -
Purchase of goods 79,166,213 680 .
Mink Fung M&EC Joini Stock Company (formerly krovn
s “Dink Tait Construction fnvestmeni Joint Stock
Caotnaperity "}
Revenue from construction services 11,173,944, 455 -
Purchase of poods 25332 449,710 -

Board of Managemeni’s remuncration and bonus

Mr. Trinh Van Tuan 3.975.000,000 1,8 L (bW 00D
Mr. Vu Anh Duong SeH0, L0k, L0 27 ENH, (M
Mr. Vo Hong Cuang 540,000,000 2L TN, (MO0
Mr, Mguyen Minh De 540,060, R0 270, 00k, D00
Mr. Phan Ngoe Hiew (feom 26/4/2024) A60, 000,000 s
Mr. Mai Luong Viet fwerd! 122024) A5 KH1HI0 20 Ok, CHOH
Board of General Divectors® salaries, bonuses and other benefiis

Mr. Vu Anh Duonp 1306, 734,106 1,125.749.371
Mr. Vo Hong Quang 1,244 577 606 ETI. 136,214
Mr. Nguven Minh De ki, CHBCH, LR 200G, ORI A
Mr. Dang Quoe Tuong W1E, 75 40 004,540,341
Mr, Nguyen Nhat Tan B51.733,190 BTE.279.634
Mr. Trinh Npoc Anh {from 57/ 2024) 313,074,696 -
Mr. Trinh Quang Thanh (from £ 1002024 1Z5, T30 89T

Supervisory Bourd's remuneration

M=, Wguven Thi Hai Ha T2000,000 72,000,000
Mr. Hoang ¥an Cuong 24,000,000 24 000,000
hr. Hoang Van Sang 24,000,000 24 000000

13
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Non-cash investing and financing activities

2024 2023

VND YND
Share dividends 466, 465,630,000 405,625,560.000
Capitalisation of depreciation expenses into construction
in progress - 1.953,140.857

Comparative information

Dwring the preparation the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Board of General Directors have identified that the last consalidated financinl statements need to

be sdjusted for tax calculation and accounting tresmment of revenue at the two subsidiaries as presented
below,

Adjustment on value added tax of Tan Phat Minerals Joint Stock Company (“Tan Phat
Company™)

According to Circular 252018 TT-BTC dated 16 March 2018 amending end supplementing Clause
23, Article 4, Circular 2192023/ TT-BTC dated 31 December 2013, cases where exported products
which are directly processed from main raw materials being natural respurces and minerals are ot
subject to Value Added Tax (“VAT")if the total value of these resources and minerals plus engrgy
cost gocounts for 31% or more of the cost of the finished products.

Tan Phat Company commenced its operations from mid-2023. During the prepatation of 2023
financial statements. Tan Phat Company calculated and determined that the ratio of natural resources,
mineral costs plus energy cost o the cost of exported products (“the R&E ralin™) was less than 519%,
therefore, il recognised input VAT in the Deductible value added tax pecount, amounting lo
WND128.4 18 million as at 31 December 20023

However, during the preparation of the 2024 consolidated financial statements, the Group reassessed
and determined that the R&E ratio of their exported products in 2023 cxcecded 51%. As such, the

Group has resteted the comparative figures in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2024 as [ollows:

Consolidated balance sheet as at 1 January 2024:

= Inventory increased by VMNII0,255 million;

= Deductible volue-added tax decreased by WIIN 148,418 millon:

®* Cost ol tangible fixed assets increaged by VNDI2E 446 million;

*  Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets increased by VNDS.137 million:
= Taxes and others payable io the State Treasury decreased by VND3 571 million:

= Profil for the current vear decreased by VHDS, 180 million; dnd

= Non-controlling interest decreased by VDS, |03 million.

THh
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Consolidated statement of income fur the yeur ended 31 December 2023:

® Cost of goods sold increased by WNDI7.854 million:

* Current income fax expenses decraased by VND3,57 | million:

= Profitafier tax attributable to ordinary sharcholders decreased by VDS, 180 million: and

*  Profil after tax of non-controlling sharcholders decreased by VIND. 103 million,
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2023;

*  Profit before tax decreased by VND17.854 million:

*  Depreciation and amontisation increased by VNDSB, 137 million:
* Changes in receivables inereased by VND37,867 million;

= Changes in inventory decreased by VNDI0.255 million: anid

*  Payments for additions to fixed nssets and other long-term assets inereased by VND| 7,695
millicn.

Adjustment on royalty taxes of Tan Phat Company

the cusiomns vahwe of produces hat have been produced or processed far expors ar the e Hling price uf
pruducts that have been proguced or processed minus export tax (5 amy and related expenses from

thie prosduction slagre processing fo expeorl ar from production and JROCRSEing t sale e e domiesiic
imcirket,

Based on the determined rovaity elvulation peice, the faxable aulpw shall be appited ro the
carrespanding sitral resowrce snit. A amy stage where the taxable price for extracted nateral
rescirces is deternined, the onput for ealelation af royalttes fax shall be applied at that Siarge,

However, Circular 15202015/ TT-BTC dated 2 October 2015 guiding royalty tax ("Circular 1527
stipulates that: “For extectod matural resources e pised for further manufacturing el processime
then soldy domestic or expart) wnsiend of being sold directly, taxable ifhiitity is the extricied guansin
af wetiral resowrces deternrined b 'V CORverting e ouput of products for sales produced in the peviod
sccarding o procuciion rarm of matired resewrces per wnit of product” And for the extracted natural
resources which must be manu fectured/processed before being sold out, the taxablke price is “cwefoms
value exclusive of expors duty and transporiation cost | if swich cost in stoted i the sale invoices) bt
net lower them the ioxable price specified of the provincial Peoples* Commitee

Lhue 1o inconsistencies between the current regulations, Tan Phat Company hes submitted a request for
guidance from the competent atthorities; however, no specific guidance has been received, As a result,
Tan Phat Company provisionally declared and paid resouree tax for the 2023 fiscal year based on the

taxable rate published hy the People's Commitiee of Cas Bang Province and the extracted paw FESORE
L
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In 2024, upon reviewing the royalty tax obligations, the Lroup has re-determined the resouree tax price
a5 the eustoms value of exported resounce producis excluding export tax and determined the taxable
resource output at the extraction stage by converting from the output of prodects production in the
period to besold (ie., based on the nterpretation of the regulations in Circular 152}, resailting in an
additional resource abligation of VNDA2,027 million for the 2073 fiscal year. Therefore, the
com parative figures in the consolidated financial statements fior the vear ended 31 December 2073,
have been adjusted as follows

Consolidated Balance Shevt as of 1 Jan mary 2024:
*  Inventory increased by VND3 534 million:
= Construction in propgress increased by VIND4, 868 million:

= Taxes and others payable to the St Freasury increased by VND35,103 million. This includes
ail increase in reyalty tax by VND42.028 millien and o decrease in CUTPOrAlE income tax by
VND6,725 million;

*  Profit for the current year decreased by VND] 5406 million; and
*  Non-contmlling interest decreased by VNDM 1,495 million,

Consalidated statement of income for the vear ended 31 December 2023:

= Costof goods sold increassd hy VND33,626 million:

*  Cumrentincome tax expense decregsed by VD723 million;

*  Profit after tax attribatable to ordinary sharcholders decreased by VINDI5 406 million: and
®  Profitater tax attributable 1o non-controlling interesis decreased by VNDI | 495 million,

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 Decem ber 2023

*  Profit before tax decreased by WND33,626 million:
*  Changes in inventary decreased by VND3.533 million: and
*  Changes in pavables and other linbilitios imcreased by VND37,159 million,

Adjustment on provisional sales of Asia Dragon Trading Pte. Lid, (*ADT™)

When preparing the consolidated linancial statements lor the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
had not made adjustments 1o the provisional sales recognised by the subsidiary ADT accordi fig b the
final selling prices for two shipments in September and December 2071 When preparing the
consolidated financial statements for 2024, the Group recaleulated and adjusted the revenue related 1o
these two shipments in the correct reporting pericd in 2023, The comparative figures for the vear ended
31 December 2023 shown in the consolidated fmancial statements, have been adjusted as follows:

Consolidated Balance Shect as of 1 January 2024:

*  Account receivables from customers decreased by VNDS0.20] million:

*  Advances from customers increased by VNDI2, 662 million:

*  Taxes and others pavable io the State Treasury decreased by VNI 26] miflion;
*  Foreign exchange differences decressed by VIND 1,383 million; and

®  Profit after tax decreased by VNDED2 19 millien.

'8
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Consolidated statement of incame for the year ended 31 December 2023:

*  Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services decreased by VNDS1,450 million:
*  Current income tax expense decreasad by VNDT,239 million: and
= Profit after wx attributahle i ordinary sharcholders decreased by VNDEDL 220 million,

Consolidated statement of cash flows fur the year ended 31 December 2023;

®  Profit before tax decreased by VND®1 459 millicn;

*  Changes in receivables incrensad by VNDS0.201 million:

*  Changes in prvables and other liahilities increased by VND3 2,641 million; and
*  Currency translation difference decreased by VND1,383 million,

The comparative tahle of figures presented in the previous vear, both before and afier adjustments, is
g5 follows:

Consolidated balance sheet
o _ 14172024
As previous
reported Restatement Hestated
Coe VD YND VND
Aceount receivablos froim
CHstomers i3l 1928, 169 781 205 (50,200, T98,000) LETT UEE 083 op5
[Tiventory Tdf 244,433,451 208 13,788,684 &30 058332 146,007
Dreduciible value added e 152 2I6,395,550.873 (148 A18,025,140) TEETT 525733
Tangible fAved assets 221 BE19.20) 639 R8T 120,309,289 002 D639 310,928,650
Clost £22  J 419 520 f35 7048 P28 448000420 §2 J48 375287 128
Accummuloted depraciation 223 f2 80627 578027 (EIIEAL2 408 (2 908 JOd, A2K 430
Construction m peogress 242 1078148400 504 4. 868, (62,775 12685, 564 270 y
Advanoes from cestomers. 312 138 T80, TR 266 32,662, 325,000 [ASEA4T 803 Das e
T'mxes and cthers pavable io Staje )
Treasury a3 P13 446,376,186 0ATLOR9.016 143917465 802 w
Foreign exchinge differences 417 105, 19,358 (1.383,053,084) (1.277.863,726) ity
Retined protits 421 36, 798 821 659 (103.805,236.721} BEZ 003 584 038 A
Profi far the fnirren) year S20h FIT082 373 87 (II3.805 336,721 T127T (RE RS0 )
Non-conirolling mtercs e Fa) 2086, 717121154 (17597 B30.685) 206490 19,300,460 ;ﬁ"!"
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Consalidated income statement

N 2023
Ad previousy
reporied Restatement Restated
Code VN VND YND
Revenue from sales of goods and
provision of 2ervices il 1,775,239, 783, 868 (HLASHE 721 2040 7.6593,781.062 664
Cost of gonds sold i 6, 194,135, 244, 151 31,479 TR 363 6245614973514
Current incoame iax s ) 20,539, 162846 (11,335 383,161 ) TH.Ba0L07H AR5
Profit after tax anrifnmable 10 the
Compaiy”s ordinary sharcholdars il 39972323571 (103 203,236,721) 3, 167,086,850
Frofit after tax awributable 10
non=gontrolling shareholders H2 163, (0,665 930 (17 597 830,68 5) 145,402 835,245
Consolidated cash flow statement
- 2023
As previous
reporied Restatement Restated
Code YND VMDY Y
Brofit hefiore o1 JBRDIRISS240  {132038.450,56T) 255079 704,673
Deprecimion and amortisation 03 763,378,204, 542 RI136.012.418 TTIE1 5106980
Change: in receivables ng 413,735.095,286 47 867 414,102 S0 E03, 209 478
Changes ininventony 1] (23.954.281,021)  {13,78E,684,88Y) (37, 742.965,0010)
Changes in payables and other
liahilities I (281,235,184, 255) 4 R0 634,402 (211,434 740 853
Pavments for additions to fived pases
and other long-terim assats 21 (AT455RK98,7I5) (ITA051924TH (401 2352.041,207)
Currency trnsiation differences fil 221.87R, TR (1383033 0Q4) (1,161,154.3017

Except for the restated comparative information as presented above, other comparative information ns
at | January 2024 was derived from the balances and amounts reported in the Group's consolidated
financial statements as ot and for the year ended 31 December 2023

28 March 20235
Prepared by Approvgsh
Luu Thanh Hueng Tran Thi Minh Viet )
Preparer Cldef Accowrtant General Direcior




PC1 GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIET NAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 01/ TTr-PC1-HBQT Hanoi, 03% April 2025

PROPOSALS
Regarding: The agenda for the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2023,

To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025

The Board of Directors (BOD) of the Company respectfully submits to the General
Meeting of Sharcholders for approval the following matters within its decision-
making authority:
I. Profit and dividend payment plan for 2025

- Consolidated profit after tax plan  : VND836 billion.

- Dividend payment plan : 15% of the Charter Capital.
1l. Remuneration for the Group BOD and Sapervisory Board in 2025

1. Remuneration for the BOD: Maximum 1% of the consolidated profit after tax.
The specific remuneration for each member will be decided by the BOD.

2. Remuneration for the Supervisory Board:
+ Head of the Supervisory Board: VIND6,000,000/month.
+ Member of the Supervisory Board: VND2,000,000/person/month,

The BOD is responsible for reporting the actual remuneration paid to each member at
the nearest General Meeting of Sharcholders.

I11. Provision for funds in 2024 and the plan for 2025
1. Provision for funds in 2024

Bonus and welfare funds: 10% of the profit after tax.
- Executive Board reward fund:

+ Executive Board reward: 2% of the consolidated profit after tax as per the
annual plan plus 5% of the consolidated profit after tax exceeding the annual plan.

2. Plan for funds in 2025
- Bonus and welfare funds: 10% of the profit after tax.
- Executive Board reward fund:
+ Executive Board reward: 2% of consolidated profit after tax.

+ Executive Board reward: 5% of consolidated profit after tax exceeding the
annual plan.

+ Authorization for the Chairman of the BOD to decide on the specific form and
level of reward for the Executive Board.
IV. Plan to increase charter capital by issuing shares to raise share capital from
owner’s equity.
1. Legal basis
- Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly on 17 June
2020;




- Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly on 26
MNovember 2019;

Decree No.

155/2020/ND-CP

dated 31 December 2020, detailing the

implementation of some provisions of the Securities Law;

Circular No. 118/2020/TT-BTC dated 31 December 2020, of the Ministry of
Finance guiding some provisions related to securities offering, public tender, stock
repurchase, public company registration, and delisting of public companies;

- Charter of Organization and Operation of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company;
- The actual operating situation of the Company
2. Issuance plan

1 | Issuing organization PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
2 | Issued share name PC1 Group Joint Stock Company Shares
3 | Listing exchange HOSE (Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange)
4 | Share type Common shares
5 | Share par value VND10,000/share
. VND3,576,421,210,000 {as of the time of the
6 | Curzent charter capital 2025 Annual General Meeting)
7 | Total oumber of Sheres | 157 c49 121 shaves
in circulation
8 | Treasury shares 0 share
Additional shares to be
) e 53,646,318 shares
Total estimated walue
10 | of issued shares (at par | VIND536.463, 180,000
value)
11 | Purpose of the issuance | To increase capital from owner’s equity
15%, corresponding to a rights ratio of 100:13. At
the time of the shareholder list cutoff date, each
shareholder holding 1 (one) share will receive |
12 Rights ratio/Tssuance | (one) right to subscribe for additional shares, and
ratio every 100 rights will allow the shareholder to
receive 15 (fiftcen) additional shares. Treasury
shares (if any) will not be entitled to subscription
rights.
Existing sharcholders may receive additional
13 | Implementation method | shares through the rights issuance method. The
subscription rights cannot be transferred.
All existing sharcholders listed on the company's
KN |jpemante e sharcholder registrty on the record date for




subscription rights.

15

Source of funds for
1S5UATICE

Owner’s equity based on the audited 2024
financial statements, including: share premium;
development investment fund; undistributed profit
after tax: other equity funds. The AGM authorizes
the BOD to allocate and decide the detailed source
of funds.

16 Expected

implementation time

| Expected to be implemented in 2025, with the

specific time to be determined by the BOD,
aligned with the issuance of shares for Employee
stock options.

17 | and

Rounding
handling
fractional shares

principles

of

Fractional shares will be rounded down to the

| nearest whole number. Decimal fractions (if any)

will be canceled.

Example: On the sharcholder registration date for
the issuance of new shares from owner’s equity,
shareholder Nguyen Van A holds 1,210 shares.
According to the execution ratio, the nght to
receive additional shares is 100:15. Therefore,
sharcholder A will receive the corresponding
number of newly issued shares, which is
calculated as (1,210/100) x 15 = 181.5 shares.

According to the rounding principle and the
handling of fractional shares, the number of shares
that shareholder Nguyén Viin A will receive, after
rounding down to the nearest whole number, is
181 shares; the 0.5 fractional share will be
canceled.

18 | Restrictions

Shares under restriction on transfer (if any) will
still receive additional shares from the issuance.
Newly issued shares from owner’s equity will not
be subject to transfer restrictions.

The issuance of shares to increase share capital

19 Foreign ownership | from owner's equity will not increase the foreign
commitment ownership percentage in the Company based on
| | the total shares in circulation.

3. Approval for supplementary securities registration and listing

Approving the supplementary registration of securities and supplementary listing of
the entire number of shares issued under the plan to increase share capital from
owner's equity. These shares will be registered for depository at the Vietnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC) and listed on the HOSE.

4. Approval of the increase in charter capital and the adjustment of charter
capital, outstanding shares, and other related contents in the Company's



Charter in accordance with the actual additional capital raised from the
isSsuAnce.

Approving of the increase in charter capital and the adjustment of charter capital,
outstanding shares, and other related contents in the Company's Charter to align with
the total par value of the shares actually issued according to the issuance plan
mentioned above.

g Awpthorization for the BOD

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the BOD to make decisions and
implement the following tasks, including but not limited to:

- Deciding on the timing of the issuance, development, editing, and explanation of
all necessary documents and procedures for reporting the share issuance to the State
Securities Commission, decide in detail and amend or supplement the issuance plan
according to the actual situation at the time of issuance or as required by the
competent authorities, and carry out the tasks in accordance with legal regulations to
complete the share issuance;

. Calculating and determining the number of shares issued based on the approved
issuance ratio;

. Completing necessary procedures to report issuance results to the S8C;

- Completing other matters to increase the Company’s charter capital;

- Implementing necessary steps for share issuance supplementary registration at
VSDC and supplementary listing at HOSE;

Decide and carry out the procedures for changing the content of the business
registration (including the procedures for registering an increasc in charter capital
after the issuance process is completed) and sign the necessary documents related to
adjusting the increase in charter capital on the Business Registration Certificate at the
competent state authority; amend the charter capital level, the number of outstanding
shares, and other related contents in the Company's Charter and other
procedures/tasks related to the increase in charter capital mentioned above with the
competent state authorities and relevant entities;

Other tasks for implementing the above plan;

. The BOD may delegate authority to Chairman or General Director to perform the
above task(s).

6. Execution

Authorize the BOD and the General Director to carry out related tasks in accordance
with the provisions of the Company's Charter and legal regulations.

V. Plan for issuing shares under the Employee stock option program
(ESOP-2025).

1. Basis for the issuance

. The workforce and management in the energy and industrial sectors are
undergoing significant changes due to competition from FDI companics and new
private companies entering the sectors with exceptional incentive policies, which
impact the highly capable workforce of PCL.



PCl Strategy 2026 - 2030, with the goal of high and sustainable growth,
prioritizing the development of advanced technology and social responsibility,
requires a team of capable, dedicated, and committed Employees.

2. Purpose of the issuance

Maintain and develop a team of outstanding, capable, and cohesive Employees to
successfully implement the Group's strategy for 2026-2030).

3. Issuamce plan

1 | Issuing organization PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
2 | Issued share name Shares of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
3 | Listed exchange HOSE
4 | Share type Commeon Shares
5 | Par value of shares VND 10,000 per share
. VND3,576,421,210,000 (as of the time of the
6 | Current charter capital | 5075 2 1nual General Meeting)
7 | Total number of Shares | 359 645 12] shares
in circulation
8 | Treasury shares {) share
y Total number of shares | Up to 10,729,263 shares (equivalent to 3% of the
to be issued current charter capital)
Total value of shares to
10 be issued (at par value) Up to VND107,292,630,000
- Managers of the Company and its subsidiaries,
employees of the Company (hereinafier referred
to as “Employee(s)™), as per the list approved by
the BOD.
T Eligible shareholders - The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes
for share purchase the BOD to decide and issue regulations, specific
evalnation criteria and principles for determining
the number of shares allocated to each Employee
and the detailed list of Employees eligible for
share purchase under the ESOP program.
The evaluation and allocation criteria include:
- Job title and position;
| Criteria to participate in -Ieiuﬂ:-: performance results in the most recent
the ESOP e o
- Potential contributions to the Group's
development;
- Years of service
13 | Issue price VND10,000 per share J




The issued shares will be subject to a transfer
restriction for 02 vyears from the date of
14 | Transfer restrictions completion of the issuance (which is the date
when the payment for the purchase of shares by
Employees is completed)
Plan for unsubscribed
ﬁ'ﬂ:ﬁ - | The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes
15 P::;I:h a‘j’; il p&rl‘:.iﬂﬂj-' | the BOD to allocate the unsubscribed shares to
parchase shares E{.‘; i&npssuﬁlgﬁﬁ on the original ESOP list at the
{"Shares to be
distributed")
| Expected to be implemented in 2023, with the
16 Expected specific timing to be decided by the BOD and
implementation time executed concurrently with the share issuance to
increase share capital from owner's equity.
Plan to ensure | The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes
17 compliance with | the BOD to decide on the plan to ensure the share
foreign ownership ratio | issuance complies with foreign ownership ratio
regulations regulations. _

4. Plan for the use of funds raised from the issuance

The total amount raised from the issuance is estimated to be VND 107,292,630,000,
which will be used to supplement the Company's working capital. The specific capital
usage plan will be decided by the Board of Directors based on ensuring the
Company's interests and compliance with relevant legal regulations.

5. Approval for supplementary securities registration and listing

Approve the registration of additional securities and the listing of the total number of
shares actually issued under the ESOP share issuance plan. The above shares will be
deposited with the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearmg Corporation (VSDC)
and listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE).

6. Approval for the increase in charter capital and the amendment of charter
capital, the number of outstanding shares, and other related contents in the
Company's Charter according to the actual capital inerease from the
issuance

Approve the increase in charter capital and the amendment of charter capital, the
number of outstanding shares, and other related contents in the Company’s Charter to
correspond with the total par value of the shares actually issued according to the
issuance plan mentioned above.

7. Authorization for the BOD on the following issues

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the BOD 1o decide and mmplement
the following tasks, including but not limited to:

- Decide on and issue the detailed regulations for the share issuance under the
Employee stock option program for the year 2025.

[



- During the transfer restriction period, if any Employee resigns, the shares issued
to that Emplovee will be handled according to the regulations of the Employee Stock
Ownership Program (ESOP) as issued by the BOD.

- Decide on the principles for determining the number of shares to be allocated 1o
each Employee and the list of Employees eligible to participate in the ESOF program.
- Caleulate the detailed issuance ratio based on the maximum number of shares
approved by the GMS above.

- Decide on the detailed plan for the use of funds in accordance with the purposes
approved by the GMS above.

Decide on the plan to ensure that the share issuance complies with the foreign
ownership ratio regulations.
. Decide on the timing of the issuance, develop, edit, and explain all necessary
documents and procedures to report the share issuance to the State Securities
Commission, decide in detail and amend or supplement the issuance plan based on
the actual situation at the time of issuance or as required by the competent authorities,
and carry out the tasks in accordance with legal regulations to complete the share
ISsuance.

Complete the necessary procedures to report the issuance results to the State
Securities Commission {SSC).
- Complete other matters necessary to increase the Company’s charter capital.
- Implement other necessary tasks for the additional shares issued to be deposited
with VSDC and listed on HOSE.
- Decide and carry out the necessary procedures to amend the business registration
details (including registering the charter capital increase after the issuance is
completed) and sign the necessary documents related to the adjustment of the charter
capital on the business registration certificate with the competent authorities; amend
the charter capital, the number of outstanding shares, and other related details in the
Company’s Charter and other procedures/tasks related to the capital increase with the
relevant authorities and related entities.
- Other tasks to implement the above issuance plan.
- The BOD is allowed to authorize the Chairman of the BOD or the General
Director to perform above task(s).
8. Implementation
Authorize the BOD and the General Director to carmry out the related tasks in
accordance with the Company’s Charter and legal regulations.
V1. Change of the Company’s Head Office Address

1. Legal basis
- Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly on 17
June 2020;

- Law on Securitics No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly on 26
November 2019;

The Charter on Organization and Operations of PC1 Group Joint Stock
Company;
- Based on the infrastructure needs to support the Group's business operations.




2. Content for approval by the general meeting of shareholders

The BOD respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval the matter regarding the change of the Company’s head
office address, as follows:

2.1 Change of the Company’s head office address:

. The current registered address: No. 18 Ly Van Phuc Street, Cat Linh Ward, Dong
Da District, Hanoi, Vietnam,

- The proposed new address: Ist, 2nd and 3rd Floor, CT2 Building, No. 383
Nguyen Trai Street, Van Quan Ward, Ha Dong District, Hanoi, Vietnam.

2.2 Amendment to the charter:

- Approve the amendment of Section 2.3, Article 2 of the Company’s Charter
regarding the registered office address, as reflected in the amended Business
Registration Certificate and remove the Company's business location,

2.3 Authorization:

Autherize the Chairman of the BOD to determine the appropriate timing for
changing the Company's head office address based on actual circumstances and to
update the registered address information in case of administrative boundary changes
resulting from the restructuring of the two-tier local government model, as per
decisions of competent state authorities (if applicable); Decide on other related
matters during the process of changing the Company's head office address with the
relevant state authorities, ensuring compliance with legal regulations.

- Authorize the Legal representative to carry out the necessary procedures to
register the change of the Company’s head office address and amend the Company’s
Charter as per regulations.

We respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders to consider and
APProve.

Sincerely,
Recipients:

- As above;

- Archive of the BOD.




PC1 GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness

r- BKS -PCI Hanoi, 03" April 2025

PROPOSAL
ign of the Audit Firm for the 2025 Financial Statement Audit.
025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

v

1. Basis for the proposal.

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 5%/2020/QH14 ratified by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020, effective from January
1, 2021.

- Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of PC1 Group Joint Stock
Company;

- Based on the list of auditing firms and auditors approved by the State Securities
Commission to audit issuers, listed organizations and securities trading organizations in
2025.

- Pursuant to the 2024 consolidated financial statements audited by KFMG Co.,
Ltd.

2. Proposal content.

In order to achieve the goal of enhancing professionalism in management and
operations, limiting risks in production and business activities, ensuring transparency in
the stock market for listed companies.

The Supervisory Board respectfully submits to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval the plan to select the auditing unit for financial statements in
2025 as follows:

- Approve the list of selected audit firms for the 2025 financial statements from the
Big 4 in the audit sector.

- Assign the CEO to choose one of the four firms from the Big 4 mentioned above
to sign an audit service contract at a reasonable price, suitable for the Group's operational
characteristics.

Sincerely,
ipient: ON BEHALF OF SUPERVISORY BOARD
- Az above; HEAD OF THE BOARD

- Filed: Board of Directors,

Supervisory Board. W
e

Nguyen Thi Hai Ha



PC1 GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Hanoi 03% April 2025
NOTICE

Re: Nomination and candidacy for the BOD and Supervisory Board members
for the term 2025-2030

To: Esteemed shareholders of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprise No. 59/2020/QH14 promulgated by the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on 17% June 2020;

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 542019/QH14 promulgated by the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on 26™ November 2019, and
its amendments and supplements;

- Pursuant to the Regulations on electing the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board members for the term 2025 - 2030,

- Pursuant to the Charter of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company (PC1);

The members of the Board of Directors (*BOD"™) and the Supervisory Board
(*BOS™) for the term 2020 — 2025 of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company will complete
their term of office after the closing of the Annual general mecting of sharcholders
2025,

To prepare the personnel for the BOD and the BOS for the term 2025 — 2030, the
BOD hereby notifies the Esteemed shareholders of the nomination and candidacy of
the BOD and the BOS members for the term 2025 - 2030 at the Annual general
meeting of shareholders 2025 as follows:

1. Number, standards, and conditions for the BOD and the BOS members:
- Number of the BOD members for the term 2025 - 2030: 5 members
- Number of the BOS members for the term 2025 - 2030: 3 members

- Standards and conditions for the BOD members: According to Article 2 of the
Regulation on nomination, candidacy and election of the BOD and the BOS for the
term 2025 - 2030 of PC1.

- Standards and conditions for the BOS members: According to Article 3 of the
Regulation on nomination, candidacy and election of the BOD and the BOS for the
term 2025 - 2030 of PCI,

2. Right to nominate and candidate for the BOD and the BOS members:

According to Article 4 of the Regulation on nomination, candidacy and election
of the BOD and the BOS for the term 2025 - 2030 of PC1.

3. Instructions for submitting nomination and candidacy for BOD, BOS documents:
The application of nomination and candidacy for the BOD, BOS includes:



- Candidacy form or nomination form for candidates to participate the BOD or
the BOS (according to the form):

- Self-declared candidate's resume with photo (according to the form);
- Copy of ID card/Citizen ID card/Passport.

Note to Esteemed shareholders: Candidates who candidate or are nominated for
the BOD and the BOS members are responsible before the law and the Annual general
meeting of shareholders for the accuracy and honesty of their documents,

Therefore, the BOD kindly requests that eligible Esteemed shareholders or
groups of sharcholders submit the nomination or candidacy documents to the company
before 17:00 on 24" April, 2025, to allow the Meeting Organizing committee to
complete the necessary procedures.

For more information on the nomination and candidacy of the BOD and the BOS
members for the term 2025-2030, Esteemed shareholders may visit the company
website at  httpsy//www.pelgroup.vn/ (Section Investor Relations/Information
Disclosure) or contact Ms. Vu Thi Lan My - Company Secretary.

Document submission address:

Ms. Vu Thi Lan My - Company Secretary

PC1 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: CT2 Building - 583 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi
Tel: 024 3734 3060 {Ms. Fu Thi Lan My — Company Secretary)

Fax: 024 3823 1997  Email: myvtl@pclgroup.vn

Kind regards.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF
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PC1 GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness

Hanoi, 03 April 2025,

REGULATIONS ON NOMINATION, CANDIDACY AND ELECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY BOARD FOR THE TERM OF
2025-2030

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59%/2020/QH14 promulgated by the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 promulgated by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019 and its
amendments and supplements;

Pursuant to the Government's Decree No, 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31,
2020 detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securities;
- Pursuant to the Charter of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company (PCL);

The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of PC1 Group Joint Stock
Company shall elect members of the Board of Directors ("BOD™) and Supervisory
Board (“BOS") for the term 2025-2030 according to the following regulations:

Article 1. Scope and subjects of application

1.1 This Regulation is established to specify the principles and methods for the
nomination, candidacy and election of members of the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Board of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company at the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders (the "Meeting").

1.2 This Regulation applies to all shareholders who own shares of PC1 Group Joint
Stock Company according to the closing list dated March 20, 2025 and valid
authorized representatives present at the General Meeting.

Article 2. Number and criteria for electing members of the BOD

2.1 The number of elected members of the BOD is 05 (five) people with a term of 05
Years.:

2.2 Standards and conditions of members of the BOD

a.  Meet the standards and conditions specified in Clauses 1 and 2, Article 155 of the
Law on Enterprises 2020,

b. Not subject to the provisions of Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on Enterprises
2020,

¢.  Having professional qualifications and experience in business administration or in
the company's business fields, lines and lines and not necessarily being a
shareholder of the company.

d. A member of the BOD of a company may also be a member of the BOD of another
company, but not more than 05 companies.

e. The following qualities and competencies:

- Have leadership qualitics, integrity, responsibility, maturity, ethics and receive the
trust of sharcholders, other members of the BOD, managers and employees of the
Company;

- Ability to balance the interests of all stakeholders and make reasonable decisions;




Have the professional experience and education necessary to operate effectively;
Ability to tumm knowledge and experience into practical solutions;

Ability and will to face challenges;

Good communication skills.

Criteria for being an independent member of the BOD:

Not be a person who is working for the company, its parent company, or its
subsidiaries; not be a person who has worked for the company, parent company or
subsidiary of the company for at least 03 consecutive years;

Not being a person who is receiving salary or remuneration from the company,
except for allowances to which members of the BOD are entitled as prescribed;
Not being a person whose spouse, natural father, adoptive father, natural mother,
adoptive mother, natural child, adopted child, brother, sister or sibling who is a
major shareholder of the company, being a manager of the company or a subsidiary
of the company;

Not being a person who directly or indirectly owns at least 01% of the total voting
shares of the company;

Not being a person who has been a member of the BOD or the BOS of the company

for at least 5 consecutive years, except for the case of being appointed for (2
consecutive terms.

Article 3. The number and criteria of candidates for the BOS,

3.1

32
a.

The number of elected members of the BOS is 03 (three) people with a term of 03
years.

Criteria and conditions for being a member of the BOS:

Not subject to the provisions of Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on Enterprises
2020;

Being trained in one of the majors in economics, finance, accounting, auditing,
law, business administration or majors suitable to the business activities of the
enterprise;

Mot being a person who has a family relationship of a member of the BOD,
Director or General Director and other managers;

Not being a company manager; not necessarily being a sharcholder or employee
of the company, unless otherwise provided for by the company's charter;
Members of the BOS do not fall into the following cases:

Working in the accounting and finance department of the Company

Being a member or employee of an independent auditing firm that audits the
company’s financial statements in the previous 03 consecutive years.

Article 4. Right to nominate and candidate for members of the Board of Directors,
Supervisory Board

4.1

Shareholders or groups of sharehelders owning 5% or more of the total number of
ordinary shares have the right to nominate persons to the BOD or the BOS as
follows:

Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding from 5% to less than 10% of the
total number of voting shares may nominate one (01) candidate;
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4.3

Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding from 10% to less than 30% of the
total number of voting shares may nominate a maximum of two (02) candidates;
Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding from 30% to less than 40% of the
total number of voting shares may nominate a maximum of three (03) candidates;
Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding from 40% to less than 50% of the
total number of voting shares may nominate a maximum of four (04) candidates;
Shareholders or groups of sharcholders holding from 50% to less than 60% of the
total number of voting shares may nominate a maximum of five (05) candidates;
Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding from 60% to less than 70% of the
total number of voting shares may nominate a maximum of six (06) candidates;
Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding from 70% to 80% of the total
number of voting shares may nominate a maximum of seven (07) candidates;
Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding from 80% to less than 20% of the
total number of voting shares may nominate a maximum of eight (08) candidates.
Ordinary shareholders form groups to nominate persons to the BOD, the BOS must
notify the group meeting to the shareholders attending the meeting before the
opening of the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

In case the number of candidates nominated by sharcholders or groups of
shareholders is lower than the number of candidates they are entitled to nominate
under the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the remaining number
of candidates shall be nominated by the BOD, the BOS and other shareholders.

Article 5: Application of nomination and candidacy for election to members of the
BOD and the BOS

5.1

a.

3.3

The application of nomination and sandidacy for the BOD and the BOS includes:
Candidacy form or Nomination form for candidates to participate the BOD or the
BOS (according to the form);

Self-declared candidate's resume with photo (according to the form);

Copy of ID card/Citizen 1D card/Passport

Persons who are self-nominated or nominated for election as members of the BOD
or the BOS must be responsible before the law and the General Meeting of
Shareholders for the accuracy and truthfulness of the contents of their seli-
nomination and nomination application.

Only application of nomination of candidates, candidates who meet the conditions
for nomination and candidacy and candidates who meet the corresponding
conditions of members of the BOD and the BOS will be included in the list of
candidates announced at the Meeting.

Article 6. Election method

6.1

6.2

The election of members of the BOD and the BOS will be carried out by secret
ballot and cumulative voting.

After the Meeting approves the list of candidates for election of members of the
BOD, the BOS and the Election regulations, each delegate attending the Meeting
will be distributed 02 (two) votes by the Organizing Committee: 01 (one) vote for
members of the BOD and 01 (one) vote for members of the BOS. Delegates are
responsible for checking the information on the ballots, if there is an error, it must
be immediately reported to the Organizing Committee.
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6.3

6.4

6.5

The Shareholders or Authorized representatives shall have a total number of voting
votes corresponding to the total number of shares owned (including the number of
shares owned, and/or authorized) multiplied by the number of elected members of
the BOD or the number of elected members of the BOS.

A shareholder or Authorized representative has the right to give all of his or her
votes to one candidate or to divide his or her total votes among several candidates,
The total number of votes for candidates of 01 sharcholder must not exceed the

total number of votes allowed by that shareholder (number of shares x number of
elected members)

(Deiails are in the attached Appendix guiding the method of accumulating votes)

Article 7. Ballot paper and ballot recording

7.1

12

13

74

7.3

1.6

The ballot papers are uniformly printed with the Company's seal, with the total
number of voting rights for each shareholder;

Shareholders/authorized representatives are issued at the same time 01 vote for
members of the BOD (pink) and 01 vote for members of the BOD (yellow)
according to the participation code (owned or authorized);

Shareholders or representatives of shareholders when being distributed ballots
must re-check the information written on the ballots, if there are any errors,
shareholders must immediately notify the Organizing Committee to exchange
other votes.

The total number of votes cast for candidates of a sharcholderfauthorized
representative of a shareholder must not exceed the total number of votes allowed
by the shareholder/authorized representative of that shareholder;

In case of incorrect recording, the sharcholder/fauthorized representative of the
shareholder requests the Organizing Committee to change the vote for another one;

The shareholder/authorized representative of the shareholder must sign and clearly
write his full name under the ballot for confirmation.

Article 8. Valid and invalid ballot papers

8.1

a.

b.

8.2

Valid ballot papers

Votes for candidates named in the list and within the number of members to be
voted for approved by the Meeting;

The total number of votes is less than or equal to the total number of authorized
votes of that shareholder (equal to the number of shares multiplied by the number
of elected members);

Not falling into the case specified in Clause 8.2 of this Article.

Invalid ballot papers
‘The ballot paper is not issued by the Company and’or does not have the Company's
scal;

The ballot paper with the deletion, correction and supplementation of contents not
mn accordance with regulations (in case of incorrect writing, a new ballot paper
must be exchanged);

The ballot paper contains additional or incorrect names, is not on the list of
candidates approved by the Meeting before voting;



f.
Arti
9.1

9.2

The ballot paper with the total number of voting rights for candidates in excess of
the total number of votes allowed by that shareholder/authorized representative of
that shareholder;

Non-signature ballot paper, clearly stating the full name of the shareholder/
authorized representative of the shareholder;

The ballot paper for more candidates than the number to vote.

cle 9. Elected

The elected members of the BOD and BOS are determined according to the
number of votes calculated from high to low, starting from the candidate with the
highest number of votes until there are enough members (05 members of the BOD,
03 members of the BOS).

In case there are 02 or more candidates with the same number of votes for the last
member of the BOD, BOS will conduct a re-election among the candidates with
the same number of votes to select 01 member with the highest number of votes
until it is selected.

Article 10. Complaints about election results

Complaints about the election and vote counting will be settled by the Chairman of the
meeting and recorded in the Minutes of the GMS.

Article 11. Effective enforcement of the Regulation

This Regulation consists of eleven (11) Articles and takes effect immediately after being
voted and approved by the Meeting.
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APPENDIX
GUIDANCE ON THE METHOD OF VOTING
(Issued with the Regulation on nomination, candidacy and election of the BOD and the
BOS for the term 2025-2030)

1. Regulations on cumulative voting

The election of members of the BOD and BOS at the Meeting is conducted
according to the principle of cumulative voting, in which shareholders have the right to
use the total number of votes for one candidate, or several candidates with the number
of votes for each candidate not necessarily equal; or elect only part of their total votes
for one or several candidates, the remaining votes may not vote for any candidate.

2. How to vote

&) Determine the total number of votes of 1 shareholder (or representative of the
shareholder)

* Election of members of the BOD
Amount = Total shares x  Number of elected
Ballot Papers have the right to vote members of the BOD
* Election of members of the BOS
Amount = Total shares x  Number of Elected
Ballot Papers have the right to vote Members of the BOS

Example [: The number of members elected to the BOD is 05 people; The
number of members elected to the BOS is 03 people. Mr. X is a shareholder holding
1,000 shares with voting rights. Thus, Mr. X's vote for the BOD is (1,000%3) = 5,000
votes and the BOS vote is (1,000%3) = 3,000 votes.

b) Method of voting
- In case of election of the BOD: If 05 candidates are elected, each shareholder

(shareholder representative) shall distribute the total number of votes to the candidates
he or she chooses.

- In case of election of the BOD: Electing 03 candidates, each sharcholder
(shareholder representative) shall distribute the total number of votes to the candidates
he or she chooses.

How to record:
Shareholders choose 1 of the following 2 ways:

- Option 1: Distribute all votes: Shareholders allocate all their total votes to the
candidates they choose, shareholders check "X" in the squares comresponding to the
elected candidates, cross out the squares corresponding to the unelected candidates.




Example: When electing the BOD, Mr. A evenly divides his total number of votes
of 5,000 votes to 05 candidates from candidate ! to candidate 5, equivalent to each
candidate receiving 1,000 votes, Mr. A will record the votes as follows:

Option 2:
Option 1: Not allocating all the
TT Candidate Name .A.ﬂﬂl'.':lﬁlilg all votes votes

(Check "X" on the (Record the number of
elected candidates) votes cast for the elected
candidates)

Candidate 1 X

Candidate 2
Candidate 3
Candidate 4

Candidate 5
Candidate 6

|| w2 |—
MOomoDmE

Total 5,000

- Option 2: Uneven distribution of votes: Shareholders divide their total votes
among candidates and’or accumulate the total number of votes for | candidate,
shareholders specify the number of votes for the elected candidates, write "0" or cross
out the lines corresponding to the unelected candidates.

Example: When electing the BOD, Mr. A divides his total number of votes of
3.000 votes to 02 candidates, candidare 1: 3,000 votes, candidate 3: 2,000 vores, Mr. 4
will record the votes as follows:

Option 2:
Option 1: Not allocating all the
TT | Candidate Name | Allocatingall votes Foirs
(Check "X" on the (Record the number of
elected candidates) voles cast for the elected
candidaies)
1 | Candidate 1 O 3.000
2 | Candidate 2 O 0
3 | Candidate 3 O 2.000
4 | Candidate 4 O 0
5 | Candidate 5 O ]
Total 5.000

Note: The total number of votes cast must no! exceed the total number of votes
already recorded on the ballot paper.




SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

NOMINATION/CANDIDACY
e ER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS/SUPERVISORY BOARD
% \u/ ~#/ OF PC1 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY (PC1)

B i

Dear: The Board of Directors of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

Fullname of shareholder (representative of the shareholder group): v
(List of shareholders attached to this application)

ID card/ Citizen identification card / Enterprise Registration Certificate No: c.viicnicesnininn
TEERIEKL OB o s s s s sis mnoa i vl Biasasid s s da SN OESep oo Me i M SRS N AATFEANM RIS Y AR
Hepresniid By TRV X . covininmsanninsminnnniosmnmand RIS naieviin i o s s e s w6 S RS S
Address: S e B A i b 5

Is a shareholder/representative of a sharcholder group holding ........... . shares as of the record
date for the Meeting (20™ March 2025), equivalent to ......% of the total shares with voting rights
of PC1.

Hereby nominates/dedicate a candidate to participate the Board of Directors/Supervisory Board
for the term 2025 - 2030 of PC1 to proceed with the election at the annual General meeting of
shmhn]’;dmiﬂli as follows:

I'We commit fo:
1. The candidates mentioned above meet the qualifications and standards for members of
the BOD or the BOS as required by law and the Company's regulations.
2. I/'We am/are eligible to nominate/dedicate the above candidates to be elected to the Board

of Directors/Supervisory Board for the new term of PCI at the General mesting of
shareholders, and take full responsibility for the accuracy, honesty, and legality of this

nomination.
Kind regards!
Attached documents: 00000 2025
i} Copy of ID card/Citizen ID card/Passport; Slnehnldml'ﬂcprﬂmtlﬁvﬂ
fii) iM#M candidate s resume (according o (Signed, full name and sealed)

Noide: This application must be submined to the Organizing Commitiee of the Meeting before
5:00 PM on 24™ April 2023, ar the comtact address listed in the notice.

P Check an "x" in the box for the chesen position to be nominated,



LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS PARTICIPATING IN NOMINATION
{Antached to the Nomination Application of the Representative Shareholder: .......ccovve e vir e}

i e R e ) B P T R || g il et [ R
Full'name IEcar : Numberof Shares [SSignature




FORM SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

Independence - Freedom - Happiness —

RESUME

Photo
Ixdem

\e\ PC1 /g
o T

Place of issue: ......
o  Permanent residence address:
o  Contact address:
a Tel: E-mail ;
2. Literacy, Professional Level

3. Work Experience

Time Position Organization Name

From ...J..J0 o Jd.. ..

From .../...4...00 .. d.. ...

From .../ ... ... 10 .../ ... ...

From /ool W0 it i

4. Current other managing positions

Organization Name Position Time

From ... ... ... b0 000

From ...J... ..o 0 .

From .../ ... ... t0 .. /..

5, Number of shares held at PC1 Group Joint Stock Company? .......ooviivveieiciiinernncnn

6. Benefits related to PC1 Group Joint Stock Company (if any): ..ooooviiiiiiiiiiiinnnn,

I hereby confirm the accuracy, honesty, and reasonableness of the contents as
mentioned earlier and bear full responsibility for violation of the law.



By the shareholders, if elected as a member of the ... (BOD/BOS), 1 commit to
performing my duties with honesty, loyalty, diligence, and in the best interests of the
Company.

Ha Noi, ... iuniirsnsanvnne 2023
Candidate
(Stgnature, full name)
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GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
PC1 GROUPF JOINT STOCK COMPANY

VOTING CARD

Full name of shareholder! authorized
representative:

D card’ Citizen identification card

| Passport/Enterprise Registration
|Certificate No:

Address:

The voting shares owned/authorized:

VOTE

Full name, Signature:

Gehi chii:

- OF ardinary share corresponds i 07 voring paper.
- The mumber of ballats is equal to the momber of voring rights.
- This voting card is only valid for use at the Anmual General Meeting of Sharehoiders FCI 2023,




Vobe:

PC1 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY (PC1 GROUP JSC)
Az ©T2 Office Buiding - Mo 583 Nguyen Teol Siest - Thanh Xuon Distiet - Hana - Vietnam
Abvays Reliohle  Weowwwpclgoupsn  Einfolpoigroupsn  Fo8424 3231997 ToaBd 24 38456529

N4

Hanai,  dpeil, 2025

L BALLOT PAPER
'FOR ELECTING MEMBERS OF THE BOD

Term 2025 - 2030

Full name of shareholder/ authorized representative:

The voting shares owned:

The voting shares authorized:

Total shares have the right to vote: shares. (1)
The number of members elected to the BOD: 05 members

Total number of voles that shareholders are entitled to cast for candidates [(2)(1)x3]: Votes
Option 1: Option 2:
Distribute all votes Uneven distribution of votes
No Candidate Name {Check "X™ in the squares (Specify the mumber of votes for the

corresponding fo the elected deriend idates, write "0 or

cimdidates, :rm;r s::;r.hs .E;JIMJ cross out the lines corresponding to
corresponding 1o the unelected the unelected candidates)

candidates)

mlimlimlinim

Total S R

SHAREHOLDER/ AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
(Full name, Signature)




Vote:

Az T2 Offices Bulding - Mo 563 Mguyen Trol Sreet - Thonh Xuon Diskict - Hanol - Vietnam

3 m PC1 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY (PC1 GROUP JSC)

Mu-m':.ﬂnlm.hk Wowwnwpelgroupsn  Binfo@pcigroupsn FaB R4 38231997 Tie84 24 35450309

BALLOT PAPER

TERM 2025 - 2030

Full name of shareholder/ authorized representative:

Harat,  April. 2025

FOR ELECTING MEMBERS OF THE BOS

The voling shares owned:

The voting shares authorized:

Total shares have the right to vate: shares. (1)

The number of members elected to the BOS: 03 members

Total number of votes that shareholders are entitled to cast for candidates [(2/=(13): Votes
Distribute all votes Uneven distribution of voles

Mo Candidate Name

{Check “X™ in the squares
corresponding fo the elecied
candidates, cross out the squares
corresponding fo the unelecred
cardidates)

(Specifi the member of vores for the
elected romdidates, write "0 or
cross ouf the lines corresponding fo
the wnelected candidates)

SHAREHOLDER/ AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
(Full rewe, Bignatire)




PC1 GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom — Happiness
PC1-DHDCD Hanoi, 25" April 2025
DRAFT
Al RESOLUTION
| | @ik ThP 0k '*, | Annual General meeting of sharcholders 2025

e s e

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
PC1 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

\\P{,l __..-"'"

2 L-J-.-

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17/06/2020;
- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated 26/11/2019;
- Pursuant to the Charter of PC1 Group Joint Stock Company;
- Pursuant to the Minutes of the 2025 Annual General meeting of shareholders of PC1
Group Joint Stock Company dated 25/04/2025;
RESOLVE
Article 1. The Annual General meeting of shareholders approves the following reports:
1. Report of the Board of Directors on 2024 performance results and 2025 objects.

2. Report of the BOD for the term 2020-2025 and operational orientation for the term
2025-2030.

3. The 2024 financial statements are audited by KPMG Vietnam Co., Ltd.

4. Appraisal report of the Company's Supervisory Board for the term 2020 - 2025,

Article 2. The Annual General meeting of shareholders approves the following
contents:

1. Profit and dividend payment plan for 2025.

- Consolidated profit after tax plan  : VND836 billion.

- Dividend payment plan : 15% of the Charter Capital.

2. Remuneration for the Group BOD and Supervisory Board in 2025,

- Remuneration for the BOD: Maximum 1% of the consolidated profit after tax. The
specific remuneration for each member will be decided by the BOD,

- Remuneration for the Supervisory Board:
+ Head of the Supervisory Board: VIND6,000,000/month.
+ Member of the Supervisory Board: VND2,000,000/person/month.

The BOD is responsible for reporting the actual remuneration paid to each member
at the nearest General Meeting of Shareholders.

3. Provision for funds in 2024 and the plan for 2025
3.1 Provision for funds in 2024
- Bonus and welfare funds: 10% of the profit after tax.

- Executive Board reward fund: 2% of the consolidated profit after tax as per the annual
plan plus 5% of the consolidated profit after tax exceeding the annual plan.

1




3.2 Plan for funds in 2023
- Bonus and welfare funds: 10% of the profit after tax.

- Executive Board reward fund:
+ Executive Board reward: 2% of consolidated profit after tax.
+ Executive Board reward: 5% of consolidated profit after tax exceeding the annual

plan.

+ Authorization for the Chairman of the BOD to decide on the specific form and level
of reward for the Executive Board

4. Plan to increase charter capital by issuing shares to raise share capital from
owner's equity

4.1 Issuance plan

| Issuing organization | PC1 Group Joint Stock Company
| 2 | Issued share name PC1 Group Joint Stock Company Shares
. 3 |Listing exchange | HOSE (Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange)
4 | Share type Common shares
5 | Share par value VND 10,000/share
| VND3,576.421,210,000 (as of the time of the 2025
& | Current charter capital Annual General Meeting)
; | Total number of shares | 57 c45 151 shares
in circulation L
§ | Treasury shares 0 share '
: B G L ~
Efﬂuddttmnnl shares to be $3.646.318 shares
| issued . ]
: Total estimated value of i
10 !issued shares (at par; VWNDS536,463,180,000
value)
i ] Purpose of the issuance | To increase capital fmm owner's e:qmty
| 15%, corresponding to a rights ratio of 100:15. At the
: time of the sharcholder list cutoff date, each
Foc ; shareholder holding 1 (one) share will receive 1 (one)
1p | Rights  ratio/lssuance | sopy o subscribe for additional shares, and every 100
| L rights will allow the shareholder to receive 15 ]
| | (fifteen) additional shares. Treasury shares (if any) |
will not be entitled to subscription rights.
E:rustmg shareholders may receive additional sha.n:ﬂ ,
13 | Implementation method | through the rights issuance method. The su‘nscnptmn |
i

rights cannot be transfermd




14

18

Source of funds for
issuance

s equity funds. The AGM authorizes the BOD 1o
| allocate and decide the detailed source of funds.

All existing shareholders listed on the cnmpan}r'sé
shareholder registry on the record date for:
ﬂubsr.::nptmn rights.

Owner's equity based on the audited 2024 ﬁna.-nclal
statements, including: share premium; development
investment fund; undistributed profit after tax; other

16

Expected
implementation time

Expected to be implemented in 2025, with the
specific time to be determined by the BOD, aligned
with the issuance of shares for Employee stock |
options.

17

Rounding principles and
handling of fractional ;
Esha.mws

Fractional shares will be rounded down to the nearest -
whole number. Decimal fractions (if any) will be
canceled.

Example: On the sharcholder registration date for the |
issuance of new shares from owner's equity,
shareholder Nguyen Van A holds 1,210 shares.
According to the execution ratio, the right to receive |
additional shares is 100:15. Therefore, shareholder A
i will receive the comesponding number of newly
issued shares, which is calculated as (1, 210/100) x 15
= 181.5 shares. ‘
According to the rounding principle and the handling
of fractional shares, the number of shares that
shareholder Mguyfn Vin A will receive, after

rounding down to the nearest whole number, is 181
shares; the 0.5 fractional share will be canceled. i

18

Restrictions

to transfer r:smctmns

Shares under restriction on transfer (if any) will still :
receive additional shares from the issuance. Newly
issued shares from owner’s equity will not be subject

19

Foreign
commitment

ownership |

The issuance of shms to increase share camtal from
owner’s ecquity will not increase the foreign
ownership percentage in the Company based on the
total shares in cmulﬂtlm

4.2 Approval for supplementary securities registration and listing

Approving the supplementary registration of securities and supplementary listing of the
enlire number of shares issued under the plan to increase share capital from owner’s
equity. These shares will be registered for depository at the Vietnam Sccurities
Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC) and listed on the HOSE.

4.3 Approval of the increase in charter capital and the adjustment of charter capital,
oulstanding shares, and other related contents in the Company's Charter in accordance

with the actual additional capital raised from the issuance.

3




Approving of the increase in charter capital and the adjustment of charter capital,
outstanding shares, and other related contents in the Company's Charter to align with the
total par value of the shares actually issued according to the issuance plan mentioned
above.

4.4 Authorization for the BOD

The General Meeting of Sharcholders authorizes the BOD to make decisions and
implement the following tasks, including but not limited to:

- Deciding on the timing of the issuance, development, editing, and explanation of all
necessary documents and procedures for reporting the share issuance to the State
Securities Commission, decide in detail and amend or supplement the issuance plan
according to the actual situation at the time of issuance or as required by the competent
authorities, and carry out the tasks in accordance with legal regulations to complete the
share issuance;

- Calculating and determining the number of shares issued based on the approved
1ssuance ratio;

- Completing necessary procedures to report issuance resulis to the S5C;

- Completing other matters to increase the Company's charter capital;

- Implementing necessary steps for share issuance supplementary registration at YVSDC
and supplementary listing at HOSE;

- Decide and carry out the procedures for changing the content of the business registration
{including the procedures for registering an increase in charter capital after the issuance
process is completed) and sign the necessary documents related to adjusting the increase
in charter capital on the Business Registration Certificate at the competent state authority;
amend the charter capital level, the number of outstanding shares, and other related
contents in the Company's Charter and other procedures/tasks related 1o the increase i
charter capital mentioned above with the competent state authorities and relevant entities;

- Other tasks for implementing the above plan;

- The BOD may delegate authority to Chairman or General Director to perform the above
task(s).

4.5 Execufion

Authorize the BOD and the General Director to carry out related tasks in accordance with
the provisions of the Company's Charter and legal regulations.

5. Plan for issming shares under the Employee stock option program
(ESOP-2025).

3.1 Issuance plan

1 | Issuing organization PC1 Group Joint Stock Company

_2 1 I;Jr:d sharepame | Sharesof Paﬂmup Joint Stock Company
3 | Listed exchange HOSE
4 | Share type Common Shares

4
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5 | Par value of shares VIND10,000 per share
| ) WND3,576,421,210,000 (as of the time of the 2025
6 | Current charter capital Avwadl Gaoersl Nheeting)
7 T:mal n1:|mber of shares in 157,642,121 sl
eirculation
8 | Treasury shares 0 share
g | Total number of shares to | Up to 10,729,263 shares (equivalent to 3% of the
| be issued current charter capital)
' Total value of shares to be
VIND107,292,630,000
10 | jssued {at par value) Wie
i - Managers of the Company and its subsidiaries,
employees of the Company (hereinafter referred to
as “Employee(s)”), as per the list approved by the
BOD.
. Eligible sharcholders for | - The General Mecting of Shareholders authorizes |
share purchase the BOD to decide and issue regulations, specific
evaluation criteria and principles for determining
the number of shares allocated to each Employee
and the detailed list of Employees eligible for share
purchase under the ESOP program.
The evaluation and allocation criteria include:
- Job title and position;
Criteria to participate in | - Work performance results in the most recent year;
12 g 2 e ,
| the ESOP - Potential contributions to the Group's
development;
- Years of service
IH_IE [ssue price VND10,000 per share
The issuved shares will be subject to a transfer
restriction for 02 years from the date of completion
14 | Transfer restrictions of the issuance (which is the date when the
payment for the purchase of shares by Emplovees
15 completed)
Plan for unSbSCHibed | e General Meeting of Sharcholders authorizes
15 ' Snt pl-Er:‘r;‘::c nf;ﬁ:;: the BOD to allocate the unsubscribed shares to
X A . th
. purchsse shares ("Sharcs :ﬂﬂ;]eru Eﬂrzg[s;::. on the original ESOP list at the
to be distnbuted") ’
16 | Expected implementation | Expected to be implemented in 2025, with the

titne

specific timing to be decided by the BOD and

3




executed concurrently with the share issuance to
increase share capital from owner's equity.

The General Meeting of Sharcholders authorizes
the BOD to decide on the plan to ensure the share
1ssuance complies with foreign ownership ratio

regulations.

Plan to ensure compliance
17 |with foreign ownership
ratio regulations

5.2 Plan for the use of finds raised from the issuance

The total amount raised from the issuance is estimated to be YND 107,292.630,000,
which will be used to supplement the Company’s working capital. The specific capital
usage plan will be decided by the Board of Directors based on ensuring the Company's
interests and compliance with relevant legal regulations.

3.3 Approval for supplementary securities registration and listing

Approve the registration of additional securities and the listing of the total number of
shares actually issued under the ESOP share 1ssuance plan. The above shares will be
deposited with the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation ( VSDC) and
listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE).

5.4 Approval for the increase in charter capital and the amendment of charier capital,
the number of outstanding shares, and other related contents in the Company's Charter
according to the actual capital increase from the issuance

Approve the increase in charter capital and the amendment of charter capital, the number
of outstanding shares, and other related contents in the Company’s Charter to correspond

with the total par value of the shares actually issued according to the issuance plan
mentioned above.

3.5 Awthorization for the BOD on the following issues

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the BOD to decide and implement the
following tasks, including but not limited to:

- Decide on and issue the detailed regulations for the share issuance under the Employee
stock option program for the vear 2025;

- During the transfer restriction period, if any Employee resigns, the shares issued to that
Emplovee will be handled according to the regulations of the Employee Stock Ownership
Program (ESOP) as issued by the BOD;

- Decide on the principles for determining the number of shares to be allocated to each
Employee and the list of Emplovees eligible to participate in the ESOP program;

- Calculate the detailed issuance ratio based on the maximum number of shares approved
by the GMS above;

- Decide on the detailed plan for the use of funds in accordance with the purposes
approved by the GMS above;

- Decide on the plan to ensure that the share 1ssuance complies with the foreign ownership
ratio regulations;



- Decide on the timing of the issuance, develop, edit, and explain all necessary documents
and procedures to report the share issuance to the State Securities Commission, decide in
detail and amend or supplement the issuance plan based on the actual situation at the time
of issuance or as required by the competent authorities, and carry out the tasks in
accordance with legal regulations to complete the share issuance,

- Complete the necessary procedures to report the issuance results to the State Securities
Commission (SSC);

- Complete other matters necessary to increase the Company’'s charter capital;

- Implement other necessary tasks for the additional shares issued to be deposited with
VSDC and listed on HOSE;

- Decide and carry out the necessary procedures to amend the business registration details
(including registering the charter capital increase after the issuance is completed) and
sign the necessary documents related to the adjustment of the charter capital on the
business registration certificate with the competent authorities; amend the charter capital,
the number of outstanding shares, and other related details in the Company's Charter and
other procedures/tasks related to the capital increase with the relevant authorities and
related entities;

- Other tasks to implement the above issuance plan;

- The BOD is allowed to authorize the Chairman of the BOD or the General Director to
perform above task(s).

5.6 Implementation

Authorize the BOD and the General Director to carry out the related tasks in accordance - ||
with the Company’s Charter and legal regulations. Y

W
6. Change of the Company’s Head Office Address
6.1 Change of the Company's head office address:

- The current registered address: No. 18 Ly Van Phuc Street, Cat Linh Ward, Dong Da
District, Hanoi, Vietnam.

- The proposed new address: 1st, 2nd and 3rd Floor, CT2 Building, No. 583 Nguyen Trai
Street, Van Quan Ward, Ha Dong District, Hanoi, Vietnam.

6.2 Amendmenis to the charter:

Approve the amendment of Section 2.3, Article 2 of the Company’s Charter regarding
the registered office address, as reflected in the amended Business Registration
Certificate and remove the Company's business location.

6. 3 Authorizaiion:

- Authorize the Chairman of the BOD to determine the appropriate timing for changing
the Company's head office address based on actual circumstances and to update the
registered address information in case of administrative boundary changes resulting from
the restructuring of the two-tier local government model, as per decisions of competent
state authorities (if applicable); Decide on other related matters during the process of
changing the Company's head office address with the relevant state authorities, ensuring
compliance with legal regulations.




- Authorize the Legal representative to carry out the necessary procedures to register the
change of the Company’s head office address and amend the Company®s Charter as per
regulations.

7. Selection of the Andit Firm for the 2025 Financial Statement Audit

- Approve the list of selected audit firms for the 2025 financial statements from the Big
4 in the audit sector.

- Assign the CEO to choose one of the four firms from the Big 4 mentioned above to sign
an audit service contract at a reasonable price, suitable for the Group's operational
characteristics.

8. Election of the BOD and the BOS members for the term 2025 -2030.

- The following names are elected to the BOD of the company for the term 2025 -
2030;

Article 3. Implementation provisions.

This Resolution was approved by the Annual General meeting of shareholders 2025 of
PC1 Group Joint Stock Company at the meeting and takes effect from 25/04/2025.
Members of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board and the Board of Management
shall be responsible for implementing this Resolution and organizing the implementation
according to their operational functions in accordance with the Law and the Company's
Charter.

Recipient: ON BEHALF OF
- 38C, HOSE (Report); GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
- BOD, BOM, BOS; CHAIRPERSON
- Sharcholders;
- Archive VP
Trinh Van Tuan
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